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Corporate Information A B & ¥l

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ExecuTive DIRECTORS

Mr. ZENG Yunshu (Chairman and President)

Dr. HAN Qinchun (Vice Chairman and Co-President)
Mr. ZENG Sheng (Vice Chairman and Co-President)
Ms. YE Qingdong (Vice President)

Mr. OUYANG Junxin

Non-ExecuTive DIRECTOR
Mr. ZHANG Huagiao

InpePENDENT NloN-ExecuTive DIRECTORS
Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Ms. LIN Wei Fang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. ZENG Yunshu
Dr. HAN Qinchun

COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED

ACCOUNTANT
Mr. CHU Kin Wang, Peleus (FCPA, FCCA, ACIS)

AUDITORS
KPMG

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Mega Capital (Asia) Company Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

The Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Level 8, Hong Long Building
Nanhai Avenue

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC
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Corporate Information 2 5& ¥}

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 6403

64/F, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

The Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26th Floor

Tesbury Centre

28 Queen'’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

IN HonG Kone:
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

In THE PRC:

China Bank of Communications
Agricultural Bank of China

Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank
Hua Xia Bank

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the company,

please contact Corporate Communications Department
website: www.hlkg.net

e-mail: ir@hlkg.net
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Corporate Development Milestone 1t %% R E 2

2002

2003

2004

2005

4 2006

2007

2008

April: First property development project. Commenced construction for Harbor City

47 : BEMFERBRER - BEERFHEERSHT

May: First move into property leasing business. Acquired 88.95% equity in Hong Long Commercial
58 BREEYEBEERK - WHEISIERXETE88.95% ki

September: Completed construction for Harbor City

98 BR E”‘H‘J/ SURRE 2N

February: Commenced construction for Hong Long Plaza
28 : BE%#T
March: Acquired 85.71% equity in Yinghua
A B EEE85.71 % AR
June: Commenced construction for Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park

68 8

April: Acquired further 4.68% equity in Hong Long Commercial

47 : Yo i e e P SE T2 4.68 % AR HE

May: Completed the acqwsmon of 134 shops in Baorun Ornament Materials Mall
5 A : oAk I B s (134

November: Disposal of Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park

1A HEBESRRIX

December: Grand opening of Hong Long Plaza shopping mall

12 8 : RPN

February: First move into international capital market. Listed on the HK Stock Exchange and raised net proceeds of
approximately RMB466 million (approximately HK$472 million)
28 BREEBBREARTS - EE BB E SE S FENHAR 466,000,000 T (497%5% 472,000,000 7T)

March: Acquired the remaining 6.37% equity interest in Hong Long Commercial and become the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the company

A WEBEEXE 6.37% #Ez + {1 fEE
April: Acquired Yifeng Plaza, Shenzhen

A RN B L ES
June: Acquired 50% interest in Nam Fong Garden, Guangzhou and subsequently sold in November

A RN S ERE 50% M1 AHE
July: Acquired 100% interest in Grace Garden

00% #E#=
September: First fund raising exercise after listing. Issue of Senior Note and raised net proceeds of approximately RMB645
million (approximately US$86 million)
9R : EHBEXREEED 17 £ AR ¥ 645,000,000 7t (4986,000,000 % 7T )
October: Completed the acquisition of remaining 49% equity in Huizhou Yintaida
AT 49% Rk HE

1A : E BEAHER - WERIERRAE 100% fEzE

December: Commenced construction for Ningjiang City in Xingning

5,719F 75K o
Establ\shed a 90% ovvned subS|chary in Dongguan for a potential project.
RIEEIR B ERS B90% E=MMB AT -
Entered into agreement for acquiring 100% interest in Zirui Garden.
: QTAT °
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Corporate and Business Structure ¥ & 215218

The company's corporate and business structure as of 31 December 2007 200712 A31H  AAFHDEREBE
was as follows: B

i EE 2 R
HONG LONG

Holdings
Corporate and business structure
EREBRE
[
Founders and directors Public (other institutional
LBCCA AR A RESE and individual investors)
AR (AEEBREARES)
| 6.16%
Hong Long Holdings Limited
BEZRERAR
Shenzhen/Dongguan Huizhou Meizhou/Xingning Hebei, Zhangjiakou
el Ve =M N/ R SRR O

Property development (planned GFA about 1,544,882 m?)
VIR (FHEIAREABERN 1,544,882 £ 15 3K)

y Urban Upstream y " .
aks s 76074 | Landscape Villa, Phase 1 186,492 G’?ﬁ;‘;gge“ 35640 | Xiong ;aé‘%c'ty )
STILESEE—H ————
@
Yinghua pibanlipstiean Ningjiang City, Phase 1 147258
s 57,950 Landscape Villa, Phase 2 |386,720 55T %’riﬁ%z — 3 100,748
STILEEE =1 al
S Urban Upstream L
PATTERTEE 153,960 | Landscape Villa, Phase 3 |315,033 | Bauhinia Garden | g5 55,
REHIEE T ERE = RHEE

Projects under negotiation (planned GFA about 1,246,378 m?)
ERHPIEE (FHERREEEERN 1,246,378 F 5 3K)

Danshui Old City
Redevelopment

Old City Renovation
on Guangchang
North Street

Dongguar.l Qiaotou .119,880
Project
=

Property leasing (total leasable GFA about 88,636 m?)
MERE (S THAEEREEEL 88,636 F5K)
Harbor City

R 14,959

9,759 25,024 Ningjiang City, Phase 2 | 631,715
SHITHAME =

Hongﬂlp.g;gi%maza 58,513

Baorun Ornament Materials Mall
B j 5164

@ Included 5,719m? where approval for acquisition was obtained in February 2008
O BEFEN 2008 F 2 AR K 2 5,719 F F KEH

@ Acquisition agreement has been entered into in March 2008

@ FA2008 F 3 BRI Wi E

@ Already net of 73,635m? sold in 2007

© BN 2007 & H 2 73,635 F 5K EH
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Chairman’s Statement &%

| am pleased to present the results and achievements of the group for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

SIGNIFICANT BREAKTHROUGHS IN 2007

o On 22 February 2007, we listed on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. It was our first step to enter into the
international capital market and we raised net proceeds of
approximately RMB466 million (equivalent to approximately HK$472
million).

o In September 2007, we issued Senior Note to institutional
investors and raised net proceeds of approximately RMB645 million
(equivalent to approximately US$86 million).

o We expanded our business presence in Guangdong, including
Shenzhen, Huizhou, Meizhou and Xingning. We have further
expanded beyond Guangdong by acquiring Xiang Jiang City project
in Zhangjiakou of Hebei Province. The expansion signified the
group's successful launch and confidence in second tier cities in
PRC where better living environment is in great demand.

o We have strong properties portfolio of approximately RMB3,781.5
million according to independent valuation as at 31 December 2007:

° Properties under development/to be developed — approximately
RMB2,460.6 million

° Investment properties — approximately RMB1,257.5 million

° Commercial value of properties interests leased by the group
— approximately RMB63.4 million

The investment properties and properties under development/to
be developed were stated at valuation and cost respectively in the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to 31 December 2007, we have obtained approval
or entered into agreement for additions to the properties to
be developed. The independent valuation for those projects is
approximately RMB490 million.

o We increased our pipeline projects up to approximately 1,545,000
square meters in planned Gross Floor Area ("GFA") as at 31
December 2007. We are currently reviewing certain projects
and shall consolidate our total planned GFA up to approximately
2,791,000 square meters in 2008.
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RAMBHRRT DR HERKAIE

R20074 124310 & M E 3R
ERTRROVRMESEILXITLH
FoRETHAENBIUMEORARE
490,000,000 7T °

o BTN T EFAEEE - K2007F 12
A318 - 5EIBZEEMmEL 1,545,000
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Chairman’s Statement &%

THE MARKET AND OPERATING ENVIRONMENT ﬂib}&%@}%iﬁ
In 2007, the State continued to implement macro-economic control #2007 FEIRE Y ETIGEE T IR E AR
measures on the property market. Below is a summary of the control Ko LT EAEBRES
measures:
Nature Relevant Measures Objectives
B BRI B &
Foreign e “Notice on Further Strengthening and | ® To strictly control foreign exchange settlement
Investment Regulating the Approval and Supervision of and to limit foreign capital flows into the market;
Restriction Foreign Direct Investment in Real Estate BRISAETE - RHIINERTIISHEA
Policies Industry” (May) e To cease encouraging foreign investors to invest
FRINBER (ERE—FINR - RENHEERERHE in “development and construction of ordinary
¥EIMEERNBAMNG A) residential sites”.
e  “Guidance Catalogue for Foreign Investment THERINGIRE [TREEAMAZEER] -
Industries (2007 Amendment)” (November)
(bR B E X BB (2007 F £ 5]))
(11 A)
Land Policies e “Notice on Tightened Handling of Idle Land” | e To forbid idling of land and to accelerate the
T HEER (September) transformation of land into mature products; vé
CEARIMARE L EEHE@EmMH9 A) BT HEE - MR AR ERE L
e "“Provisions on the Assignment of State- | ® To increase land supply for policy-directed
Owned Construction Land Use Right residential housing and restrictive residential
Through Bid Invitation,Auction and housing;
Quotation” (September) DR EREE M B ANBR Bl 14T B /9 T e
(RIZER L EEEER A FERAENE | o Toincrease the capital requirement for property
E)9 A) developers to build up land reserves and to
e “Notice on Further Strengthening Land achieve immediate transfers of vacant land.
Supply Control” (September) ReEEMERECENE T HEENES TR
CRARE — P98 b L FE SR Iy m AN Y (9 ) B F b HE o

e “Measures for Land Reserve Administration”
(November)

(EHfFEHEEEIE(11 A)
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Chairman’s Statement &%

THE MARKET AND OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

W5 s R (A)

(ConT’D)
Nature Relevant Measures Objectives
B BRI B&Y
Residential e “QOpinions of the State Council on Resolving | ® To adjust the property market's supply-demand
Housing the Residential Housing Difficulties of Low- structure and to alleviate the supply-demand
Policies income Urban Families” (August) imbalance;
FEEE B B B A BRI AT R M A SR BE (3 /5 TR ARFEMETISHRER - BRESICTE

WETER) B8 A)
e Relevant policies on low-rent housing,
affordable housing and limited-price housing

BRIESS - 47 A B MR (B AR RE R

e To stabilise sales prices of housing.

REFEHEER

Credit Policies

e “Notice on Strengthening the Administration

e To limit investment and excessive credit growth;

e 6 increases in lending and deposit interest
rates in the year
2E6 RIBEHTFERAE

ZEHER of Commercial Real Estate Credit Loans” HEREFEEBRIER
(September) and its Supplementary Notice | ® To limit investment and speculative property
(December) purchases;
(AR ISR M B EE BB R @M MHRE ~ RIS
(9 A) kE#F@EAM(12 A) e To avoid financial risks.
e Stable fiscal policy and contractionary RS RER
monetary policy (December)
TREN BB ENEBBR (12 A)
Monetary e 10 increases in deposit reserve ratio in the | ¢ To reduce liquidity; to off-set the impact of CPI
Policies year increase;
EEEER 2E10 RIRSFERLERHEE FEAEREN I + HOBECPI LR E -

e To raise capital utilisation costs and to limit
investment and irrational property purchases.

REASERRA - HFRENEEEERE -
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Chairman’s Statement &%

OUR STRATEGY AND FUTURE

We think that the State will keep on adopting steady fiscal policy and
contractive monetary policy while not changing the fundamental rapid
growth of GDP. Therefore, we will continue to adhere to our established
development strategy which is summarised below:

F A # SR iy BRLOR AR

BARAERGEERARENSRERIK
ZEBHE - BTERERRNEELEBEERS
REER - At HMSEERFCETHE
REE - HEMT

Develop steady property
development business

Bl ESGE

Establish long-term tenant relationship

By RHEPEER

Enhance the income from leasing
of commercial properties

REEENEREEBEA

Capitalising on our extensive experience in mergers and acquisition
and levering on the international capital market platform, we see ample
opportunity due to the consolidation of markets and other small and
medium property developers.

In view of the increasing pipeline projects and scale of operation, we have
implemented information system and relevant measures to monitor the
progress of projects and performance of staff.

With continuous improvement in corporate governance and internal
management, we are in a prestige position to capture the opportunity and
are confident in gaining a prosperous 2008.

Expand the land bank

Stand out in Guangdong and expand
the business geographical scope

IR BRI A IR € E

EA Tl

BERBAEHBTEENE TR REEF A
BEREYE  HAIOFUTSES REET
NEYERERRIEERERE -

HRERZEEBEME MR ZERENELR &
MERTEEERERRSNEE 2 HE AR
ZIEAMEERETHRHA -

BELEXERRADEEORENE - HME
RE ’MJLATH%WEA I {50 2008 F 1% 5

Ig
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Chairman’s Statement &%

APPRECIATION Bt

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby express &% AABRRESTS(ESS))  #0Y
my sincere thanks to our shareholders and customers for their continuous BEEEE TS FREFYNHE - AR
support, and extend my heartfelt appreciation to all business associates AANMEFEEBBEHERETINSHER HEL
and staff for their diligence and hard work. RO -

ZENG Yunshu *E

Chairman BER

18 April 2008 200844 A18H
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&{ih & 2T

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue of the group for 2007 was approximately RMB411.7
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB109.3 million
(or 21.0%) over 2006.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company (excluding
the net increase in fair value of investment properties, net of
deferred tax) for 2007 was approximately RMB97.4 million,
representing a decrease of RMB120.2 million (or 55.2%) over 2006.

Basic earnings per share attributable to equity shareholders of the
company for 2007 was RMB24 cents, representing a decrease of
RMBA43 cents (or 64.2%) over 2006.

Strong properties portfolio (including properties under development/
to be developed, investment properties and the commercial value
of property interests leased by the group) of about RMB3.8 billion
per independent valuation as at 31 December 2007. Out of which,
approximately RMB1.3 billion of investment properties have been
stated at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet.

In addition to the existing developments of approximately 1,545,000
million square meters in GFA, the group continues to pursuit
further expansion in land reserve and is optimistic about the future
prospect.

CE VR

2000 AEEMNHRAEHDARKE
411,700,000 7T © 82006 FiH D HAR
# 109,300,000 7T (B121.0%) °

2007 F AR A B HEZ IR S H T (R B
FMBRECEHIEREEDMEL R BN
IFEE) B ARE97,400,0007T ¢ &
2006 R D49 A R 120,200,000 7T (BD
55.2%) o

2007 EARNFERBREEESRELRE
FAEAREE 244l - 82006 FHI AR
431l (B164.2%) °

AEBBEEHENMELAA(BFEER
R/AGTERZYE REWEURE
SEAEMERSNEEGER) &R &
B HEIRE - R2007F12A31AHA
AREAHAREISETL - HF - HAR
BASEBILBRIEEME WA R
TireEEABERLEIE -

BB ST FE 491,545,000 F 7 KEIR B
BREBEN AEEBESKE—FH
R EETHATETmED o
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 B 51 R 247

FINANCIAL REVIEW B B¢ ] ER
Analysis in the view of directors: NESAELTMT
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12ANALEE
Change
2007 2006 )
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARBTRT ARETT AREFT Bolt
Turnover =
Property development ek 362,933 500,148 (137,215) (27%)
Property leasing MERE 48,744 20,892 27,852 >100%
411,677 521,040 (109,363) (21 %)
Profit excluding other items B 1S I8 2 SN A 72,259 119,399 (47,140) (39%)
highlighted below
Gain on disposal of 50% equity EEIR50%

in Trisum 2 Was 140,765 - 140,765 N/A
Gain on disposal of Industrial Park HETERIER 2 s - 120,053  (120,053) (100%)
Net increase in fair value of MBRIEERIERIZRE

investment properties, net of L7 3OV EELE bl

12 deferred tax ek 153,300 481,392  (328,092) (68%)
Net change in fair value of derivative 2007 9 A#TEL

component of the Senior EBREPITER S

Note issued in September 2007 ARBEZEBFRE 21,362 - 21,362 N/A
Finance and issuance costs related 2007 F9 A#1T1EL

to the Senior Note issued in RREEBE RET

September 2007 53 (23,276) - (23,276) N/A
Exchange gain related to the Senior 2007 9 A#TEL

Note issued in September 2007 AR ks 2,428 — 2,428 N/A
Equity-settled share-based payments ER IR EIAE R 2 AR D

related to share option scheme BEEE AR (44,727) — (44,727) N/A
Net change in fair value of derivative 20064 10 A E XA

component of Convertible Note BERNMSRIREEET

issued to pre-IPO finance investor Tﬁ%%f)ﬁ EHfiTE

in October 2006 BoAnEzEEFE (49,544) 432 (49,976)  >(100%)
Finance costs related to Loan Note 2006¢ 10 AERAR

and Convertible Note issued to BERNMSRIREEET

pre-IPO finance investor in EREBRRAUTRKRER -

October 2006 EEME B2 R E PR (22,065)  (23,010) 945 (4%)
Profit for the year RELZ R 250,502 698,266 (447,764) (64%)
Hong Long Holdings Limited JBE$: R ER A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&{ih & 2T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (ConT’D)

Turnover: In 2007, the turnover represented the delivery of approximately
3,743 square meters of retail shops in Hong Long Plaza, the delivery of
approximately 67,678 square meters of residential units and 5,957 square
meters of shops in Xiang Jiang City and property leasing income. In 2006,
we delivered approximately 80 square meters retail shops in Harbor City
and approximately 71,860 square meters residential units and 2,141
square meters retail shops in Hong Long Plaza respectively. The increase
in property leasing income in 2007 was mainly due to the grand opening of
Hong Long Plaza in December 2006.

Gain on disposal of 50% equity in Trisum: In June 2007, the group
entered into agreement with an independent third party for acquiring
a 50% equity interest in Trisum Investment Limited (“Trisum”), an
intermediate holding company, which holds the Nam Fong Garden
phase 2, at a consideration of RMB150 million. According to the then
construction design, Nam Fong Garden phase 2 is a residential and
commercial complex of approximately 108,738 square meters in GFA. It is
situated at a prime location in Guangzhou. The acquisition was completed
in early August 2007. In November 2007, the group disposed of the
50% equity interest in Trisum to another independent third party at a
consideration of approximately RMB314 million. The disposal generated a
net gain of approximately RMB 140.8 million.

Net increase in fair value of investment properties, net of deferred
tax: The huge amount in 2006 was mainly due to the completion of
Hong Long Plaza in late 2006. In 2007, the net increase in fair value was
mainly due to the improvement of our tenant portfolio and the general
improvement of properties market.

Equity-settled share-based payments related to share option scheme:
The company has adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme before listing on
31 January 2007. This non-cash expense is calculated according to relevant
accounting standards upon each grant of the share options.

Finance costs related to issue of Senior Note in September 2007: In
September 2007, the group issued Senior Note and raised net proceeds
of approximately RMB645 million (equivalent to approximately US$36
million). The finance costs mainly represented the relevant interests and
professional expenses which was amortised over the loan period of 5
years. The major terms of the Senior Note have been stated in note 25(b)
to the financial statements.

S 75 Iul e (69)

EER R 2007 F - EEBEREIMNIBERS
#3743 F KT ERH  INETEHL
67,678 5 KEEENMN &5,957F T AKZTER
o URERERNIA - 2006 F - B
MEEBHICENS0FHAKTERH - B
B REI5 5 BI4I71,860F K E BB K& 2,141
TR TERES 0 2007 EYERE U AL
T EHRN2006F 12 ABEES R ARSI -

HEER0%ER 2 W& - 2007664 -
AEBME—BIE=FILH#E UARE
150,000,000 LR B U iE 5 A HTEE 8 — B
WPEBZERARZFEEERAT(TEXRDH
50% PEAHE RS o IR E B HEERA: - @AHE
EE A HAZLBEREET  LFEHE
FE#)108,738F 7K » MR EMESHER - U
BER 2007 F8 AHWITER © M2007F 11 A + &
EH M ARES14,000,000TTRE - BLFEH
50% R AERHETS —BUE=F - HES
TEEE# AR 140,800,000 JT/F MRS ©

HBREERBEAREWEN L AENEMF
EH : 2006 FHYEEK € 58 58 E A B2 1574 2006
FRET - H2007F - AREMEMEELEH
REFMOEFPHEHABNEREMETS 2@
& -

HERRETEEENURGAEEERNS
M AARR2007F 1 A31 B EWATRMA—IE
BRAFEERRRES - ZHEFRESHAX
TiRE B B R RIZG RE H R RRAE ST

st

= o

B2007 FOARITHELEZEMEBENBER
A FR2007F9R  AEBEBEITELZRE B
EFMBRBFBHARKE6AETL(HERY
86,000,000%7T) » BAKANEEBRIEHEBEF S
LEXBRNAFERARN#E - BLEE
B £ ZEFYI R IS R M 3 25(b) A ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 Esfih & 24T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (ConT’D)

Net change in fair value of derivative component of Convertible Note
issued to pre-IPO finance investor in October 2006: It is related to a
Convertible Note of US$8 million issued to Lehman Brothers Commercial
Corporation Asia Limited (“"LBCCA"), a pre-IPO finance investor, in
October 2006. The Convertible Note has been fully converted into 66
million shares, representing approximately 6.6% of the then issued share
capital of the company upon listing on 22 February 2007. It is a non-cash
and non-recurring expense calculated according to relevant accounting
standards.

Finance costs related to Loan Note and Convertible Note issued
to pre-IPO finance investor in October 2006: Another Loan Note of
US$17 million was issued to LBCCA simultaneously when the company
issued the Convertible Note of US$8 million as mentioned in the previous
paragraph. The interest and arrangement fees related to the Loan Note
and Convertible Note of US$17 million and US$8 million respectively were
deducted upfront from the proceeds received by the group in October
2006 while the relevant finance costs have been amortised over the period
of the Loan Note and Convertible Note respectively according to relevant
accounting standards.

OTHER INCOME STATEMENT ITEMS

Other revenue: The increase in other revenue was mainly due to the
increase in interest income derived from the overall increase in cash and
cash equivalents which were due to the over-subscription monies for the
IPO in late February 2007 and the funds raised from the issue of Senior
Note in September 2007.

Selling and distribution expenses: The relatively high selling and
distribution expenses in 2006 was due to the advertising and promotion for
Hong Long Plaza.

General and administrative expenses: The increase in general and
administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in manpower and
pipeline projects and various professional fees normally incurred as a listed
company. It also included equity-settled share-based payments where
it is @ non-cash item and is calculated according to relevant accounting
standards upon each grant of share option.

Other operating expenses: The increase in other operating expenses
was mainly due to the charitable donations and equity-settled share-
based payments where it is a non-cash item and is calculated according to
relevant accounting standards upon each grant of share option.
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SEGMENT ANALYSIS

While principally engaged in the development of mid-range residential
and commercial properties in China, the group expects stronger recurrent
cash flow from commercial properties leasing in the future. In 2007,
property development income and property leasing income accounted for
approximately 88.2% and 11.8% respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits as at 31 December
2007 amounted to approximately RMB573.5 million (31 December 2006:
approximately RMB58.6 million) which included approximately RMB262.2
million, USD16.0 million, GBP11.6 million and HKD27.7 million.

The group had total borrowings of approximately RMB1,175.4 million as
at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006: approximately RMB470.3
million). As at 31 December 2007, approximately RMB219.0 million is
repayable within one year, RMB145.0 million is repayable within one
to five years and RMB811.4 million is repayable over five years and the
group'’s total bank loans and other borrowings divided by total assets as at
31 December 2007 was 33.3% (31 December 2006: 26.9%).

As at 31 December 2007, the group had current assets of approximately
RMB2,250.1 million (31 December 2006: approximately RMB738.8
million) and current liabilities of approximately RMB822.1 million (31
December 2006: approximately RMB818.2 million).
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SENIOR NOTE

Pursuant to the offering memorandum of the company dated 20
September 2007, the company issued 900 units of Senior Note
(collectively referred to as the “Senior Note”) and 81,000,000 nil-paid
warrants (the “Warrants”) for a principal amount totalling US$90,000,000.
The Senior Note was interest-bearing at 12.5% per annum at issue and
payable semi-annually in arrears, and will mature on 3 October 2012.
Detachable from the Senior Note, each Warrant may be exercised from the
date of issue up to 2 October 2012 at an initial exercise price, subject to
certain conditions of reset and adjustment, of HK$3.36 per ordinary share
of the company.

Pursuant to a cross-currency and interest rate swap agreement (the
“Swap Agreement”) entered into between the company and a financial
institution immediately after the said offering memorandum, the notional
principal amount of the Senior Note under the Swap Agreement deemed
to be effective at the date of issue was RMB676,845,000, whereas the
notional interest rate applicable to the Senior Note was the 1-year RMB
benchmark deposit rate as determined from time to time by the People’s
Bank of China plus 5.3% per annum. Interest payment will be due annually
commencing on 3 October 2008.

Conditioned in the said offering memorandum, the company is granted
a redemption option such that at any time on or after 3 October 2010,
the company may redeem the Senior Note, in whole or in part, at a
redemption price equal to the percentage ranging from 100% to 106.25%
of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date. At any time prior to 3 October 2010, the company
may redeem the Senior Note, in whole but not in part, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Senior Note plus the
applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
the redemption date. In addition, at any time prior to 3 October 2010,
the company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount
with proceeds from certain sales of the company’s equity shares, at a
redemption price equal to 112.5% of the principal amount, plus accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date.

The Senior Note is general obligations of the company and is senior in right
of payment to any existing and future obligations of the company expressly
subordinated in right of payment to the Senior Note, which is at least
pari passu in right of payment with all other unsecured, unsubordinated
indebtedness of the company (subject to any priority rights of such
unsubordinated indebtedness pursuant to applicable laws). The Senior
Note holder(s) are entitled to a first priority security interest on certain
collateral charged by the company, and the Senior Note ranks effectively
senior in right of payment to unsecured obligations of the company with
respect to the value of the collateral charged by the company.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2007, bank loans of approximately RMB584.7 million
were secured by certain bank deposits of approximately RMB174.5
million.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi. All of the group’s borrowings are denominated
in Renminbi. The appreciation in the currency value of the Renminbi
contributed positively to the group’s profit for the year. Except for the
Swap Agreement entered into between the company and a financial
institution as disclosed in “Senior Note"” in the preceding paragraph, the
group did not engage in any derivative activities and did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet exposure during the year
ended 31 December 2007.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for the guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities (at a
maximum of RMB370 million) granted to purchasers of the group’s
properties, the group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2007.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are
directly related to the underlying business of the group. For the details of
capital and risk management, please refer to notes 32(e) and 33 to the
financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2007, the group had a staff force of approximately
250. Of this, most were stationed in the People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC"). The remuneration of employees was in line with the market trend
and commensurable to that in the industry. Remuneration of the group'’s
employees includes basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives
(such as equity-settled share-based payments). Total staff costs incurred
in 2007 was approximately RMB42.9 million.
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USE OF TPO PROCEEDS
AR B RESRIHZ Hig
Intended use of proceeds
Net proceeds as stated in the prospectus
FRGFIE R BRERMHZ P
Approximately Approximately HK$210 million to finance the
HK$472 million expansion of land reserves in the PRC (mainly
#]472,000,000% 7T in Guangdong Province and other cities in

southern China)

#9210,000,000 & T BIEFFE (X BURE
RENEmMREMET) L EERE

Approximately HK$90 million to finance the
development project of Greenview Garden in

Huizhou

#790,000,000 % T ABEMEE S EEFHEIEE

mE

Approximately HK$80 million to finance the
development project of Shenzhen Yinghua in
Baoan district, Shenzhen

#780,000,000 7 7T AL 7R

ERBAARME

Approximately HK$63 million to repay part of

the Loan Note

#763,000,000 7% 7T A 1

The balance of approximately HK$29 million as
additional general working capital of the group

#929,000,000 %8 7T 2 SR REE AR S BB IN—

R2EES
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Actual use of proceeds

FrSREER AR

Approximately HK$210 million has been used
to finance the expansion of land reserves in the
PRC (mainly in Guangdong Province and other
cities in southern China)
#7210,000,000 8 TE BIERERPE(EZE
IR ERE RERMREAmNT) T i FER
&

Approximately HK$90 million has been used to
finance the development project of Greenview
Garden in Huizhou

#790,000,0007% 7L 2 BIE /B M & = IEEFA
BIHE/HE

As there is no progress in qualification
certificate application for the project of
Shenzhen Yinghua, the group has utilised
approximately HK$80 million to repay its
existing banking facilities
BHRARNEEEENEEEERFULMER -
ANEE T B F%180,000,000 8 TEEERE
IRITER

Approximately HK$63 million has been used to
repay the Loan Note
#763,000,000 % T E AEEEEHRER

Approximately HK$20 million to repay its
existing bank facilities and approximately HK$9
million has been used as general working
capital of the group

#720,000,0007% T BIEFEE LR A RITE
B if#)9,000,000&TE BIEREE —MRE
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the post balance sheet events of the group are set out in note
38 to the financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for 2007
(2006: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The group is principally engaged in the development of mid-range
residential and commercial properties as well as commercial properties
leasing in the Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The group expanded its business presence in Guangdong, including
Shenzhen, Huizhou, Meizhou and Xingning. The group has further
expanded beyond Guangdong by acquiring Xiang Jiang City project in
Zhangjiakou of the Hebei Province. The expansion signifies the group's
successful launch of the projects and confidence in second tier cities in the
PRC where better living environment is in a great demand.

For investment properties portfolio, the group’s leasable GFA increased
to approximately 89,000 square meters, out of which, the group owned
approximately 69,000 square meters following the completion of Hong
Long Plaza in late 2006. Hong Long Plaza generates recurring cash flows
supplement to the group’s future investment plan. Capitalizating on its
experience on professional property management, the group will continue
to seek opportunity in rendering services to properties developed by other
property parties.

Levering on the capital market platform, the group has a series of
acquisitions in 2007 that increased the existing properties portfolios up to
approximately 1,545,000 square meters in GFA.

In April 2007, the group acquired approximately 70,000 square meters
in Yifeng Plaza by a public auction at a consideration of approximately
RMB482 million. Yifeng Plaza is a complex of office, residential units and
retail shops located at the prime location in Luohu district, Shenzhen.
In February 2008, the group obtained approval for further acquisition of
approximately 5,719 square meters at a consideration of approximately
RMB63 million. The group planned to complete the renovation and delivery
of Yifeng Plaza in 2008.

Fi HARHIH

REEEHE PR BRSO BRI 38 -

RIIBE B,

BEEDHRTEREE2007F 12 A31H1E
FEZRIGE (20064 « ) o

75 10 g

AEBTEEPHERECEPEEERAE
VMENFBRNEEYENHER -

HPBEBRATRERNEBRE - 2FF) - &
M AN e BREE o AREEBEBEUS LT AL
RROMETRMIAR MERERERIAI %
BREHBEAEBEMEREBOKY LT
ELBERHELELERTERAFT LN LW
o

FEREMEMRAEFE  BEZBREREISR 2006 F
% T 1% (K 69,000 F 5 KANEBMAHS)
AEEHMEE 2 BEEEELNEL 89,000
FHK BEERSEALEERERE  #R
REBMORFREAENE - BREAEEHE
EMETENLR  AEEBEESKHEM
FEEAMAEMETHTERBHRS -

REEREAMIBGES @ NEBMN 2007 F#ET
T—REHWEE - EMIERENMEMREENE
4E S FE4) 1,545,000 F 7K o

R2007F 48 REERZEBAFRBENLLA
R 482,000,000 7T &) X (B W B8 2 2 F 15 4
70,000 F FKkEE ZEREERE—EERT
B AEBEULRTEFANGEET  URZR
NEAR =L - N 20084F2 F - ALK
HELAKI AR5 63,000,000 TTRIR(E - 3E— Uk
BE4Y5,719F 50K o REEEH &I 2008 F 7Tk
BRI NBEES

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE#: R AR A A
Annual Report 2007 —E &+ FFIf




20

Management Discussion and Analysis B2 Esfih & 24T

BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT’D)

In June 2007, the group entered into an agreement with an independent
party for acquiring a 50% equity interest in Trisum, an intermediate holding
company, which holds the Nam Fong Garden phase 2, at a consideration
of RMB150 million. According to the then construction design, Nam Fong
Garden phase 2 is a residential and commercial complex of approximately
108,738 square meters in GFA. It is situated at No. 168-170, Chang
Gang Zhong Road, a prime location in Guangzhou. The acquisition was
completed in early August 2007. In November 2007, the group disposed
of the entire interest in Trisum to another independent third party at a
consideration of approximately RMB314 million. The disposal generated a
net gain of approximately RMB140.8 million.

In July 2007, the group acquired a 100% equity interest in a PRC company,
which holds a piece of land in Meizhou, at a consideration of RMB11
million. The project, named Grace Garden, is a residential and commercial
complex of approximately 35,649 square meters in GFA. The group
planned to complete and deliver Grace Garden in 2008.

In October 2007, the group commenced operation of a newly formed
wholly-owned subsidiary in Xingning, for a land mark project, named
Ningjiang City. Phase 1 of Ningjiang City mainly consists of residential
and commercial complex of approximately 100,748 square meters. The
group planned to complete and deliver phase 1 of Ningjiang City in 2009.
The group is negotiating with Xingning Municipal government on phase 2
development with site area of approximately 243,455 square meters and
a residential and commercial complex of approximately 631,715 square
meters in GFA.

In November 2007, the group completed the acquisition of an intermediate
holding company, which holds 100% equity interest in Xiang Jiang City
project in Zhangjiakou of Hebei Province. Xiang Jiang City, is a residential
and commercial complex of approximately 220,891 square meters in GFA.
Xiang Jiang City is a project development upon acquisition by the group
and the group planned to complete and deliver the rest of Xiang Jiang City
by phases in 2008 and 2009.

Capitalising on its extensive successful experience in acquisitions, the
group continues to pursuit further expansion opportunities in addition to
the pipeline projects.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT’D)

In 2007, the group has obtained approval from the Luohu district
government, Shenzhen for an old city renovation on Guangchang North
Street ([ E354b | k&) and is currently submitting an application to
the land planning authorities of Shenzhen Municipality for the proceeding
of the project. The Guangchang North Street project is located at the
South of Hongbao Road (AL E %), the West of Heping Road (F1F ) and
Dongmen Old Street (RF92), the North of Shennan Road East (FF &
#%) and Shun Hing Plaza (y&3I{Z M E 51T A& ) and the East of Bao'an
Road South (EZ# ). The project site is at the commercial district in the
central area of Luohu District, Shenzhen. The first phase of the project will
occupy a site area of approximately 11,000 square meters with GFA of
approximately 70,000 square meters.

In October 2007, the group established a wholly owned subsidiary
company in Danshui of Huizhou, namely Huizhou Xing Wo Property
Development Limited (“Xingwo"). Xingwo is considering the
redevelopment of a site located in the landmark of Danshui. The site area
is approximately 53,000 square meters with residential and commercial
complex of approximately 425,000 square meters in GFA. The group
planned to complete and deliver the project by phases in 2009 and 2012.

Subsequent to 2007 in March 2008, the group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for acquiring the 100% equity interest
in Shenzhen City Zirui Real Estate Development Company Limited
("Shenzhen Zirui”) by phases in 2008. Shenzhen Zirui is an intermediate
company which holds the Zirui Garden in Buji, Shenzhen. Zirui Garden
mainly consists of high class villa with GFA of approximately 153,960
square meters. The group planned to complete and deliver the project by
phases in 2009 and 2010.

In March 2008, the group established a 90% owned subsidiary in
Dongguan. The group is considering a residential and commercial complex
of approximately 119,880 square meters in GFA. The group planned to
complete and deliver the project by phases in 2009 and 2011.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management EER S REEAEZBE

DIRECTORS

ExecuTive DIRECTORS

Mr. Zeng Yunshu, aged 54, is the chairman and president of the
company and an executive director and a member of the remuneration
committee of the company. Mr. Zeng is one of the founders of Hong
Long Properties (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Hong Long Shenzhen”),
the major operating subsidiary of the group. Mr. Zeng has been serving
as the president of Hong Long Shenzhen since its establishment. He is
responsible for determining the overall business strategies and planning,
making investment decisions and determining the overall business
management direction of the group. Prior to the establishment of the
group, Mr. Zeng worked in the Xingning City and Meizhou municipal
governments from 1981 to 1990. Mr. Zeng worked in Shenzhen
Petrochemical Industry (Group) Co. Ltd. from 1991. During the period
from March 1993 to March 2002, Mr. Zeng was a director of Shenzhen
Cairun Properties Development Company Limited, a PRC limited company
engaged in the businesses of trading and property development. In
September 2000, Mr. Zeng established Hong Long Shenzhen. Currently,
he is a committee member of the People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Meizhou, Guangdong Province and the deputy president of
Meizhou Overseas Friendship Association (/N T/&4NEZES). In 2004,
Mr. Zeng was awarded the title of “Outstanding Contributor” for the
development of Xingning's economy. Mr. Zeng has more than 15 years
experience in the development and management of properties. He has
an interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of the company, details
of which may refer to the section headed “Directors’ interest in shares,
underlying shares or debentures” under Director's Report in this annual
report. Mr. Zeng has entered into a service contract with the company
for a term of 3 years, commencing from the Listing Date but subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the company’s Articles of
Association. Mr. Zeng is the father of Mr. Zeng Sheng, executive director
of the company.

Dr. Han Qinchun, aged 50, is the vice chairman and co-president of
the company and an executive director. Dr. Han joined the group in
early 2006. Dr. Han is mainly responsible for determining the overall
planning and development strategy together with Mr. Zeng Yunshu.
Dr. Han is also responsible for the investment, financing and project
planning of the group. Dr. Han has over 20 years experience in the PRC
property sector, including architectural planning and design, real estate
development and management and corporate finance. He was heavily
involved in management activities including investment evaluation and
implementation, project development and leasing for Shanghai Square,
Shanghai Gateway Plaza and Shenzhen Shun Hing Di Wang Plaza.
From 2001 to 2006, Dr. Han was engaged in investment banking and
securities businesses with several investment banks in Hong Kong. Dr.
Han graduated from the Department of Architecture of Xi‘an University of
Architecture and Technology (FEZZ5RHE K E) with a bachelor degree
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in architectural planning and design. In 1999, Dr. Han obtained a doctorate
degree of philosophy in Real Estate Economic and Management from The
University of Hong Kong, and he obtained the professional qualification
of a registered real estate appraiser in the PRC in 1997. Dr. Han has
entered into a service contract with the company for a term of 3 years,
commencing from the Listing Date but subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the company'’s Articles of Association. He has an interest
in the shares and/or underlying shares of the company, details of which
may refer to the section headed “Directors’ interest in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Director’s Report in this annual report.

Mr. Zeng Sheng, aged 28, is vice chairman, co-president of the company
and an executive director. Mr. Zeng joined the group in 2001. He is
responsible for marketing and participating in overall planning of the
group’s businesses. Mr. Zeng graduated from Shenzhen University in
2001 with a degree majoring in information engineering. Mr. Zeng was
appointed as the vice-general manager of Hong Long Shenzhen in 2001
and the general manager of Hong Long Commercial in 2002. In October
2003, Mr. Zeng completed the EMBA course in Ling Nan College of
Zhongshan University. Currently, Mr. Zeng is a council member (32%) of
Shenzhen Chamber of International Commerce. Mr. Zeng is the son of Mr.
Zeng Yunshu. He has an interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of
the company, details of which may refer to the section headed “Directors’
interest in shares, underlying shares or debentures” under Director’s
Report in this annual report. Mr. Zeng has entered into a service contract
with the company for a term of 3 years, commencing from the Listing Date
but subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the company's
Articles of Association.

Ms. Ye Qingdong, aged 41, is vice president of the company and an
executive director. Ms. Ye is also the general manager of Hong Long
Shenzhen. She joined the Group in 2001. She possesses an engineer
qualification and is responsible for overseeing the group’s properties
development and operation. Ms. Ye graduated from Xinjiang Engineering
Institute (#1938 L22p7) in 1988 with a degree in engineering majoring in
industrial and civil architecture. Ms. Ye also completed the Executive MBA
Program of Shanghai University of Finance and Economic in 2007. Ms.
Ye has over 11 years of experience in architecture and structural design,
project assessment as well as development. Before joining the group, Ms.
Ye had worked in ¥732 B8R A& ETPT (Xinjiang Textile Design College)
and FIEHE (@) BR{HD AR A R) (COFCO Property (Group) Joint Stock
Company Limited), a company, whose shares are listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Ms. Ye was named “20034E#JI50EHE S REEA"
(The best 50 Senior Manager of Shenzhen Property for Year 2003) in 2003.
She has an interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of the company,
details of which may refer to the section headed “Directors’ interest in
shares, underlying shares or debentures” under Director's Report in this
annual report. Ms. Ye has entered into a service contract with the company
for a term of 3 years, commencing from the Listing Date but subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the company's Articles of
Association.
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Mr. Ouyang Junxin, aged 38, is an executive director of the company.
Mr. Ouyang joined the group in 2000 and is responsible for the corporate
finance and overall financial matters of the group. Mr. Ouyang graduated
from EINTEARHEAKNEEEZRT (the Business and Trade School
of Huanghe Science and Technology University in Zhengzhou City) in
1993 specialising in industrial economic management. Mr. Ouyang was
a finance manager of Shenzhen Baoan Fu Xing Industry Development
Company (later renamed as “Shenzhen Cairun Property Development
Company Limited” (RYIMIEEHEREFR AR from 1993 to
1996. He has more than 10 years experience in finance and accounting
management. He has an interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of
the company, details of which may refer to the section headed “Directors’
interest in shares, underlying shares or debentures” under Director’s
Report in this annual report. Mr. Ouyang has entered into a service
contract with the company for a term of 3 years, commencing from the
Listing Date but subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
company's Articles of Association.

Non-execuTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Huagqiao, aged 44, joined the company as non-executive
director in January 2007 and is also a member of remuneration committee.
Mr. Zhang is currently an executive director and chief operating officer of
Shenzhen Investment Limited (Stock Code: 604), a non-executive director
of Shenzhen International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 152), Coastal
Greenland Limited (Stock Code: 1124), Guangzhou Investment Company
Limited (Stock Code: 123), OP Financial Investments Limited (Stock
Code: 1140) and Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 126)
respectively, an independent non-executive director of Kasen International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 496), all of the companies are listed on
the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Prior to joining Shenzhen
Investment Limited, Mr. Zhang was a managing director and co-head of
China research at UBS Securities. Mr. Zhang holds a Master of Economics
of Development from the Australian National University. He has an interest
in the shares and/or underlying share of the company, details of which
may refer to the section headed “Directors’ interest in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Director’s Report in this annual report. He
has been appointed to hold office until the end of the forthcoming annual
general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the company's Articles of Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Jun, aged 46, joined the company in January 2007 as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and the member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee, respectively. Dr. Li has extensive experience in enterprise
management and investment risk control. Dr. Li is currently an executive
director of Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited (Stock
Code: 1228), a non-executive director of Global Flex Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 471) and an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang
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Glass Company, Limited (Stock Code: 739) respectively, all of the
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Dr. Li has an interest in the shares and/or underlying share of the company,
details of which may refer to the section headed “Directors’ interest in
shares, underlying shares or debentures” under Director's Report in this
annual report. He has been appointed to hold office until the end of the
forthcoming annual general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the company's Articles of Association.

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, aged 39, joined the company in January 2007
as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee, respectively. Mr. Cheung is a member of CPA
Australia and American Institute Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong
Kong in 1991 and a Master of Science Degree in Finance from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2001. He was previously an
independent non-executive director of Mascotte Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 136), a listed company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cheung has extensive experience in accounting and capital
markets. He served at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from August 1991 to
March 1994 and the vice president and executive vice president of Daiwa
Securities SMBC Hong Kong Limited and Japan Asia Securities Limited
from March 1994 to March 2005 respectively. He has an interest in the
shares and/or underlying share of the company, details of which may refer
to the section headed "Directors’ interest in shares, underlying shares or
debentures” under Director’s Report in this annual report. He has been
appointed to hold office until the end of the forthcoming annual general
meeting but subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
company's Articles of Association.

Ms. Lin Wei Fang, aged 56, joined the company in January 2007 as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee. Ms. Lin is a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She graduated from
Meizhou Institute of Education (#MZ4E Z3Fx) in 1985. Ms. Lin worked at
FYITMETEUS (Shenzhen Finance Bureau) from 1991 to 1995, as senior
staff member and principal staff member respectively. She was a principal
staff member, deputy director-general of the general office and consultant
of the Shenzhen Resident Supervision Office of the Ministry of Finance,
PRC from 1995 to 2006. Ms. Lin studied economics and management at
Guangdong Party School between October 1994 and February 1997. She
has an interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of the company,
details of which may refer to the section headed “Directors’ interest in
shares, underlying shares or debentures” under Director's Report in this
annual report. She has been appointed to hold office until the end of the
forthcoming annual general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the company's Articles of Association.

=4 (4)

ERAPIEBRBBRZAERLT - FELIR
ARBEMD &,/ RBERO T HEE#E - 4
B 2HAERANESTERE T2 [EERKR
o AR RESFF 2w | AN o BIEHE
EERFBFAGERRL - HARBEARA
HEEREFRE -

REBMEE 3958 0 M2007F1AMARR
Al BN RITEENEZZESEEAY
MEZEEERIRREBEZHE - RAEERAR
MNAESTMRAEREARESHMALAES
B REER1991 FREEBRBU SR 22
TER RN 2001 FEESESREAZNCHIE
Bt 2 BERAEESHRIMERLT
WARFIMEERER AR (BRHDER - 136)
BUFRITESF - RAELEEGHNEATSEA
LEMLE  HEE1991F8 AE1994F 3 A
- fE1EE) ¢ AR A ETAITIIE - UERR
1994F 3 AE 2005 F 3 A AMES (BE)E
BARMAGHEFFRAADNETRBEEK
WITRIRE - HRAR AN & SRABRG
FHEED  FHEAHTT2BAFHRANEFTS
HRETZ [EFRRG - BERMDRESFT ZE
wm]ER  FEHEEERRBEFAEERA
IE EERB AR RS2 GERT -

MEF LZ L 565% KR2007F1AMAEXR
Al ABUIRTES  REZESGEIFLRE
BREBEZKE - Mt A EEME AR
&8 MALLTR 1985 FHEBMNTHE SRE
% 199 FE1995F N RIARRII T BB
BHENFEHE - K1995F £ 2006 FHE(LH
EO BB RINT REREERETRERAE
WEEHE  MERERLFAFE - K 19945
10AE1997 F2 ARERE LB LEE
BEE - HRARBMRMN &, HIARBEAR G
D FHEMT2HAFHRNESTERE
TZ [EFRRG - HERD RESHT 2]
HR - HAMEEERRBEFRASHERAL -
MEBRBEANA RS EIRGFRT -

Hong Long Holdings Limited SB[ B[R A 7
Annual Report 2007 —E &+ FFIf




26

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management EER S REEAEZBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, aged 43, joined the company in 2006 and
is the company secretary and qualified accountant of the company. Mr.
Chu has over 19 years experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting
and taxation. He is the chief financial officer and company secretary of
the company responsible for corporate finance, financial reporting and
compliance and company secretarial matters of the group. Mr. Chu
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Master Degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He is also an associate member of both the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Company Secretaries.

Ms. Wei Haiyan, aged 32, is the group's deputy chief executive and the
deputy general manager of Hong Long Shenzhen. Ms. Wei has completed
all the courses in the master of digital management programme at the
CIMS Engineering Technology Research Centre, Tsinghua University. Ms.
Wei is mainly responsible for the administration and human resources
of the group. She graduated from the International Finance Department
of Shenzhen University in 1993, majoring in International Finance. She
has over 10 years experience in management. Ms. Wei is a committee
member of the People’s Political Consultative Committee of Meizhou,
Guangdong Province.

Ms. Zhong Lili, aged 47, joined the group at the end of 2001 and is
currently deputy chief executive of the group and deputy general manager
of Hong Long Shenzhen. She is responsible for the overall legal affairs of
the group. Ms. Zhong graduated from the Southwest University of Political
Science and Law (FAFBUEA A EE) and obtained a Bachelor Degree in Law in
1984. Ms. Zhong worked at the Policy Research Office of the Department
of Justice of Sichuan Province (PU)!|%& BB F A=) in 1984 and she
was appointed as a lecturer of the Law School at the Southwest China
Institute for Nationalities (FEFERIZZFT) in 1991. Ms Zhong worked as a
legal adviser to a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 1998 and
was appointed as a legal consultant in a state-owned enterprise in 1999.
Ms. Zhong has extensive knowledge in PRC legal affairs and approximately
20 years in law practice.

Mr. Xie Xinhao, aged 53, joined the group in 2003 and is deputy chief
executive of the group and financial controller of Hong Long Shenzhen.
He is responsible for the financial affairs of the group. Mr. Xie has many
years of experience in finance and accounting practice and in real estate
development and management in the PRC. Before joining the group in
2003, Mr. Xie had worked in a state-owned enterprise and a property
developing company.
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Mr. Li Hansheng, aged 55, joined the group in 2004. He is currently
deputy chief executive of the group and general manager of Huizhou
Yintaida Company Limited (“Huizhou Yintaida"”), an operating subsidiary
under HonglLong Shenzhen. He is responsible for the overall development
matters of Huizhou Yintaida. Mr. Li graduated from the Central China
Normal University (ZEFRAR&IAEE) and worked in Shenzhen Property
Trading Centre (RIITTFEHERZ ZH D) in 1994. In 2004, Mr. Li joined
Hong Long Shenzhen which appointed him as the general manager of
Huizhou Yintaida. Mr. Li has many years experience in the sale of real
estate in Shenzhen.

Mr. Xu Jianyi, aged 53, joined the group in 2007. He is currently deputy
chief executive of the group and general manager of the Investment
Development Centre of the group, and is responsible for the investment
and planning affairs in the real estate development projects of the group.
Mr. Xu positioned in a Hong Kong listed company engaging in real estate
development from 1995 to 2003, and was responsible for the acquisition,
development and management work. Mr. Xu has over 10 years experience
in real estate development and management.

Mr. Cao Yongfeng, aged 34, joined the group in 2003. He was the deputy
chief controller of the construction division of Hong Long Shenzhen and is
responsible for overseeing the construction works of the group’s property
development projects. Mr. Cao has been appointed general manager
of Zhajiakun Century Way Real Estate Development Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the group in November 2007. He was
technical supervisor for a large construction engineering company from
1997 to 2000. He has over 8 years experience in property development.
Mr. Cao graduated from the School of Architecture of Chang Sha Railway
University (R #3E27) in 1997.

Mr. Chen Liangman, aged 41, joined the group in 2002. He is the group’s
sales director and is responsible for the overall sales affairs of the group.
Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangsu Chemical Engineering College (T &kt T
E20%) in 1990. In 1997, Mr. Chen was an officer of the trading department
in Zhonglian Properties Company (FE§FZE A 7)) and a sales manager
in Jinghetian Industrial Company () HE %2 7]), both companies are
located in Shenzhen. Mr. Chen joined the group in 2002 as sales manager.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) are pleased to present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 are set out in note 17
to the financial statements.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise the structure
of the group in preparation for the public listing of the company’s shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the shares of the company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 22 February 2007 (the “Listing Date”).

Details of the group reorganisation are fully explained in the paragraph

headed “Corporate Reorganisation” in Appendix VIl to the prospectus of
the company dated 8 February 2007 (the “Prospectus”).

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 56.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company, before dividends,
of approximately RMB250,685,000 (2006: 698,969,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Details of the movements in the reserves of
the group and the company during the year are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the group during the year amounted to HK$1
million.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the investment properties of the group during the year are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in properties, plant and equipment of the group
and the company during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers taken together accounted for
17.1% and 51.6% of the aggregate of the group's total turnover for the
year.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the group's
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers taken together accounted for
54.0% and 75.6% of the group's total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their respective associates or, so far as the directors
are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the company has any interest in any of the said top five
customers and suppliers of the group for the year.

fit 45

AAREERREMEEN(CRIOBRKE) D
A R % 250,685,0007T (2006 F © #9 A R ¥
698,969,000 T) EE R E[FHE - AEBMEAR
R NHEZ BN F BRI HREMES2 -

REEF AL 2 ZE1B545 1,000,000 7T °

e <L/ ES

REBRNFNHIREYEFBRNTTEIHERM
18

Yi3g ~ HeAs Kk tts

REBRARRBRFERNOE - WS LEREF
BERFHHREHMTE6 -

EEE P LR

FA AEEZEREFPRAREFP 2RAHE
EORNMAREBEARFEREEFENIT A% R
51.6% °

FR - AEBSAHEIRAANEERZ BF
BEINGAEEARAFERKENGL0% K
75.6% °

BEEE WEXAZHMBEA  IREEFRA
BEAARAEBITIRAL % 2 ER RN F A
BARKE EMEA RS R EE R -

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE#: R AR A A
Annual Report 2007 —E &+ FFIf




Directors’ Report EE &%

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

ExecuTive DIRECTORS:

Mr. ZENG Yunshu (Chairman and President)
Dr. HAN Qinchun

Mr. ZENG Sheng

Ms. YE Qingdong

Mr. OUYANG Junxin

Non-ExecuTive DIRECTORS:

Mr. ZHANG Huagiao (appointed on 31 January 2007)

Mr. CHEN Junyu (appointed on 31 January 2007 and
resigned on 16 October 2007)

INDEPENDENT NoON-EXEcUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. LI Jun (appointed on 31 January 2007)
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam (appointed on 31 January 2007)
Ms. LIN Wei Fang (appointed on 31 January 2007)

30
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current directors are set out on page 22 to
page 25 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
the company for a term of 3 years commencing from the Listing Date.
Each service contract will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than six months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of the non-
executive and independent non-executive directors has been appointed to
hold the office until the end of the forthcoming annual general meeting. In
addition, the appointment of each of directors is subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION
(ConT’D)

In accordance with the provisions of the company’s Articles of Association
and the respective letters of appointment, Ms. Ye Qingdong, Mr. Ouyang
Junxin, Mr. Zhang Huagiao, Dr. Li Jun, Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and Ms.
Lin Wei Fang will retire from the Board at the forthcoming annual general
meeting but, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the directors has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service contract with the company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 10
to financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of their independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the rules governing the listing of securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and both the Board and the nomination
committee considered all independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING RPN MBI  RE SR 2
SHARES OR DEBENTURES BE 25

As at 31 December 2007, the interests of the directors in the shares, M2007F12A318 » EFREAR A HEFEE
underlying shares and debentures of the company or any of its associated BEE (RFEH RHAEKRAIE XV E 2 ®E) (T18

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures BOEE D) 2R - MERG REFPEEIRE
Ordinance (the “SFQ")) (the “Associated Corporations”) as recorded in BELEEEDIEI521EBEFE 2 B Mtk

the register required to be kept by the company under section 352 of the HIBE EMBETAERTETELFRH Z2IZES
SFO or as otherwise notified to the company and the Stock Exchange AN E<FRI D M AITHEARA T R
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of WA

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY RAEDNTRD Z2HE
Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interests to
shares total number
held under of shares
Number of shares equity in issue*
RABE derivatives %
32 Personal Family Corporate BRASTE HEBRTRG
interests interests interests T EEHHE Total HBEzADLL*
Name of Director i EARES RikiER NAER Ripz#E @t %
Mr. Zeng Yunshu BERETAE 1,026,000 - - - 1,026,000 0.10
Dr. Han Qinchun BRERL 9,768,000’ - - - 9,768,000 0.94
Mr. Zeng Sheng e Y S - - 582,320,0002 - 582,320,000 55.98
Ms. Ye Qingdong 3L e - - - 5,000,000° 5,000,000 048
Mr. Ouyang Junxin BT S - - - 2,000,000° 2,000,000 0.19
Mr. Zhang Huagiao RICELE - - - 7,000,000 7,000,000 0.67
Dr. LiJun FTHEEL - - - 1,000,000° 1,000,000 0.10
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam  SEZ#hsEAE - - - 1,000,000° 1,000,000 0.10
Ms. Lin Wei Fang Tt - - - 1,000,000° 1,000,000 0.10
Notes: B 5E -
1. This represents interests held by the relevant director as beneficial owner. 1. IWIEABRE SR EREAARA 2 -
2. This represents interests held by Mr. Zeng Sheng through Grand Prosperity 2. L35 F B %5 55 415 38 Grand Prosperity Limited
Limited (“Grand Prosperity”), which holds 582,320,000 shares of the (IGrand Prosperity]) # 6 2 #xi * i Grand
company. Mr. Zeng Sheng has 80% interest in Grand Prosperity, he is Prosperity %4 582,320,000 it A A A7) © B
therefore deemed to be interested in 582,320,000 shares of the company. 55  ¥EE Grand Prosperity 2 80% #45 © A
i 18 & % /5 582,320,000 fE AN A A Bk 15 2 #
2 .
Hong Long Holdings Limited JBE$: R ER A A
Annual Report 2007 —ZZ+F 3R




Directors’ Report EE &%

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (ConT’D)

3. This represents interests in options held by the relevant director as a
beneficial owner to subscribe for the relevant underlying shares granted by
the company under the Pre-IPO Share Option or Shares Option Scheme,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option” below.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
company in issue as at 31 December 2007 (i.e. 1,040,250,000 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of the directors
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the company or any of its Associated Corporations which
had been entered in the register kept by the company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. ZHANG Huagiao, a non-executive director of the company, waived his
directors’ fee with effect from 15 May 2007. Under the service agreement
entered into by the company and Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhang is entitled to a
director’s fee of HK$150,000 per annum. During the year, Mr. Zhang has
received the total emoluments of approximately RMB44,000.

In August 2007, Mr. ZHANG Huagiao, a non-executive director of the
company, made an advance of HK$20 million to the group for bridging
working capital. Such advance was (1) for the benefit of the group; (2)
on normal commercial terms and (3) not subject to any security over
the assets of the group. The transaction is thus exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
according to Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules. The advance had a term
of three months with an option for a further three months’ extension with
an interest rate of approximately 5.427% per annum. The group has early
repaid the advance together with interest of approximately RMB226,000
in October 2007.

Same as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to protect the group’s interest in its current business activities,
each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Sheng and Mr. Zeng Yunshu has
as covenantor entered into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) dated 31 January 2007 in favour of the company, the
details of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with
the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Pursuant to the Deed
of Non-competition, each of the covenantors has undertaken, subject
to the terms therein, to the company (for itself and for the benefit of its
subsidiaries) that it/he would not, and would procure that its/his associates
and/or companies controlled by it/him (other than the group) would not,
either on its/his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any
person, firm or company, directly or indirectly be interested or engaged
in or acquire or hold an interest (in each case whether as a shareholder,
partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
in any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with the
group’s business, those other businesses of the group as set out in the
Prospectus, in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or jurisdiction
to which the group markets or sells its products and/or in which any
member of the group carries on business mentioned above from time to
time. The company has received an annual declaration from each of Grand
Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Sheng and Mr. Zeng Yunshu for its/his respective
compliance with the undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition.

Mr. Zhang Huagiao, has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour
of the company. Furthermore, Mr. Zhang agreed to inform the group
promptly upon his awareness of any matter which gives or is likely to give
rise to a competition with the group, and to abstain from voting in the
board meetings of Shenzhen Investment Limited, a listed company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and principally engaged in property
development business in which Mr. Zhang is an executive director and
chief operating officer, or the company (as the case may be) on any matter
which gives or is likely to give rise to a competition or conflict of interest
with the group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2007, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the company under the Pre IPO-Share Options and Share
Option Scheme to the directors to subscribe for shares of the company, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code is set out in the section headed “Share Option” of this
report below.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the company, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL FHER R A A B A Z R
OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2007, the interests of those persons (other than the M2007F12 A31 8 RARAIRDEEIRE
directors) in the shares of the company as recorded in the register required FE L EAE(EHEI36IEA N TIBEFE 2 ELM
to be kept by the company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: Fractk o m o ZE AL (EZRIN AT
Percentage
Number of of shares to
underlying total number of
shares held shares in issue*
under equity %
derivatives BRMEE AT
Capacity in which Number of ERASTE BB E
Name shares were held shares IEREHER ZEDL*
= RIEERG 254 RAEE iaripa {| %
Grand Prosperity’ Beneficial owner 582,320,000(L) - 55.98
ERBEBA
Lehman Brothers Commercial Beneficial owner 64,112,000(L) - 6.16
Corporation Asia Limited? EnEBA
("LBCCA")
LBCCA Holdings | LLC.? Interest of controlled 64,112,000(L) - 6.16
("LBCCA1") corporation
TN ElEE
LBCCA Holdings Il LLC.2 Interest of controlled 64,112,000(L) - 6.16
("LBCCA ") corporation
bR NS I Sy
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.? Interest of controlled 64,112,000(L) 22,500,000(L) 8.33
("LB HLD") corporation 20,000,000(S) 1.92

XEREER

(L) = long position iF &, (S) = short position A&
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’D)

Notes:

1. These shares are held by Grand Prosperity which is owned as to 80% by Mr.
Zeng Sheng and 20% by Mr. Zeng Yunshu, both are executive directors of the

company.

2. LBCCA is owned 50% interests by each of LBCCA | and LBCCA II. Both
LBCCA | and LBCCA Il themselves are wholly owned by LB HLD and
accordingly, the shares in which LBCCA | and LBCCA Il are shown to be
interested are also included in the shares in which LB HLD is shown to be
interested. The number of shares held and underlying shares held under
equity derivatives has been adjusted based on the information from LB HLD.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the

company in issue as at 31 December 2007 (i.e. 1,040,250,000 shares).

36 Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, the company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the company which had been recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the company from the
Listing Date and up to the date of this report and within the knowledge
of the directors, there was sufficiency of public float of the company’s
securities as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company's Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the group towards its growth and success, an aggregate of
23,000,000 share options of the company (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”)
have been granted by the company to, and accepted by the relevant
employees prior to listing of the company’s share on the Stock Exchange.
On the same day, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholder’s written resolution of the company.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of, and
permission to deal in the shares of the company which may fall to be
issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted and/or may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options and/or Share Option Scheme,
subsequently.

As at 31 December 2007, a total of 86,309,000 share options were
outstanding which comprised 19,000,000 share options and 67,309,000
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options and the Share
Option Scheme respectively.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Options and the Share Option Scheme:

(a)  Pre-IPO SHARe OpTIONS

Purpose

Recognition of the contributions made by employees of the group
towards its growth and success.

Exercise Period

From 22 August 2007 to 21 February 2012 unless extended in
writing by the Board (and approved by the independent non-
executive directors) in its absolute discretion. Each of the Pre-
IPO Share Options (to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically at the end of such option period.

Exercise Price

HK$0.60 per share to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Pre-
IPO Share Options, representing a discount of 75% to the maximum
IPO Offer Price as described in the Prospectus. The exercise price
was determined in recognition of the contributions made to the
group by the respective grantees of the Pre-IPO Share Options.

el
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(a)

(b)

(c)

38

(e)

(a)

(b)

SHARE OPTION (ConNT’D)
(a)  Pre-IPO SHare OpTions (ConT'D)
Other Conditions

(1) The grant of the Pre-IPO Share Options is subject to the
following additions conditions:

the commencement of dealings in the shares;

any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options must be
made in full and not in part;

the Pre-IPO Share Options are personal to the relevant
grantees and shall not be transferred or assigned,
and shall constitute a term of the employment of the
relevant grantees by the group;

the grantees of the Pre-IPO Share Options shall adhere
to any undertaking or restrictions that may be further
imposed on them by the company, the Stock Exchange
or the sponsor as described in the Prospectus; and

any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options shall
be further subject to any guidelines issued by the
company from time to time in order to ensure full
compliance with the Listing Rules.

(2)  The grantees shall not dispose of their respective shares
issued pursuant to the exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to them in the following manner:

in any number greater than 30% of all the shares
issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to them within (2) two years from the Listing Date;

in any number greater than 60% of all the shares
issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to them within (3) three years from the Listing Date;
and
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D) 7

(a)  Pre-IPO SHare OpTions (ConT'D) (a)

(c) all the shares issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to them within (4) four years from the
Listing Date.

(3)  The Pre-IPO Share Options (if not already exercised) held
by each individual grantee shall lapse automatically upon
cessation of his/her employment with the group, regardless
of how such cessation of employment arises.

(8)  SHARE OPTION SCHEME (8)

Purpose

Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees had
made or may make to the group.

Participants

Eligible participants include:

(a)  any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
group or a company in which the group holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company (" Affiliate”);

(b)  the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
group or an Affiliate; or

(c)  a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the group or an Affiliate.

Exercise Price

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the nominal value of the share;

HE (%)
RN B S AT AR ()

©0 BETAEMEAHEER - %
SERTREGROMAEE
AR M BT Z PR ALY

@)  HEREARAMFTEZERAFRE
SRR (I ARTTE) RAE
4% B P AR AR R (TR fE
(BRI P

RIRET 8
=)
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B B FEAR EBEF  fE
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b) EREEZEAZZZARENE
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’p) o I HE (%)
(8)  SHARE OPTION ScHEME (CONT'D) (8) FRIRAESTEI(E)

(b)  the closing price of (1) one share on the Stock Exchange at b) REESAH(AREER)RHE
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and T2 BRWRTE K&

(c)  the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange (c) EBEFEAHMAELXARNE
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer B X T2 Y URT(E -
date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the percentage W& 1TIR (A8 E R IR AR FE 3 H A B2 &17

of the issued share capital that it represents as at the date of VA= paaa

this annual report

24,691,000 shares, being approximately 2.37% of the issued share 24,691,000 g1 - AR B E #EITR D

of the company. #92.37% °

Maximum entitlement of each participant FEBHEZREHE

Not exceed 1% of the shares of the company in issue in any THEBEMER+ @A BEAARARE %7

40 12-month period. &2 1% °

Period within which the securities must be taken up under the RIEZR IR IR B 75 25 2 HAIR

option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of which, HESeMSET  MOTESTFE  BE

from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on which such MBHEEBEERRERNZ B REFT

option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer. HESRENR +F (R FEEE AE)

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can FRIREIT I FI BB 2 RITHIIR

be exercised

Subject to the discretion by the Board. HESEMBET -

Amount payable on acceptance NI FE(T 288

HK$10.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer. A RS PR 10.00 7T ©

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid 288 B AEL 188 ZHR
Not applicable. TEA -

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBE$: R ER A A
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)

(8)  SHARe OpTioN ScHEME (CoNT'D)
Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 31 January 2017, after which
no further options will be granted but the provisions of the scheme shall
remain in full force and effect in all other aspects. Options complying with
the provisions of the Listing Rules which are granted during the duration of
the scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to 31 January 2017
shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant,
notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.

(i) MovemenTs ofF THE PRe-IPO SHaARe OpTiON
Movements of the share options, which were granted under the Pre-IPO

Share Options, during the year ended 31 December 2007 are listed below
in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:

B RE (%)
() SRIEE ()
BB TEH

ZETEIBEREAREE201741 A31H - ik
M &R I ERTRRCE » B%E Bl Z G TR
HA T EAS RS T RN AR - Rzt EIHR
i BN EEZ 201741 31 BRI AREITEIER
B EMRRBIE 2 R - BAIEERERE 2
EHGRTATE  BEZ B ZHREER -

(i) BRAFBEIIREZEE
REZE2007F12 A31 BIEFEER - BEHEK

AHBERREER L 2 RREZE T (3R
B EMRAE17.071§)

During the year
FR
Lapsed*/ Exercise price
Granted on cancelled T8 Exercise
RAsat  BREER  Exercised TXM*/ R As at HK$ period
Category 83l 01.01.2007  31.1.2007 BT CE# 31122007 BT T8
Directors £
Ms. Ye Qingdong EERLT - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
21.02.2012
Mr. Ouyang Junxin BISEMEE - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
21.02.2012
Continuous Contract EAKIEE - 16,000,000  (4,000,000) - 12,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
Employees 21.02.2012
Total st - 23,000,000 (4,000,000) - 19,000,000
Notes: 5SS
1. The vesting period for all the option granted is six months from the date of 1. FIEEREAREZGBHAHEMRL B
acceptance of the offer. RBEFREA -
2. The exercise price of the shares option, representing a discount of 75% to the 2. REEZITEESARERMLIZ&2EHAA

maximum IPO Offer Price as described in the Prospectus.

FEEEITETE% ©
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) e S AE ()

(8)  Share OpTiON ScHEmE (CoNT'D) (8) RRETEI(E)
Remaining life of the scheme (ConT’D) ZETE|ZER T A (1)
(ii)  MovEMENTS OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (i) RRETE 2B

Movements of the share options, which were granted under the Share REZ2007F 12 A3MBIEFER  BERK
Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December 2007 are listed below a2 RIS E T (TR A

in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules: $£17.071&51) :
During the year
R Exercise
Lapsed*/ price
cancelled i Exercise
Dateof grant ~ WAsat  Granted Exercised Z45M*/  RAsat HK$ period

Category 5 REASE  01.01.2007 R [R6r:d BEE 31122007 BT hyid

Directors g2

Mr. Zhang Huagiao REBEE 15.05.2007 - 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
42 14.05.2017
Dr. LiJun THREL 15.05.2007 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RS 15.05.2007 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1,84 15.11.2007-

14.05.2017

Ms. Lin Wei Fang WEF LT 15.05.2007 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017

Continuous Contract HEANEE 15.05.2007 - 13,929,000 (150,0000  (470,000%) 13,309,000 1,84 15.11.2007-
Employees 14.05.2017
10.10.2007 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 2.99  10.04.2008-

09.10.2017

Consultants 5] 15.05.2007 - 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017

10.10.2007 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 2.99 10.04.2008-

09.10.2017

10.10.2007¢ - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 2.99 10.10.2008-

09.10.2017

Total h - 67,929,000 (150,000)  (470,000%) 67,309,000

Notes: B3E -

1. The vesting period for all the options granted is six months from the date of 1. FIAEERHRBRE 2 FEBAREANRL A H
acceptance of the offer, save as the one marked with “#", the vesting period REFNER - MEZRBRREME T # | 2% EH
is one year from the date of acceptance of the offer. B RREARE B MR —F -

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of 2. R 2 TR ES E B HRRETAOREAR
right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the company's share capital. BIEA z AR E S M F L % -

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBE$: R ER A A
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SHARE OPTION (ConNT’D)

(8)

SHARE OpTION ScHEME (ConT'D)

Remaining life of the scheme (Cont’D)

(iii)

FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on both the Black-Scholes pricing model and the
binomial lattice model. The contractual life and expectations of early
exercise of the share options were used as inputs into relevant
models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

200751A31H

i B (#5)

(8) WRREERTE ()

Zit 8|2 B T FH ()

(iii) RREHDABERMBER
PR T RBEN AR EE TRIERAD
m-#TRAEBERN R - HEAERERN

B RBRENANFHRIAMERT
EIEREEBABEER -

BIRERI LA B R R

Grant date
A
31 January 15 May 10 October
2007 2007 2007

200754150 2007 10H10H

Fair value at measurement date REtEAHNARE

Share price BB

Exercise price 1T1fE

Expected volatility (expressed as TEHERRIR (AZE
weighted average volatility TE SR B A RO g
used in the models) FHRRRT)

Option life (expressed as R E (RS
weighted average life used TE SR B A O g
in the models) THFHET)

Expected dividends TEHEARR S

Risk-free interest rate (based on BRBFIE (LAINE
Exchange Fund Notes) EeZEHE)

Valuation model used EAMNMGHERR

HK$0.78 HK$0.47 HK$0.64
0.78/&7T 04787 0.64 7T

N/A HK$1.84 HK$2.93

i A 1.847%87T 2.93%7T
HK$0.60 HK$1.84 HK$2.99
0.60/&7T 1.847%87T 299% 7T
47.9% 48.9% 51.1%

3 years 3.25 years 10 years

3F 3.25%F 104

4.4% 3.4% 1.2%

4.0% 4.2% 4.3%
Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Binomial
BhR -8l ANz — &R Z1Ex

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The condition
has not been taken into account the fair value measurement of
the services received on the grant date. There were no market
conditions associated with the share options granted.

TE AR M8 TOAR IR I 2R 18 (AR IR W3 R RO A 7
BT FERFE) - WHRIEARTBNERA
AT TR HA S B O R ROR NS

R R AR RIS HE IR - ORI A e P
WERB R E M BN AR EE - BEREL
EIEEATISIREER o
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PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the company and its subsidiaries are primarily in
form of contributions to the China statutory public welfare fund and Hong
Kong's Mandatory Provident Funds, respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the company did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the company were entered into
or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the company’s listed securities during the year.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code. The directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2007.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date as set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible , offer themselves for re-appointment in
forthcoming annual general meeting of the company. A resolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zeng Yunshu
Chairman

18 April 2008

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBE$: R ER A A
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The company has always recognised the importance of shareholders’
transparency and accountability. It is the belief of the Board that shareholders
can maximise their benefits from good corporate governance. The company

is committed to ensure high standards of corporate governance in the

interest of its shareholders.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(B)

The company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as stated in Appendix
14 to the Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). As far as
the Code is concerned, the company complies with all aspects of
the Code except for the Code of A.2.1 regarding the separation of
roles of chairman and president (chief executive officer) which, in
the company’s opinion, would not be appropriate for adopted by
the company. The chairman and president (chief executive officer)
of the company are performed by the same individual, &Z1E
o4 (Mr. Zeng Yunshu). The Board meets regularly to consider
major matters affecting the operations of the company. The Board
considered that this structure does not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
company and believes that this structure enables the group to make
and implement decision promptly and efficiently, therefore, the
Board are of the view that the role of chairman and president (chief
executive officer) of the company can be performed by the same
individual.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors. Specific enquiry
has been made to all directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the period and they all confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

In addition, the company has adopted provisions of the Model Code
as written guidelines for relevant employees (as defined in provision
A.5.4 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules) in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the company. Such relevant employees shall
abide by the provisions of the Model Code.

ARTRAHRROBAERAE 2 BB -
EEGEERRTRRT 2 CREATEER
Keyinss - AEBRARRE OO EEAR
DU BRI -

(A)

(B)

ot SR NE)
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HOEEERFRTAA R 807l
XX - A F R R E - AR E
SEFRIMAT A S - HESFRIZEA 21168
WEFEEAs(TRER)NABRES S
BRI MARRRABILES KA
UEIRSFRI o KRB EE LB [1THAE
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B WAR(E LR AT < AR B R
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
company and to the exercising of independent opinion.

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

ExecuTtive DIRECTORS:

Mr. ZENG Yunshu (Chairman and President)
Dr. HAN Qinchun

Mr. ZENG Sheng

Ms. YE Qingdong

Mr. OUYANG Junxin

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. ZHANG Huagiao (appointed on 31 January 2007)

46 Mr. CHEN Junyu (appointed on 31 January 2007 and
resigned on 16 October 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. LI Jun (appointed on 31 January 2007)

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam (appointed on 31 January 2007)

Ms. LIN Wei Fang (appointed on 31 January 2007)

The biographical details of the current directors are set out on page
22 to page 25 of this annual report.

NumBser oF MEeeTings HELD AND ATTENDANCE

The Board normally has four (4) scheduled meetings a year and
meet at other times as and when required to review financial and
internal control, risk management, company strategy and operating
performance of the group. During the year ended 31 December
2007, a total number of 20 regular and adhoc Board meetings, 2
audit committee meetings, 2 remuneration committee meetings
and 1 nomination committee meeting were held. Minutes of these
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the company and
are open for inspection by the directors.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBE$: R ER A A
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (ConT’D)

Numser oF MeeTings HELD AND ATTENDANCE (CONT'D)

The individual attendance records of each director, on a named
basis, at the meetings of the Board, audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee during the year ended 31
December 2007 are set out below:

(C) EFT(4)
DEFEER SR ()

EHZE 200712 A31 BILFER - K54
PEMNBUNEEFLEEEEEE B
ZEg FWNEZESRIREZESHNE
B BRI T

Attendance/Number of Meetings entitled to attend

i BREESENRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee

Name of Directors BEEEK £xg EREEE FMEEE REZEE
Mr. ZENG Yunshu BERLE 17/20 - 2/2 -
Dr. HAN Qinchun BRAEELT 17/20 - - -
Mr. ZENG Sheng TR 19/20 - - -
Ms. YE Qingdong BEERZL 18/20 - - -
Mr. OUYANG Junxin BRF5 & o A& 20/20 - - -
Mr. ZHANG Huagiao RILBEE 5/5 - - -
Mr. CHEN Junyu* PREREE" 5/5 - - -
Dr. LI Jun THEEL 4/5 1/2 2/2 1N
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam REBMEE 4/5 2/2 2/2 1N
Ms. LIN Wei Fang NES 4/5 2/2 - 17

* Mr. CHEN resigned on 16 October 2007.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to ensure that there is a competent
executive management which is able to run the company in a sound
and efficient manner. The Board is also responsible for establishing
the company’s business strategies and plans from time to time
to ensure that the operations of the company are conducted
effectively.

The Board is responsible for preparation of the financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements, the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

The Board also conducts appropriate internal control procedures and
reviews risk management strategies and polices of the company to
ensure that the company runs its business in compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements with prudence and integrity.

* fR5C AR 2007 £ 10 A 16 A BHE ©

EFe R ERRTRERERREALQA
ZERBREE  WARHEAREE
TEEES Nt &l - ARERBREE o

EFe R AREMB®ME - NEHMB
WER - ERATEARG AR &
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BIRFEN FIET R A5
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TEERBRE

(©)

(D)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (ConNT’D)

REsPONSIBILITY OF THE DIRECTORS

Each executive director is delegated individual authority and
responsibility to oversee and monitor the operations of a specific
business unit, and to implement the strategies and polices set
out by the Board. The independent non-executive directors
provide independent opinion and share their knowledge and
experiences with the other members of the Board, audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee.

ANNUAL CoNFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NlON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The company has received, from each independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board and the nomination
committee consider all of the independent non-executive directors
are independent.

Terms oF Non-EXEcUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive directors
has been appointed to hold the office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In addition, the appointment of each of the non-
executive and independent non-executive directors is subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the company’s Articles of
Association.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established a remuneration committee (“RC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
under the Code. The RC comprises the following three members:

(i) Dr. Li Jun, chairman of RC (independent non-executive
director);

(i) Mr. Zeng Yunshu (executive director, chairman & president of
the Board); and

(i)~ Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (independent non-executive director).

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the remuneration
policy for the directors and senior management. During the year
ended 31 December 2007, a total number of 2 meetings were
held to determine the remuneration policy for the directors and/or
senior management. The attendance records of the RC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings Held and
Attendance” on page 47 of this annual report.
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(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (CoNT’D)

(E)

The RC has primary responsibility for making recommendations
for approval by the Board with respect to matters relating to the
remuneration of the executive directors of the company. The major
responsibilities of the remuneration committee are:

(i) to make recommendations on the company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of the directors;

(ii) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the
executive directors, and to make recommendations on the
remuneration of the non-executive directors for the Board's
approval;

(i) to review and propose performance-based remuneration
for executive directors by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv)  to administer and make determinations with regard to the
company's share option scheme.

During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations of
the RC. Details of the amount of directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2007 are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (“AC") with written
terms of reference as suggested under the code provision under the
Code. The AC comprises the following three members, all of them
are independent non-executive directors:

(i) Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (chairman of AC) ;
(ii) Dr. Li Jun; and
(iii) Ms. Lin Wei Fang.

The AC meets at least twice a year to review and approve the
group’s financial reporting process and internal control system.
During the year ended 31 December 2007, a total number of 2
meetings were held. The attendance records of the AC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings Held and
Attendance” on page 47 of this report.
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(E) AUDIT COMMITTEE (ConT’D)

The major responsibilities of the AC are:

(i) to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the company’s external
auditors, and to revaluate their independence and objectively
and the effectiveness of the audit process;

(ii) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial
statements, reports and accounts of the company, and to
review significant and judgemental financial reporting issues
contained therein;

(i) to review the company’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management systems; and

(iv)  to discuss with the management the system of internal
controls, and to ensure that the management has discharged

its duties and responsibilities in implementing an effective
internal control system.

The group's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2007
have been reviewed by AC.

AupITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the fees paid/payable to

auditors in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided
by the auditors to the group were as follows:
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2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

Nature of services REME BET T BT T
Audit =8 2,084 800
IPO services TR 3,138 -
Others Eih 696 -
Total wEt 5,918 800
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(F) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee (“NC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
under the Code. The members of nomination committee are
independent non-executive directors, namely:

(i) Ms. Lin Wei Fang, (chairlady of NC);
(ii) Dr. Li Jun; and
(i)~ Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam.

The NC meets at least once a year to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of directors and the management of
the Board succession. During the year ended 31 December 2007, a
total number of 1 meeting was held. The attendance records of the
nomination committee, on a named basis, are set out under section
of “Number of Meetings Held and Attendance” on page 47 of the
report.

The major responsibilities of the NC are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular the chairman
and the president(chief executive officer).
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(F)

(G)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CoNT’D)

During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations of
the NC. The retirement and rotation of the following directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have been approved by the
NC:—

(i) Dr. Li Jun (independent non-executive director),

(ii) Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (independent non-executive director);
(i) Ms. Lin Wei Fang (independent non-executive director);

(iv)  Ms. Ye Qingdong (executive director),

(v) Mr. Ouyang Junxin (executive director); and

(vi)  Mr. Zhang Huagiao (non-executive director).
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective internal
control system in order to protect the group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Board and AC shall also conduct
periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the group’s internal
control system.

The internal control system includes a well established corporate
structure and organisation with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and authority. Each department is responsible for its daily
operations, and is also required to implement and monitor
the strategies and polices adopted by the Board and effective
employment of the resources of the company, in order to avoid
misappropriation of resources and damages made to the company's
assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.

The Board and AC assess the effectiveness of the internal control
system and procedures based on information derived from
discussions with the management of the company and its external
auditors. The Board and AC believe that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.
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(G)

(H)

INTERNAL CONTROL (CoNT’D)

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its
management staff within the group. The group has a defined goal
for each department to accomplish, these goals were discussed
in the Board meeting and pass on to the management through
the executive directors. These goals will be implemented and
closely monitored by the executive directors who shall review the
operational and financial results from time to time, and to take any
necessary actions for the improvement of it business activities.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The company is committed to maintain high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community
at large. The company provides information in relation to the
company and its business in its annual report which is to be
dispatched to shareholders of the company on a timely basis. The
group's corporate website (http://www.hlkg.net/) also provides an
effective communication medium through which the public and
investor community can obtain updated information about the
group.

All the shareholders of the company are to be given a 21 days’ notice
of the date and venue of the company’s Annual General Meeting
where the shareholders have an opportunity to communicate
directly with the Board of the company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Hong Long Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Long
Holdings Limited set out on pages 56 to 157, which comprise the
consolidated and the company balance sheets as at 31 December 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FBEERERD KRR
BN BENRE
(REES#HEAMA B RAE])

AAZBAED (LA BT [ #4M9)) BB TIEA E 56
BEF 167 BRREERERARMNLRE M HR
= WAV B®REEEN2007F12 A31H
WiEERARIEEABREREZZALFEN
HEBRR GEERZIRNGEHENRE
F ' UREESFTERE RE M AR o

B Sl I B MR JUR I Y FAT

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

ERREFAAAEREEBSAAGRME
BB HREERNREB(RAGPDHKREE
RFRERAEM R FHINHRZETHRE - &
BEEBERT EREIEEEFRRATTA
S 3 51) ¥ B 75 SRR AR BR RO AU RRAE Y - DAE B 75
BRTEFERNRFFERM AR E RHER
Bt REBNERAERNEERE  RIRBER
THEHA B EE A

A ) B AR

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

Hong Long Holdings Limited 385 AR A &
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considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

B A2 5 R 75 R AR B MY PO AR - DA
RETEENEZIZF - BXIFAH QB AL
ZHNMERRER - ERNBEFEESH
RANERRNSEERPIEL R ER
AR - U RFHEM S REANEESIHT N

HMERE - RPIESHEZRERTRNE
B RRMANERE RIRHER -

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31
December 2007 and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

18 April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement ZZ &8 R

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —ZFEE+F+ _-A=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) (A B FTIR)

2007 2006
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B e AR¥T T AREBTIT
Turnover B 4 & 15 411,677 521,040
Cost of sales SHEE RS (176,994) (257,881)
Gross profit EF| 234,683 263,159
Net increase in fair value of REMER R ER
investment properties EhnFER 180,352 566,343
Gain on disposal of a jointly B R I B B M e
controlled entity 5(a) 140,765 -
Gain on disposal of properties BB E R WS
under development 5(b) - 120,053
Other net (loss)/income HAb (E518),/ Was $58 6 (24,608) 2,162
Other revenue Hmug A 7 40,476 3,768
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (11,347) (13,140)
General and administrative expenses — R MITHE R (53,769) (11,871)
Other operating expenses Efh @& A (20,356) (2,691)
Profit from operations KRR 486,196 927,783
56
Net change in fair value of derivative ~ $TA £ @ T EA
financial instruments ARENEE)FEE (28,182) 432
Finance costs BhE R AR 8(a) (55,091) (23,170)
Profit before taxation BB RTE A 8 402,923 905,045
Income tax FriS%t 9 (152,421) (206,779)
Profit for the year AEERA 250,502 698,266
Attributable to: DU AL BEfL :
Equity shareholders of the company N2 Al#E 5% R 250,685 698,969
Minority interests DEIR R R (183) (703)
Profit for the year AEERA 250,502 698,266
Dividends per share BRRE 13 Nil Nil
Earnings per share (RMB Yuan) BREF (AR TT) 14
Basic BN 0.24 0.67
Diluted 5 0.23 N/A
The notes on pages 63 to 157 form part of these financial statements. $63EHEE 157 BN EBAMEREN—FH -
Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 8 EEERBE

At 31 December 2007 R=-ZFF+F+=-HA=4+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) — (AA BB TFLFR)
2007 2006
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B ek AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BKE K& 16 9,772 6,145
Investment properties REMZE 18 1,257,486 1,004,500
Deferred tax assets IR A = 30(b) 14,744 =
... 282002 1010645
Current assets MENEE
Inventories T8 20 932,860 101,992
Trade and other receivables 8 LA B 5k B2 EL A B MR 21 519,306 489,079
Prepaid land costs FEAT ZHbA AN 21(d) 220,620 89,128
Trading securities BEBES 19 3,733 =
Pledged deposits EHRTFR 23 176,433 27,090
Cash and cash equivalents BekREeEEY 24 397,101 31,540
— 2,250,053 738829
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank loans and IRITER
other borrowings REMEE 26 219,019 470,258
Derivative component of AR IR
Convertible Note PTEE D 26(b) - 5,998
Trade and other payables, and accruals EEEFR « M EMNZRIBIRER 27 314,578 183,003
Receipts in advance TEU AR 28 34,652 12,540
Rental and other deposits HERHMIZS 29 10,944 10,770
Taxation payable FESFLIR 30(a) 242,886 135,670
I 822,079 818239 _
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(BE)FE 1427974 (79,410)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZ®EHRHEE 0000 2,709,976 931,235
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 25 956,386 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIB A E 30(b) 113,864 86,812
... 1070250 ¢ 86812 _
Net assets EEFE 1,639,726 844,423

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 AR A 7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 8 EEARBE

At 31 December 2007 R-—FEE+#1+—-H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) (A B FTIR)

2007 2006
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR¥ET T AREBTIT
Equity s
Share capital [N 10,296 80
Reserves [ 1,617,162 821,252
Total equity attributable to equity 72 TR
shareholders of the company PE(LRER AR 32 1,627,458 821,332
Minority interests DERRER 32 12,268 23,091
Total equity A %E 1,639,726 844,423
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 18 April EESH 2008 F 4 A 18 BHLEI FAETZE o
2008.
Zeng Yunshu Zeng Sheng
ZEB =l
Executive Director Executive Director
58 HITEE HITEE
The notes on pages 63 to 157 form part of these financial statements. FO3EEF 157 BN B A B HTR A —FB
4 o
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Balance Sheet EE& &%

At 31 December 2007 R-ZEZE+#f=-H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) — (AA BB TFLFR)
2007 2006
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B ek AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BKE K& 16 467 =
Interests in subsidiaries KB A Fl S 17 909,353 =
I 909,820 - T
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H b FEUR 21 25,758 11,915
Pledged deposits EHTFR 23 164,406 =
Cash and cash equivalents Be kBEEEY 24 122,935 =
I 313,099 . 11915
Current liabilities RBRE
Other payables and accruals HibENRRIERER 27 98,789 11,944
Net current assets/(liabilities) neEE(a®)¥FE 214310 (29)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZBERREESE 1124230 (29)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 25 555,708 =
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E&)FE 568,422 (29)
Equity s
Share capital &N 10,296 =
Reserves 1 558,126 (29)
Total equity B8 32 568,422 (29)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 18 April

EEEN2008F 4 A 18 BHLEWRAETZ -

2008.
Zeng Yunshu Zeng Sheng
2T B

Executive Director

HITEE

The notes on pages 63 to 157 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #4&

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —ZFEE+F+ _-A=+—HIFFZ

mBER

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) (A B FTIR)
2007 2006
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mz AR®ETRT AR%BTRT AR®BTRT ARETE
Total equity at 1 January MATBM e 844423 147,098
Profit for the year RE w7 32 250,502 698,266
Total recognised income and  AEEESERWRA
expense for the year rk&pR®E 250502 698,266
Attributable to: LATR AT FELS -
— equity shareholders of the VN
company. AR 250,685 698,969
— minority interests — DB R (183) (703)
250,502 698,266
Movements in equity arising BEXRGEEN
from capital transactions: Engy
Shares issued pursuant to BEBRZIRBEER
the global offering and E R AL AR T
upon the exercise of the fEmEITRIRG,
over-allotment option, (HIBRRR (D
net of share issuing costs BEITRAN) 32 465,599 =
Conversion of Convertible Note &2 A 2=k 32 117,624 =
Equity-settled share-based DARR (D B aE B 2
payments EOIREN 32 44,727 =
Shares issued under share option 1R RIAEE]
scheme BEITHAR D 32 2,531 =
Shares issued upon R R 31T
incorporation Eo)aha) 32 - 59
Acquisition of additional U BEB B A R
interests in subsidiaries KRB ME R 32 (85,680) (1,000)
I — 544,801 . (941)__
Total equity at 31 December AM12831 B Ve AR 1,639,726 844,423
The notes on pages 63 to 157 form part of these financial statements. F63HEF 157 BRI B A 5wz o — =B
% o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28 E & REE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —ZEE+F+ _-A=1+—HILFEZ

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) — (AA BB TFLFR)
2007 2006
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(i3 ARETT ARETT
Operating activities ReEE
Profit before taxation BRBt A A 402,923 905,045
Adjustments for: FEER :
— interest income —FSHA 7 (38,497) (1,974)
—finance costs —REKAR 8(a) 55,091 23,170
- amortisation and depreciation —BERE 8(c) 3,324 2,976
— gain on disposal of property, —HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment Wezm 6 (83) -
— net increase in fair value of —REMEN D EH)
investment properties SR (180,352) (566,343)
— net change in fair value of derivative financial  —fT4£& & T AA)
instruments ARENEEFE 28,182 (432)
— net realised and unrealised gains on —EEEHNEERK
trading securities REBWEFE 6 (1,799) =
— gain on disposal of a jointly controlled entity ~ —tH& LRI B RS 5(a) (140,765) =
— equity-settled share-based — R BEEEROMNZK
payments 31 44,727 -
Operating profit before changes in EELELEHA
working capital MR 172,751 362,442
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M),/ m (535,538) 176,024
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JEUER R R EAth
other receivables FEER D/ (hn) 9,709 (316,270)
Increase in prepaid land costs TR LA A AN (132,776) -
Increase in pledged deposits EHREFIEM (138,809) (5,256)
Increase in trade and other payables, JERERRR - R FK
and accruals BIRERLEM 24,008 51,947
Decrease in receipts in advance BRI (176,040) (278,696)
Increase in rental and other deposits HEREMIZSIEM 174 6,928
Cash used in operations LEHANES (776,521) (2,881)
PRC income tax paid AL e (32,897) (10,717)
Net cash used in operating activities BEEHHANELTE (809,418) (13,598)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —ZFEE+F+ _-A=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) (A B FTIR)

2007 2006
Note RMB’000 RMB000
FizE ARETRT ARETFT
Investing activities REED
Expenditure on investment properties BEMENZ L (72,634) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERK 16 (4,814) (641)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE « BERSE
plant and equipment PS8 110 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEHIBEAR @ MKEGHEE 39 (88,487) -
Expenditure on investment properties under ~ ZEERRENE
development BZ - (171,336)
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries UEEHTB L Al FEEIMER (85,680) (1,000)
Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity I AR EE (173,917) -
Proceeds from disposal of a jointly HEXRZEHERMENE
controlled entity 314,682 -
Purchase of trading securities BABEEH (2,830) =
Proceeds from sale of trading securities HEBERSFMEHE 896 -
Interest received EHFIE 38,497 774
Net cash used in investing activities RETBDANBFE (74177) _______ (172,203 __
Financing activities AEEE
Drawdown of bank loans REURITER 1,051,698 103,000
62 Repayment of bank loans BERRITER (732,001) (29,200)
Repayment of Loan Note BEENEE 26(c) (126,673) -
Pledged deposits for long-term bank loans RBFTEROERTR (10,053) =
Proceeds from issuance of Convertible Note ~ EfTA/AREE R EHZE
and Loan Note RS E - 156,470
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BIAROMEHIE 468,130 59
Proceeds from issuance of Senior Note BABREZERMENE 25(b) 645,455 -
Interest paid ERFE (40,814) (13,943)
Net cash generated from financing activities FBEEFEEHRLFE 1255742 216,386
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ BERBESZEVMNLINFE 372,147 30,585
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEHNTE (6,586) (2,792)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1A1ANEERBESZEYN 31,540 3,747
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 531 BV ERBEEZEEN 897101 31,540
Major non-cash transaction FEFRERH
During the year ended 31 December 2006, one of the group’s minority HZE2006F 12 A3 HILFE » AEBEEF—
shareholders settled an amount of RMB36,047,000 with the group by HOHBRRBBLRELAEETAEEN—IE
transferring an investment property which was previously sub-leased to TEYE - MAEEFEARE36,047,0007T
the group. HIEHE ©
The notes on pages 63 to 157 form part of these financial statements. F63HEF 1657 BEMHIEB AP SRR A —30
4o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

1 ORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL

1 AL A R A Yy e

STATEMENTS
(a) Principal place of business (a) FEEZHEihZ
Hong Long Holdings Limited (the “company”) is a company EEEBRARAR(ARAR]D A
incorporated and domiciled in the Cayman Islands. Its — R 2 B S 5 A A LA R
principal place of business is at 8/F., Hong Long Building, MARENRR  TEEXEHE
Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, 518067, the MR EAREFME(F R
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and has its registered AUl ErEEREBEREKRNES
office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, 1 (& 4 : 518067) + i = it i
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. E AR Cricket Square ' Hutchins
Drive * PO Box 2681 * George Town *
Grand Cayman KY1-1111 - the Cayman
Islands °
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) fREIBRMENELE

Pursuant to a reorganisation of the company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “group”) which
was completed on 31 January 2007 to rationalise the group’s
structure in preparation for the public listing of the company's
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the company became
the holding company of the subsidiaries comprising the
group. The shares of the company were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 22 February 2007 (the “Listing Date”). Details
of the reorganisation are set out in the prospectus dated 8
February 2007 issued by the company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007 comprise the company and its subsidiaries.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the group adopted
reverse acquisition accounting, rather than following its
legal form, in the preparation of its financial statements. The
directors considered that Hong Long Properties (Shenzhen)
Company Limited is the accounting parent until 31 January
2007.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions, were eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
were eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only
to the extent that there was no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2

FEE ORI

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the group and the company. Information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements are discussed
in note 3.

Basis of presentation of the financial statements

Unless otherwise indicated, the financial statements is
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest
thousand, which is the functional and reporting currency of
the group. It is prepared on the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 2(f));

- financial instruments classified as trading securities
(see note 2(d)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(e)).

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FEFFBORBEE (8)

(b)

(c)

Basis of presentation of the financial statements (Cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 42.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control
exists when the group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2

EEE BRI (4]

(c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Cont’d)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the company. Minority interests in the results of the
group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the
year between minority interests and the equity shareholders
of the company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority's
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and
any further losses applicable to the minority, are charged
against the group’s interest except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make
additional investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the group’s interest is allocated
all such profits until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the group has been recovered.

Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance
with notes 2(l), (m), (n) or (o) depending on the nature of the
liability.

In the company's balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &Hr#55) -

UAEETTIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FEFFBORBEE (8)

(d)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The group’s and the company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques
whose variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below.

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends
or interest earned on these investments as these are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out in notes
2(t)(iii) and 2(t)(iv).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

(d)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 9  FEGIHHRME(H)
(e) Derivative financial instruments (e) #TEEMTE

(f)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is charged immediately to profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(t)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 2(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(h).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FEFFBORBEE (8)

(f)

(g)

Investment property (Cont’d)

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is classified as investment property
under development and stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2(i)) until construction or development is
complete, at which time it is reclassified as investment
property at fair value. Any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation (see below) and impairment losses (see note
2(i).

- buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the directors consider
impracticable to split the cost into leasehold land and
buildings; and

- other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

(f)

(g)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D) 2  FEGFBURME (&)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) (g) M- MENRZE (E)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of WENHEABEAEEGFAIFERAS
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual HAMSE % ~ R AR BTE B MR
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their AR EAFIESRE (E )T E
estimated useful lives as follows: UNNE
= Buildings situated on Over the shorter of the — [UAHEE gz 0PN

leasehold land unexpired term of lease T EREF JeE i G
and their estimated A k5T
useful lives, Al A HA
being no more REEE -
than 40 years FRSEAK A B
after the date TiBB 40 F
of completion
= Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the — HEXfE &R E A
unexpired term EHAEE k5T
of lease and their Al AR HA
70 estimated useful lives, (THEHE204F)
being no more MR &

than 20 years

= Furniture, fixtures and 5 years - RE -®KE 5 4F
equipment L

= Motor vehicles 5 years - A®E 5 4F
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment W% - RERREER SO H
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated A{EAFETE - ZE B K AR
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is AEEENST D ZEDE - B3
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its DHFRITE - BEMAFERFHR
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. HEEME (NG ) BEER -

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
Annual Report 2007 —Z &+ FF3R




Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FHEEEBORBEE (5

(h) Leased assets

(i) Classification of leased assets

Assets that are held by the group under leases which
transfer to the group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 2(f)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the group, or
taken over from the previous lessee, or at the
date of construction of those buildings, if later.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2

E R BOREE (1)

(h)

Leased assets (Cont’'d)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(i).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property (see note 2(f)).
Information on accounting policies for land held under
operating leases for development for sale is provided in
accounting policy note 2(j)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FHEEEBORBEE (5

(h) Leased assets (Cont'd)

(iv)

Amortisation of leasehold land

The cost of acquiring land held under operating leases
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. If the property is in the course of development,
the amortisation charge is included as part of the costs
of the property under development. In all other cases
the amortisation charge for the period is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Investments in trade and other current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D) 2 FEGEIEORME ()
(i)  Impairment of assets (Cont’d) (i) BERMEGE)
(i) Impairment of receivables (Cont'd) (i) JEME AR E (E)

74

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of impairment losses is limited
to the asset's carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 EREFBORME (8)

(i) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- investments in subsidiaries;

- property, plant and equipment; and

- investment properties under development.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2

EEE BRI (4]

(i

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FEFFBORBEE (8)

(i)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories in respect of property development activities are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value, except for
the land portion which is accounted for as set out in note 2(h)
(iv). Cost and net realisable values are determined as follows:

(i) Properties for future development and under development
for sale

The cost of properties for future development and
under development for sale comprises specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses and
borrowing costs capitalised (see note 2(v)). Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

(ii) Completed properties held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by the
group, cost is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development project,
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less costs
to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the properties to their
present location and condition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts (see note 2(i)).

(i

(k)

FE

KR EDEBHTEERA
RASRFEME HREEAE
HESR DB 2 200 (V) BT BB EL 21
LHBHBI o AR ERFE
HEFRMT :

() RAKEER ML &R F
/ES

ARFERFHENE RS
W3 B AN R I SROE B9 A
AR - BIE KRB
A REFFHERA - MH R
HE TEREGEZRER
REReBEERA (R =E
2(v)) » AJBBFEIEGHH
EER A7 TRA R
EMERELHNEA -

(i) FFEHENERT Y

ERAKERENERTY
¥ HREHNWENEA
T ERRELL P 5 FL ey 5
AT RN 2 ARFABEAAS o ]
B FEEMG N EER T
EMERELHNEA -

FEHENERTYENK
AEERARBRA - T
RAREMEFEZEERE
B NOIR REFTEE AE B o

L R R e L At FE UK R

JRE K B 3R Rk EL UK SRR R A R
BERER HEREHEAEARRE
HFREREBRATBEHBAR(RK
FE2(i) - B ER R BRI A LT
RENSEETEBERNEEE
REEPEFELTEABIRIN
FEZEBERT - EURER G R A
BRI BRI B B AT BB AR
(RFFEE2(3)) ©

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 AR A 7

Annual Report 2007 —ZZ2 &+ FF 3R




78

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2

EEE BRI (4]

U]

(m)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which do not contain an equity component
are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the
convertible notes is measured at fair value and presented
as part of derivative financial instruments (see note 2(e)).
Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognised
as the derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and derivative
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured
in accordance with note 2(e). The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the note is redeemed, any difference between the
amount paid and the carrying amounts of both components is
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 EREFBORME ()

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Warrants

Warrants issued by the company that will be settled by
other than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
company’s own equity instruments is a derivative financial
instrument. Warrants classified as a derivative financial
instrument are recognised at their fair values at the date
of issue. Changes in fair values in subsequent periods are
recognised through profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities, measured in
accordance with note 2(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, annual bonuses and staff welfare are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the group. WWhere payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 Mt st

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &A#55) » AN ERHETSR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2

EEE BRI (4]

(q)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iif)

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour
rules and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred, to the extent that
they are not capitalised as investment properties under
development and/or properties under development for
sale.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using a valuation technique,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) + AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FEFFBORBEE (8)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2

E R BOREE (1)

(r)

Income tax (Cont’d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 EREFBORME (8)

(r) Income tax (Cont’d)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the company or the group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
company or the group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 EEEIBORME ()

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. \Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(s)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FEEEBORBEE (8)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Cont’d)

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the group and the company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

(t)  Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

(1) Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised in
profit or loss when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyers. The
group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the properties
are completed and delivered to the buyers. Revenue
from sale of properties excludes business tax and
other sales related taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the balance sheet as receipts in
advance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2

EEE R BORBEE (81

(t)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned. Revenue excludes business tax or
other sales related taxes.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FEEEBORBEE (8)

(u)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(u)

(v)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2

EEE R BORBEE (81

(w)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the group if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the group or
exercise significant influence over the group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the group;

the group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the group or a joint venture
in which the group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the group or the group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the group or of any entity
that is a related party of the group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2 FEEFBORBEE (8)

(x)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the group that
is engaged either in providing projects or services (business
segment), or in providing projects or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the group’s internal financial reporting
system, the group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the
purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,
corporate and financing expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

WAL T T R

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs and
Interpretations that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the group and the company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a
result of these developments. However, as a result of the adoption
of HFKRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and the amendment
to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures,
there have been some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements
include expanded disclosure about the significance of the group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising
from those instruments, compared with the information previously
required to be disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation. These disclosures are provided
throughout these financial statements, in particular in note 33.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital and
the group’s and the company's objectives, policies and processes
for managing capital. These new disclosures are set out in note
32(e).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have any
material impact on the classification, recognition and measurement
of the amounts recognised in the financial instruments.

The group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 43).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

TURNOVER

B W

The principal activities of the group are property development and
property leasing in the PRC.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties and rental
income and management fee during the year net of business
tax and other sales related taxes and discounts allowed, after
eliminating intra-group transactions.

Sales of properties HEMZE
Rental income and management fee HeWAREEER

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY/
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

AEENEIZEBHET BN EY XA
BRYERE -

EEFRNERHEBANBRZRNAEF
EANHEEMERARBS KA RER
ERWA (BEMBREERREMHEFR
BRI °

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
362,933 500,148
48,744 20,892
411,677 521,040

H A 3 ] e o R B R
ESIE

(a) On 9 November 2007, the group disposed of its 50%
equity interest in Trisum Investment Limited (“Trisum”)
to an independent third party for a consideration of
RMB314,682,000. Trisum was acquired by the group in
August 2007 for a consideration of RMB150,000,000. A gain
of RMB140,765,000 resulted in the disposal.

(b) In 2006, the group disposed of its properties under
development, Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park,
for a consideration of RMB328,356,000. RMB80,000,000
was settled in 2006 and the remaining consideration of
RMB248,356,000 has been settled over three instalments
during 2007. A gain of RMB120,053,000 resulted in the

(a)  M2007F11 898 @ NEB B
VE=FHEEREREERRA
A ([ &% ) RI50% M AR - (B
A AR 314,682,0007T - ERMA
AEER 2007 F8 AUREBARKE
150,000,000 7T 42 fE - & W A
AR 140,765,000 7T °

(b) 2006 FEA @ ANEE L EHER
FYESESREIER  BRA
AR #328,356,0007C °c EF AR
#80,000,000 7T 2 74 2006 G AJELK
i Mg N AR 248,356,000 0K
BEFAIR 2007 F5 = HHE - B

disposal. Iz A A% 120,053,000 7T °
OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME HAb (F54H) W2 35
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARETT
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE - BE X
plant and equipment B 83 _
Net realised and unrealised gains BEFHFNEEH R
on trading securities REH WG T8 1,799 -
Net exchange (losses)/gains EX (E518) W55 (26,490) 2,162
(24,608) 2,162
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

7  OTHER REVENUE 7 HAbA

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARKETTT

Compensation income EEEUA - 1,390
Interest income FIBUA 38,497 1,974
Others HAh 1,979 404
40,476 3,768
8  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8 BRAHhEA

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRBRTEAE MR, (GEA) -
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

92 (@) Finance costs (@)  BEAX
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings ARAFAZEEENRT
wholly repayable within five years ERREMEERE 20,488 13,943
Interest on other loans HEFHE 65,668 23,010
Total interest expense on financial liabilities WIEB BB AR EGER
not at fair value through profit or loss HemaEnfSBRESR 86,156 36,953
Less: interest expense capitalised as: o FIBBRERLA
investment properties under BERPIREYE
development and properties REFFLENER
under development for sale * R (31,065) (13,783)
55,091 23,170
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at interest rates ranging * EEKRAR D HIRFEMNENF6.10%
from 5.10% to 8.22% per annum (2006: from 6.14% to 6.93% per £8.22% (2006 F : F Fl £6.14% =
annum). 6.93%) TIAE AT o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

8

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)

8

BB A e A (A

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Cont'd)

Staff costs (o) BT

Equity-settled share-based payments
(note 31)
Wages, salaries and other staff costs

R (F7E31)

B
RORGH B

Including:
Retirement scheme contributions

Employees of the group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are required to participate in a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The group’s subsidiaries contribute funds which
are calculated on certain percentage of the average employee
salary as agreed by the local municipal government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
The group made contributions of RMB471,000 (2006:
RMB317,000) to the scheme during the year.

The group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the group and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the
scheme vest immediately. The group made contributions of
RMB34,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,000) (2006:
Nil) to the scheme during the year.

The group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond
the annual contributions described above.

VARR A7 s B LR £

TE - HehHEMETRA

BN E MR, GEA) : ()

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
29,352 =
13,510 4,595
42,862 4,595
505 317

REBRFPBEKINHEAREEES
Dot 75 BRI R A ) E BB SRR
Kt &l e NEBOK B R R TR A T
BRERANETFHREEIEA D LA
BEWMEBERTEER  NAEERKE
FiEE L - REAFERN AEE[A
ZarElfEH A AR 471,000 7T
(2006 : AR¥317,0007T) °

AEBERBEEB AT MEAESTEE
Bl - BIRE S B E GBI EIE RN E
BRvVATMEABEFTE(RBER
B B EABEBIURITIAE
BERNEBRHRIERARTE - BEBEARBESET
g AEEREEESEHBREEGH
WABBE% M &t E8l{EL K HERET
BARBUKRA LR 20,0008 T AR © HZ
TEEHONERSEENRS -  AEER
RNEENRZTEELENERBARE
34,000 7t (494857 36,000 % 7T ) (2006
FomE) o

B Lt i B HFRID - AR BB E %
ERHEE B M E AR IRTEFIH
BfE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

8  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D) 8  FrBimrHAl (%)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Cont'd) BREADSFE MR, (FHA) : (4&)
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
©  Otheritems (c) BEEE
Amortisation of leasehold land TAE L hBees 2,261 3,041
Less: amounts capitalised as: B SREERMER
— investment properties under —BRPREYHE
development - (305)
— properties under development —FHEMNER
for sale EES (977) (1,452)
1,284 1,284
Depreciation e 2,040 1,692
Total amortisation and depreciation R AT E 3,324 2,976
Auditor's remuneration ZEEN N
— audit services — BNz 2,015 809
— other services — H A AR 7S 330 47
Operating lease charges in respect of ERYIEEE
sub-leased properties HEEH 9,915 10,690
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 161,261 246,872
Rental income from investment properties & & ¥ENFAEUA (33,397) (3,405)
Rental income from sub-leased properties ~ EFRYEENFAES YA (15,347) (17,487)
Gross rental income BIESUA (48,744) (20,892)
Less: direct outgoings (note (i) B RS (ML) 15,733 11,009
(33,011) (9,883)
Contingent rental income SIS UA (618) (108)

Note:

(i) Direct outgoings represent operating lease charges in respect

of sub-leased properties and management fee expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

9  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 9 HAEBREFANIER
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HFEBRERAMBIEES:
represents:
2007 2006
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Current tax AEAFR IR
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax ZANGFE B3
for the year TS B 41,822 43,468
Provision for Land Appreciation N FE + s I (E F
Tax for the year 98,291 78,360
140,113 121,828
Deferred tax IR IR
Origination of temporary. TREENES
differences 12,308 84,951
152,421 206,779

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for as the
group does not have estimated assessable profits in Hong
Kong. Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is computed
according to the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.
The applicable income tax rates of the subsidiaries within the
group were ranging from 15% to 33% throughout the year
(2006: from 15% to 33%).

Land Appreciation Tax is levied on properties developed by
the group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based on the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
lease charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures.

RERSHERABRELEENRL IR
Bl REBBASMRSEE R EBRER
BB HEMFTEH o

MR AL EREB I TG EEH
WEA - R R h B S PTG B AR S 24 -
PR EATE R EE TR IR R B AR R
A RBOIAE - AEBEHOHB QAR
FRBEABTESH RN T15% E=33%
(20064 : NF15% £33%) °

AEEHEEMBEROMEAZ L HEE
HEIE A B0% 2 60% K RAET KA L it
BER  REABRAM - LHIBERTD
B EMEMSRBRANHREX (21
T AENES T EEKARAE
MEHRFA)FE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

9

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(ConT’D)

AR AR R NI B AL (A)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (Cont’d)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People's Congress passed the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the PRC (“new tax law") which took effect on 1
January 2008. The PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for
all enterprises.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Implementation Rules for
Grandfathering Relief under the New Tax Law (“Notice 39")
issued by The State Council on 26 December 2007, effective
from 1 January 2008, the existing preferential income tax rate
of 15% pertaining to certain subsidiaries within the group
established in the PRC will gradually transit to applicable tax
rate of 25%.

The enactment of the new tax law is not expected to have any
financial effect on the amounts accrued in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of current tax payable.

Further under the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008, non-
resident enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment or place
of business in the PRC but whose relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or a place of
business in the PRC, will be subject to withholding tax at
the rate of 10% (unless reduced by treaty) on various types
of passive income such as dividends derived from sources
within the PRC.

The group is in the process of assessing the impact of the
New Tax Law regarding this withholding tax and has yet to
conclude the impact on the group’s results of operations and
financial position on its initial application.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1= R ER A A
Annual Report 2007 —ZZ 5 F3R
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

9

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Cont’D)

9 EAAHEERAMFER (4])

(b)

Reconciliation between actual tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at 15% in Shenzhen
Tax effect of different tax rates
in other locations
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of unused tax
losses not recognised
Land Appreciation Tax
Others

Actual tax expense

BT AT A

BRI E16% 1 EH
BRI AT A R R S IR

£ ELA AN R A5 3 4 8 A9
BIREE

BIAF B AR BIRR &
NRIHIR S KB IR R 2
AT LARER B BN
BIEEE

IR (AR

Hith

BEBIES

(b) ZEABRHENBIRST HEEE

A E AR
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
402,923 905,045
60,438 135,757
3,341 2,956
(63) (16)
4,498 690
660 346
83,547 66,606
= 440
152,421 206,779
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSR)

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10 F=HE4
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the HRIEEBATEAE 161 R ENES
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ST -
Basic salaries,
housing
allowances
and other
allowances
and benefits
in kind Retirement Equity-settied
HEgS scheme share-based
Directors’  FEE}2B5  Discretionary contributions payments 2007
fees EfEHR bonuses Bk Subtotal URAALE Total
EEHe BUET  BERL GEER A5 ERNEH @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETL ARETR
(note)
(i)
Executive directors Yi7ES
Mr Yunshu ZENG e 1,500 - - 19 1519 - 1519
Mr Sheng ZENG BB 1,29 - - 9 1,308 - 1,308
Ms Qingdong YE EERRL 600 - - 9 609 3882 4491
Mr Junxin OUYANG 1S i 300 - - 6 306 1,583 1,859
Dr Qinchun HAN B2E6T 1,192 - - 1 1,203 - 1,203
4891 - - 54 4,945 5,435 10,380
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Drdunll REL 133 - - - 133 475 608
Mr Ngai Lam
CHEUNG TR 133 - - - 133 475 608
Ms Wei Fang LIN HERTL 133 - - - 133 475 608
399 - - - 399 1,425 1,824
Non-gxecutive ez
directors
Mr Huagiao ZHANG FlthErE 44 - - - 4 3,281 3325
Mr Junyu CHEN RERTAE
[resigned on 16 (EM20075
Qctober 2007] 10A1688HE) 3 - - - 3 - 3%
80 - - - 80 3,281 3,361
Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1E R GR A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) » AN EETIR)

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D) 10 FEFHEE (4)
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIEEBATEAIFE 161 EFIEENES
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Cont'd) MemT : (&)
Basic
salaries,
housing
allowances
and other
allowances and
benefits in kind Retirement
2XEe scheme
Directors” EEEE Discretionary contributions 2006
fees Hi2eR bonuses IR Total
£k BER B SRR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Executive directors HirES
Mr Yunshu ZENG BEREE - 165 235 11 an
Mr Sheng ZENG LHEE = 59 24 6 306
Ms Qingdong YE EERL - 180 120 6 306
Mr Junxin OUYANG iyt - 63 47 4 114
Dr Qinchun HAN BRARL = = = = =
= 467 643 21 1,137
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the Mz - ZERIBEERERNATRBESEZE T
directors under the company’s share option scheme. The value of EENRRENGEE RSB E
these share options is measured according to the group’s accounting EEIBENEESBIARGD AEE
policies for equity-settled share-based payments as set out in note HEWMRR S BOR (0 FE 2(g)
2(q)(iii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to (i) Fr#R) 51 8 - MABIBZEHE @ 8%
reserve amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity REEBRTH UM T IE H IEAR T A # [
instruments are forfeited prior to vesting. BEFETRIRRENEE o
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and BEEZEZEYRANNES(BIEREL
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share REENETEIERLEE) HBEERE
option” in the directors’ report and note 31. EeRa [ | —EBRHES] -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 wmeMae AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2006: hEZgmMEeALTzF  HRERA
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10. (20065 : =%) BES - HleRK=E
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three 103 % - Hep =4 (2006 F : @) AL
(2006: two) individuals are as follows: BN S AREEAT ¢
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARKETT

Salaries and other emoluments e REMEE 1,354 264
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAL 512 236
Equity-settled share-based payments VARG AR 4 B LR Y ST 3R 10,350 =
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIE IR 28 12

12,244 512
The emoluments of the three (2006: two) individuals with the HE#=%(2006%F : ME)MEZmHA
highest emoluments are within the following bands: THMSEENT

Number of individuals

100 EE#E
2007 2006
Nil to RMB1,000,000 AREZILE ARK1,000,0007T - 2
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR#2,000,001TE
AR #2,500,0007T 1 -
RMB3,500,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR#3,5600,0017E
AR #4,000,0007T 1 -
RMB6,000,001 to RMB6,500,000 AR#6,000,0017TE
AR #6,500,0007T 1 —
During the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006, no B % 2007 F 5 2006 F 12 A 31 B IE A&
emoluments have been paid by the group to the directors, senior FEAN AEEHERNES SRITK
executives or any of the five highest individuals as an inducement to A B I &= H A A L 3B
join or upon joining the group or as compensation for loss of office. T ERRSIREMAREE LN A
IR B B A SR SRR B A 0 o
12 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 12 A2 W) RE 25 B ROREAS i 1H
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the AAFEERREEGEENEEAR
company includes a loss of RMB62,110,000 (2006: Nil) which has # 62,110,000 7T (2006 4F : ) HYEHE
been dealt with in the financial statements of the company. ZEBEERAR BN HREPEE
13  DIVIDENDS 13 BB
No dividend has been declared or approved by the group during the REZ 2007 F % 2006 F 12 A31 HIEW
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006. BFEER @ NEEIES RS EFE R
BB o
Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1= R ER A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

14 FRAER

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company
of RMB250,685,000 (2006: RMB698,969,000) and the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year of 1,036,325,000 (2006: 1,036,100,000). The weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year ended 31
December 2006 and for the period from 1 January 2007 to 12
March 2007 is based on the assumption that 1,036,100,000
ordinary shares were in issue throughout that year/period.

Weighted average number of shares (basic)

Weighted average number of shares at 1 January
Effect of share options exercised

Weighted average number of shares (basic)
at 31 December

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2007 is based on the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the company of RMB250,685,000
and the weighted average number of shares of 1,060,772,000
shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of shares (diluted)

(a)

A1 A1 BRBRD a9k
BEITERIREN S E

12 A 31 B A BRD hnag 39 8 (AK)

(b)

BREFEBF

BREAXARBFNTBEAKF
ERAAREZRREMNS
7 A B ¥ 250,685,000t (2006
& AR #698,969,0007T) & KA
RAREERNE TR H I
F15211,036,325,000 8% (2006 4F :
1,036,100,000% ) 5T & - R&E =
20064 12 A31 B IEFE K& 2007
F1H18E20074F3A 128 (L H5RE
NEBEITRMD B METFHEHTIIR
BEREIRZEE HHEANBET
1,036,100,000 A& L@ MaT & ©

R t7 piE-F 192 (BA)
2007
'000
T
1,036,100
225
1,036,325

BREFER

HE2007F12 A31 BIEEENE
AR R F TR B AN A AR R
JIE i % FI A R ¥ 250,685,000 T &
A& 17 hn 4 F 359 21 1,060,772,000 &
A8 ERWIT

B2 g2 (4% )

2007
‘000
T
Weighted average number of shares at 1 January 1 A1 BRBRD b9k 1,036,100
Deemed issue of ordinary shares under WAR BIRR AR ST &
share option scheme for nil consideration E(EERT T B 24,672
Weighted average number of shares (diluted) 7®12 A 31 BHR%D
at 31 December IniETEH S (EE) 1,060,772
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT’D) 14 HREF ()
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Cont’d) (b) BEREBEZRF(E)
For the Warrants granted during the year (note 25(b)), there BLE RN H AR E (FI5E25(b) M E -
is no dilutive effect on earnings per share upon deemed E’W)ﬁﬁf’jﬁﬁfﬁiﬂ HEBRAFELS
exercise. We assume the present status of condition remains %%— AR ARBER B GERRRE
unchanged and thus the conditions of reset and adjustment & IﬁﬁIﬂEL@(E SRR 2 G -
are not met.
No disclosure of diluted earnings per share for the year ended HZE2006F12 A31BILEE » AR &
31 December 2006 has been made as there were no potential MARITERBESEERG - Bt &
dilutive shares outstanding. BERE SRR -
15 SEGMENT REPORTING 15 Ar#ft
Segment information is presented in respect of the group’s DESERHE AN EBEE RE D 2
business and geographical segments. Business segment Hl o RS 5 0 & K B 7N 5 B A A 55
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because VBERERAER BLEBIDBER
this is more relevant to the group's internal financial reporting. WEAFTEREFNX - AR AEE R E
No segment information is presented in respect of the group’s ZEBRZRPELE  WHEDBE
102 geographical segments as the group’s principal activities are largely PHE R EB A E D 225 ©

carried out in the PRC.

Business segments E S

The group comprises the following main business segments: REBE B T EZEHE D FRAER :

- Property development : development and sale of - DERE  REREEDE
properties

- Property leasing . leasing of investment properties — DEHE : HEREMER
and sub-leased properties and [ VR EYNErla
provision of related BAEE RS

management service

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)
15 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’D) 15 AribdEiy ()
Business segments (Cont’d) o (&)
Inter-
segment
Property Property elimination
development leasing 282 Consolidated
e LEZEN OEEE ] e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%BTR AR®BTRT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2007 EHZE2007F12A31HILFE
Revenue from external customers HNREFEUA 362,933 48,744 - 411,677
Segment results DEBEE 197,424 25,912 - 223,336
Net increase in fair value of REVMZENRRERN
investment properties N - 180,352 - 180,352
Unallocated operating income ReEDEEREE
and expenses WA KRR 82,508
Profit from operations 4 A 486,196
Net change in fair value of derivative ~ $T4 4t T AH)
financial instruments DA ENEEFE (28,182)
Finance costs BUE A (55,091)
Profit before taxation PR3 A A 402,923
Income tax Fiis®t (152,421)
Profit for the year AER R 250,502
Amortisation and depreciation BERITE 2,835 426
At 31 December 2007 72007%12831H
Segment assets DEEE 1,485954 1,318,871 (42,013) 2,762,812
Unallocated assets REEDENEE 769,243
Total assets BEE 3,532,055
Segment liabilities PEBEE 236,819 174,380 (42,013) 369,186
Unallocated liabilities REDENEE 1,523,143
Total liabilities BaE 1,892,329
Capital expenditure incurred FTEEREARST 572,503 73,114
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

15 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’D) 15 ZrEfdd ()
Business segments (Cont’d) =Ko (&)
Inter-
segment
Property Property elimination
development leasing 282 Consolidated
e MIZERE EOpi% RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETrt ARETRT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2006 HZ2006F 128310 ILFE
Revenue from external customers HMREFIRA 500,148 20,892 = 521,040
Segment results DEELE 355,901 2,924 = 358,825
Net increase in fair value of BREMERNRARER
investment properties N - 566,343 - 566,343
Unallocated operating income REEDFEREE
and expenses AKX 2,615
104 Profit from operations ST 927,783
Net change in fair value of derivative TSR T AR
financial instruments RAEMES)FEE 432
Finance costs BER A (23,170)
Profit before taxation R A58 A A 905,045
Income tax FTiSt (206,779)
Profit for the year RE A 698,266
Amortisation and depreciation BERITE 2,559 417
At 31 December 2006 742006%F12831H
Segment assets DEEE 595,125 1,110,570 (75,988) 1,629,707
Unallocated assets REEDEMEE 119,767
Total assets BEE 1,749,474
Segment liabilities DEEE 207,906 32,365 (75,988) 164,283
Unallocated liabilities REDERNEE 740,768
Total liabilities BAafE 905,051
Capital expenditure incurred FTEARNERT H 279,702 214,113
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 M3 - W=k
The group
AEE
Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
own use Leasehold equipment Motor
B{EBA  improvements HE #E vehicles Total
BF HEEE REE AE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2007 #2007F1 818 3,470 2,227 1,579 4,267 11,543
Acquired from subsidiaries BERBRRES - - 828 540 1,368
Additions R - 1,625 1,041 2,148 4,814
Disposals T - - - (620) (620)
At 31 December 2007 M2007F12A318 3470 382  3M8 6335 17,105
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
105
At 1 January 2007 #2007F1 818 (738) (1,250) (887) (2,523) (5,398)
Acquired from subsidiaries BERBRRES - - (116) (372) (488)
Charge for the year AEEHE (172) (530) (342) (996) (2,040)
Written back on disposal &R - - - 593 593
At 31 December 2007 m2007F12A318 | ( _9](_)) ________ (_1_,7_8_0_) ________ (J,_3_4_52 o _(3,_2??)_ _______ (_7_,:23_3_)_ i
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2007 2007128310 2,560 2,072 2,103 3,037 9,772
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

16  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 16 Y3 -~ W Mokt (48)
The group
AEE
Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
own use Leasehold equipment Motor

H{EEA  improvements BB RE vehicles Total

BF HEXE E HE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Cost: B

At 1 January 2006 #2006F1 818 3,470 2,145 1,446 3,841 10,902

Additions R - 82 133 426 641

At 31 December 2006 20066128318 3470 . 2227 1579 4207 11,543

Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE

At 1 January 2006 #2006%1 818 (567) (751) 617) (1,771) (3,706)
106 Charge for the year AEEE (71) (499) (270) (752) (1,692

At 31 December 2006 2006128318 (738) (1,200 887)  (2523) (5398

Net book value: SR

At 31 December 2006 #2006%12A31H 2,732 977 692 1,744 6,145

As at 31 December 2006, the group’s buildings held for own use and 200612 431 H @ REBMNFEFHE

on lease of 40 years in the PRC were pledged against a bank loan. BERAREERRIOFHNEFEERTR

The pledge has been released during the year and details of which TUBRITER - ZEBHENFANER

are set out in note 26. R M HRE IR R BT 5 26 ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 16 3 - W= Bt (8)
The company
b N/NG|
Leasehold
improvements
HEHEE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2006, 720061 H18 ~ 20065F12831H
31 December 2006 and 20071 H18
1 January 2007 -
Additions nE 530
At 31 December 2007 7200712 H31H B30
Accumulated depreciation: HEIE
At 1 January 2006, #200641 718 - 2006412731 107
31 December 2006 and 20071 H18
1 January 2007 -
Charge for the year REEHE (63)
At 31 December 2007 ®M2007%12A318 63)
Net book value: BREDFE ©
At 31 December 2007 72007412 H31H 467
At 31 December 2006 7200612 H31H =
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 B JEg 2wl B R 2
The company
VAN
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARKETTT

Unlisted investments, at cost JEETIRE © TBAKA 80,082 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR P A RIFIE 829,832 =
Less: impairment loss on amounts B EYHE A Bl 5KIER
due from subsidiaries REEE (561) =
909,353 —
Except for an amount of RMB40,234,000 which is interest-bearing M — A R#40,234,000 7T X IB IR
at the 1-year RMB benchmark lending rate as determined from time ARBITBETHEETN —FHARK
to time by the People’s Bank of China per annum, the balances EREENRE B BB ATINE
with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and expected to be SRTVEEI - B RTEER —F&UE -

recovered after more than one year..

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which TREHINETBEFEREFES  BE
108 principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the group. FAaBEHNBRARMNGES - B 2AE5HH
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. AN BT MR D FB R A E AR o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

17  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 17 B A KRR (4)
Percentage
Place of Issued/ of equity

Name of incorporation/ Place of paid up attributable Principal Legal

company establishment operation capital to the company activities form

DNREH ML AL E 2 BT/ BHER AQEEEEZESL EEBEHR SEEF R

Direct Indirect
B 23
% %

Access The British Shenzhen, the US$10,000 100 - Investment Private
Achievement Virgin Islands People’s 10,0003 7T holding limited
Limited REELRE Republic B R liability

of China company
(“the PRC") ThA
HEE A RILANE BRAR]
( THEL ) A

Hong Long Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB299,000,000 - 100 Property Wholly
Properties the PRC the PRC AR#299,000,0007T develop- foreign-
(Shenzhen) AR FRELZRYI ment and owned 109
Company property enter-
Limited investment prise

BEE ORI MERE EINEE )
BRAR] KERE %

Shenzhen Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB28,000,000 - 86 Property Limited
Yinghua the PRC the PRC  AK#28,000,0007T develop- liability
Development AR REEY| ment company
Company YRR BRAT]
Limited

RYITHREE %

ERBBEAT

Huizhou Huizhou, Huizhou, RMB20,000,000 - 100 Property Limited
Yintaida the PRC the PRC  AKR#20,000,0007C (Note develop- liability
Company B B (@) ment company
Limited (st pRE BRAF

BN IRGE (a))

BEXARRAA

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 AR A 7
Annual Report 2007 —EZ+FF3f
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

17  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 17 W EA R KRR (4)
Percentage
Place of Issued/ of equity

Name of incorporation/ Place of paid up attributable Principal Legal

company establishment operation capital to the company activities form

NEEHE ML P A BT/ BHER AAEEEEZESL FEEHR EEFR

Direct Indirect
B i3
% %

Shenzhen Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB10,680,000 - 100 Property Limited
Hong Long the PRC the PRC  AKR*10,680,0007C (Note leasing liability
Commercial RELRI REREYI| (b)) and sub- company
Management (= leasing BRAE
Company (b)) MEEE
Limited PSETE

R T IR P 5
ERARAF

Zhangjiakou Hebei, Hebei, HK$20,000,000 = 100 Property Wholly

110 Centre Way the PRC the PRC 20,000,000/ 7C develop- foreign-
Real Estate (acquired in FREAE ment owned
Development October LESEEE enter-
Company 2007) prise
Limited B L HEBE

RRARE (72007 %
FEiERE 10 AYEE)

BRAF]

Meizhou Meizhou, Meizhou, RMB5,000,000 - 100 Property Limited
Hong Long the PRC the PRC  AR®5,000,0007T develop- liability
Shi Ye (acquired in B ment company
Company July 2007) YIS FEE BRAT]
Limited B
(formerly (720074
Meizhou 7RYEE)

Cai Hui
Technology
Company
Limited

1BNEEEXER
AR (REEM
MY ERRAR
NA))
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

17

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

17 e 2 v R R 2 (49)

Place of Issued/

Name of incorporation/ Place of paid up

company establishment operation capital

DNREH SEMARSL AL B A B BET/BHEX

Xingning Meizhou, Meizhou, RMB221,990,926
Hong Long the PRC the PRC AR#221,990,9267T
Property (established in A EIiE/

Development September
Company Limited ~ 2007)

P RE BN
FHEEX (A20074F9 ARKAL)

BRAR]

Huizhou Huizhou, Huizhou, RMB20,000,000
Xing Wo the PRC The PRC  AK#20,000,0007T
Property (established in A EIZE/

Development November
Company Limited  (2007)

BMTEAEME FEEM
HEBRLA (R2007411 ARXAL)

Notes:

(a) The percentage of equity attributable to the company changed from

51% to 100% in October 2007.
(b) The percentage of equity attributable to the company changed from

94% to 100% in March 2007.

Percentage
of equity
attributable Principal Legal
to the company activities form
AATEEEZASL FEEK SEEF R
Direct Indirect
B 23
% %

- 100 Property Wholly
develop- foreign-
ment owned

YRR enter-
prise

S EBE
%

- 100 Property Limited
develop- liability
ment company

LEEE BRAT]
P&t

(a) 20074107 AAREIEEZRE D
EEER 51% 224 100% ©

(b)  MR2007F3A ' AAREEESED LA
94% K A100% ©

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 AR A 7
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18

e </E S

At 1 January ®1A1R

Transferred from investment properties ERARRPIREYE
under development

Additions NE

Net increase in fair value R EEINFEE

At 31 December Mm12HA31H

(a)

(b)

(c)

All investment properties of the group were revalued as at 31
December 2007 by an independent firm of surveyors, Knight
Frank Petty Limited, who has among their staff Fellows of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of properties being valued, on an
open market value basis calculated by reference to the net
rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

The analysis of fair value of investment properties is as
follows:

In PRC, held on leases of
—over 50 years
— between 10 and 50 years

—AiE 50 F
—10FZEL0F

Investment properties leased out under operating leases

The group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases. Except that certain leases are with no
specific terms, all other leases run for an initial period of
one to twenty years, with an option to renew the lease after
that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None
of the leases has significant contingent elements as at 31
December 2007.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment properties are
classified as investment properties.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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R - AT SIESE R

(a)

(b)

(c)

The group

REE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETFT
1,004,500 54,300
- 904,000
72,634 38,747
180,352 7,453
1,257,486 1,004,500

REEPTA R E YA 2007 512
H31BE m#EAHRMEEYENL
BREEAORERNEE SR
BedRe 8 REENBEILASM
TR BET BT AR A RREAR
MISEE2ZERS WA FEL K
AIREHE R A ELY -

REMENRAEDHUT :

The group
REE

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETFT
1,210,506 962,000
46,980 42,500
1,257,486 1,004,500

REEEHEHENRENE

AEBRBREBECEAELAETERE
P o BRE T ML W& R IR
SN FTBEEMBONSE A —F
ZHFERRZABIGERZER - m
(BRI GRIE AT BB o B
2007F 12 A31 8 ' Z2EHEHT
BEARAREE -

FEMEREBEEHERE L H
EEMTENTERENERLTER
BREEME -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 18 #EWHE (M)

(d) The group’s total future minimum lease payments (d) AEBEREFATBROCEHEEN
under non-cancellable operating leases from investment REMFEEHRERNREBER
properties are receivable as follows: THAREWT ¢

The group
rEE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR¥ETTT

Within 1 year —FR 36,089 25,388
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 129,719 104,420
After b years AFEE 303,951 288,075
469,759 417,883
(e) Asat31 December 2006, certain investment properties of the (e) 7M2006%F12A31H @ AEEET
group were pledged against bank loans granted to the group. REMEEERRAEBRITER
The pledge has been released during the year and details of B2 o ZEHE R FRERR
which are set out in note 26. REFBEHRMTE26 © 113
(fl  In 2006, a net increase in fair value of RMB558,890,000 (f) MR2006FAN > EfFEREFKRE
resulted from revaluation of investment properties MEBRARBEMFERAR
under development, together with the carrying amount # 558,890,000 7T + # [ K E &
of investment properties held for development before AREERNKREMERTEA
revaluation of RMB 345,110,000 totalling RMB 904,000,000, R #345,110,0007C £ 5 A R ¥
were transferred to investment properties upon completion 904,000,000 7T + 7 ¥k TR B 8 43
of construction. ZREME -
19 TRADING SECURITIES 19 HE#BF
The group
AEE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBFT ARETT

Trading securities (at market value) BEEFF (ZmE)
Listed equity securities EmiRE
- outside Hong Kong —BBEIN 3,733 =

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 AR A 7
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

20 INVENTORIES 20 f#E
The group
AEE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Properties for future development and & R 2R B
under development for sale RERFYHE 927,176 86,119
Completed properties held for sale FHEHEME R T 5,684 15,873
932,860 101,992
(@)  The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in (a) BEEHEERRFAZRERSTY
properties for future development and under development for ERIFELENEE TWEANE
sale and completed properties held for sale is as follows: ELTHEREBEI AT ¢
The group
AEE
2007 2006
1 1 4 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
In PRC, held on leases of R BN REFE
— over 50 years — BB 50 F 67,811 70,235
— between 10 and 50 years —10FEL0F 4,232 4,323
72,043 74,558

(b)  The amount of properties for future development and under
development for sale expected to be recovered after more

(o) TEEIBBE—FLARAAERMNMEH

ERKRAERERTYENSES

than one year is analysed as follows: W
The group
AEE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Properties for future development and & AR PR B

under development for sale RER P 141,197 60,640

All of the other inventories are expected to be recovered
within one year.

FERbE SRR E—E R

B

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
Annual Report 2007 —Z &+ FF3R




Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

20 INVENTORIES (CONT'D)

20 FH (%)

(c) As at 31 December 2006, certain portions of the group’s
properties for future development and under development for
sale with a carrying value of RMB18,896,000 were pledged
against a bank loan drawn by an affiliated company of one of
the group’s minority shareholders. Under this arrangement,
the equity interest of that minority shareholder in that
subsidiary was held by the group as collateral. The pledge has
been released during the year.

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND PREPAID LAND COSTS

(c) 200612 A31H  AEEERE
EAARY18,896,000 CH A T
HERKFARERERRPYEARE
BAREE—FDEREA R A A
EIREAIRITE R o IBIEZZHE -
Z A DR R Z M B A R A AR
HAASEFERERR - RFEA -
ZEAEERR -

21  FEWCHR s M At B Wk > M

A - Hh AR
The group The company
rEE /NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

Trade receivables (note (a)) FEURBR SR (M 3E (a) 8,821 310,378 = =
Other receivables H b UK 80,552 6,590 = =
Loans and advances (note (b)) 5PN EI)) 179,106 55,017 24,358 =
Amount due from a director (note (c) B —REERZ (M () = 30,649 = =
Loans and receivables ER KRR 268,479 402,634 24,358 =

Derivative financial TSR T A (fi322)
instruments (note 22) 1,400 - 1,400 -
Prepayments B 249,427 86,445 - 11,915
Total trade and other receivables FEUTBR SR I EL At PR W SR 48 28 519,306 489,079 25,758 11,915
Prepaid land costs (note (d)) TAfF LA AN (FTRE () 220,620 89,128 - -
739,926 578,207 25,758 11,915

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(a) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables
with the following ageing analysis as at the balance sheet
date:

0 to 90 days 0£290H
91 days to 180 days 912180 H
181 days to 365 days 181 £ 365 H

T8 53 P A IR MR R e L At R M R TR —
Frkm -

(a) FEURRBEREKRE &
WA - R EE B ERE DT
T~

The group
REE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT

8,368 310,378
73 =
380 =
8,821 310,378

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 AR A 7
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing.

As at 31 December 2006, trade receivables include an
amount in relation to the disposal of Hong Long High
Technology Industrial Park as set out in note 5(b).

The group's credit policy is set out in note 33(a).

(b)  The loans and advances which are made to business (b)
associates are secured, bearing at interest rates ranging
from the 1-year RMB benchmark lending rate as determined
from time to time by the People’s Bank of China to 50% per
annum, and recoverable within one year.

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND PREPAID LAND COSTS 21  MEWCHR 3K B Al R ek » e TE
(Cont'D) fiF - b g A (%)
(a)  (Cont'd) (a) (#&)

JE W BR SR BR B8 3% HH H 1% 30-90 K
FI 8 o

R2006F12 A31 H » BUWERE
EERALEBESERIXEN G
B HFFIEEAMEESD) ©

AEEE A EEBEREN M FES33()

BTEBHBALINERRBRAE
BEHR  BRBRARRITEFEDTE
BEEN—FHARBEREERX
EFEF|EB0% 5T 2 A Al A —F AU
@ o

(c)  The amount due from a director disclosed pursuant to section () IREBEBHBRBEHIZE 161BHRTH
116 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: BEMEN—ZESERRAOT ¢
The group The company
TEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

Mr Sheng ZENG BRSEA - 30,649 - -
Maximum amount outstanding ~ FRAKEEFIE
during the year Hxm&E 30,649 31,583 914 =

The amount due from a director is unsecured, interest-free
and recoverable on demand.

There is no amount due but unpaid, nor any provision made
against the balance due from a director as at 31 December
2007 and 2006.

(d)  Prepaid land costs are for leasehold land held on medium to (d)
long leases in the PRC.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 22 ﬁf L H TR

The group and the company

AEBRAATE
2007 2006
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Derivative financial asset (note 21) TESmEE (FizE21)

Redemption option BEEREEEERE

of Senior Note (note 25) (Pf7E25) 1,400 =
Derivative financial liabilities (note 27) PrESman (Fw27)

Warrants (note 25) RRRHE (FzE25) 74,541 =
All the amounts of derivative financial instruments are stated at FrEtTEem T AN EHRA R B
fair values. The fair value of redemption option is determined by an R BHEEENAABTHB Y GE
independent valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, using the Hull-\White B & = FHEE R A IR A sl B A Hull-White
One-Factor financial model. BARMBEIEE -

The fair value of Warrants is determined by an independent valuer, RBEN AR EBRB Y HEMEETE
Asset Appraisal Limited, using the Black-Scholes financial model. BEEBRARFEARNTE - FRNVB

A - 117
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23 PLEDGED DEPOSITS

23 R

(a)

118

Included in pledged deposits of the group as at 31
December 2007 were deposits of RMB1,973,000 (2006:
RMB11,451,000) pledged with certain banks as guarantee
deposits for the benefit of mortgage loan facilities granted by
the banks to purchasers of the group's properties.

Included in pledged deposits of the group as at 31 December
2007 were deposits totalling RMB174,460,000 (2006:
RMB8,000,000) pledged with banks securing the group’s
bank loans as set out in note 26.

As at 31 December 2006, deposits of RMB4,658,000 was
placed with banks for the purposes of the group’s bills
payable.

As at 31 December 2006, rental deposit of RMB2,981,000
was pledged with a bank received from a tenant in respect of
an investment property.

Included in pledged deposits of the company as at 31
December 2007 were deposits totalling RMB164,406,000
(2006: Nil) pledged with banks for the subsidiaries’ bank loans
as set out in note 26.

(a)

(e)

M2007F 128318 A& B K
HERBEEE S AR 1,973,000
JL(20064F : A R ¥ 11,451,000
L) e ZERETIAE TRITET
AEBYEBE ST HIRIBEFBEAE
BIREBRSTFAZFIRT °

R 2007412 A31 H » AEBEIKA
TR EER—EH A K26/ R
TERMERTFRITEEABARE
174,460,000 T (2006 FF : AR ¥
8,000,000 7T ) K977 3K °

MN20065 128318 AERME
BmMTFEARTHNETERAEARYE
4,658,000 7T °

MN2006%F 12 A31H - B—HFP I
BN EBREEMENTERS AR
# 2,981,000 Tk T —RHERTT ©

M2007F12A318 AR 7K
TR TF 5K R B3 Bt R Y 5 26 &Y B
B A RRRITERMER FIRITH
TRa LA AR 164,406,000 7T
(2006 4F : #) °

24 Bl& RBIEEHEY

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The group The company
REE ARAH
2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Deposits with banks and RI7 R E A S RIS
other financial institutions EOPEEA 121,331 - 116,646 -
Cash at bank and in hand RAOFERRRAE 275,770 31,5640 6,289 =
397,101 31,540 122,935 —

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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25 NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS o5 JEEIHAGT EAE &
The analysis of the carrying amount of non-current interest-bearing JERNHAGT BB ZBRAEBES AT ¢
borrowings is as follows:
The group The company
rEE P NG|

2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Bank loans - secured (note 26) RITER— B (FI5E26) 400,678 = - =
Senior Note (note (b)) BREE (P17 () 555,708 - 555,708 -
956,386 — 555,708 —

(a)

(b)

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried
at amortised cost. None of the non-current interest-bearing
borrowings is expected to be settled within one year.

Senior Note

Pursuant to the offering memorandum of the company
dated 20 September 2007, the company issued 900 units of
senior note (collectively referred to as the “Senior Note”) and
81,000,000 nil-paid warrants (the “Warrants"”) for a principal
amount totalling US$90,000,000. The Senior Note was
interest-bearing at 12.5% per annum at issue and payable
semi-annually in arrears, and will mature on 3 October 2012.
Detachable from the Senior Note, each Warrant may be
exercised from the date of issue up to 2 October 2012 at an
initial exercise price, subject to certain conditions of reset and
adjustment, of HK$3.36 per ordinary share of the company.

Pursuant to a cross-currency and interest rate swap
agreement (the “Swap Agreement”) entered into between
the company and a financial institution immediately after the
said offering memorandum, the notional principal amount
of the Senior Note under the Swap Agreement deemed
to be effective at the date of issue was RMB676,845,000,
whereas the notional interest rate applicable to the Senior
Note was the 1-year RMB benchmark deposit rate as
determined from time to time by the People’s Bank of China
plus 5.3% per annum. Interest payment will be due annually
commencing on 3 October 2008.

(a)

(b)

FRA SRRV AT B E B IR B BB A
5Bk - TREINT EIEEN ARG RIEEZA
R—FREE -

BRRE

R EA A AR 2007 F9 A 20 HET
Y WEEERS - ANAAE{T900
BEMHELZR(KRBAEL
Z 4 |) %81,000,000 17 7K B3k 2
IRE(RRE])  ~"eBEEHER
90,000,000% 7t - B REBIEF
ME125%:TE - BEFFERE—
w2012 10 A3 B EIH -
BELEZEERSH - SHORKRENH
ZITREEE2012F10H28 &
METEBE(XETEECRARZ
1&HRIR) B 1% 3.36 B LR -

BB ARR A — & RSN B
MBEEBEBTHRBTINRIXER
kR ()
BEZRBEEBRHERETH
HRAERNEELAREAAR
¥ 676,845,000 T * 18 % Ri&iE
ANEZEFEABTBARRITTE
BN —FHARBEREER X
BINEFRE3% ° F B FHER
2008F 10 ABEEBEFIfN—K °
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25 NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

25

FEBP I wH B B (A

(b)

Senior Note (Cont’d)

Conditioned in the said offering memorandum, the company
is granted a redemption option such that at any time on or
after 3 October 2010, the company may redeem the Senior
Note, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the
percentage ranging from 100% to 106.25% of the principal
amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date. At any time prior to 3 October 2010, the
company may redeem the Senior Note, in whole but not in
part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the Senior Note plus the applicable premium as
of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption
date. In addition, at any time prior to 3 October 2010, the
company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount with proceeds from certain sales of the company's
equity shares, at a redemption price equal to 112.5% of the
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
the redemption date.

The Senior Note is general obligations of the company
and is senior in right of payment to any existing and future
obligations of the company expressly subordinated in right
of payment to the Senior Note, which is at least pari passu
in right of payment with all other unsecured, unsubordinated
indebtedness of the company (subject to any priority rights
of such unsubordinated indebtedness pursuant to applicable
laws). The Senior Note holder(s) are entitled to a first
priority security interest on certain collateral charged by the
company, and the Senior Note ranks effectively senior in right
of payment to unsecured obligations of the company with
respect to the value of the collateral charged by the company.

Senior Note can be analysed into the following components:

(i) Liability component for the Senior Note represents the
present value of the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the rate of interest
determined by the market instruments of comparable
credit status taken into account the business risk of
the company as well as the large amount of the Senior
Note, but without the conversion option. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 12% per
annum.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1= R ER A A
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(b)

BRRE (&)

RR il S BReR TR A &
ANARVER —TEEEIR B - AE
R 20104 10 A 3 B =k A 1 ] B
- RSN ASTEN100% 2
106.25% HY & [B18 5 hnZ & 6] 5 Hf
WIERARMFE (F) - BE2H
RED BRI - 20101083
B ATEAIESRE - AR R AREER
BEEEARSEN100% SMEE
5] B 5 &9 8 £ )5 18 DA SR FB 4R R A5 F)
B(awng)  BREZIHmMIELSEEL
R o AN - 1A2010F 10 A3 HAN
FRERE - ARARBESRAS
M 112.5% B NEEE A ERNTE
RARMFE (E) - BRIKZTiE
BAE ERERI35% ERE T RS
AARRDHIFTEFIE °

BERBRARAN —MREME X
MR Fr #HBENA R B E AR
RRIEE N B ERE S SR
BERRKREME  WESNESE
ELEARRNRNA KM EERIE
RBEEZERSHM (RZIER
&R ERBEREENERETRE
BR) - BERBRBABEESL
FHEARBGE THEM R HE
AmAE - MHAR FRE AR
mEEME @ BERBRXNES
HER LEENARRNEEAE
£ -

BAZRBADMAUTEHS

) BEERBNEEDIERY
EENARRR SR ERRD
BE MARAERETIE
BRSENGIETE ST Ve 92
RENBERB(ELEE
B BRALREEMN
SLEYTH 5 T BB 5 B 7 K47
B BERINERAES
BF12% -
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25 NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 25

FE B wH B B ()

(b) Senior Note (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

Redemption option represents the fair value of the
company'’s option to early redeem all or part of the

Senior Note.

Warrant represents

the fair value of the right to

subscribe for the company’s equity shares at applicable

exercise price.

The movement of different components of the Senior
Note during the year is set out below:

At 1 January 2006,
31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007
Proceeds from issuance
of the Senior Note
Transaction costs

Net proceeds
Transaction costs amortised
Exchange differences
Net decrease/(increase)
in fair value

At 31 December 2007

(b) BEREE)

(i) FEEERFREEAQREER
FEOMERASELERE
MARME °

(i) RREEAIZERTEER
MBAR ARG KRR 2 A
B

555 BETREHHE N
SBHIIWT :

Redemption
Liability Warrants option Total
&fs RBE  BEREE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TT ARETR ARETR
720061 A18
2006124318 &
2007F1A18 - = = =
BIREZEMG
HIE 579,325 103,496 (5,976) 676,845
RBHA (31,390) - - (31,390)
FriSsIE S5 547,935 103,496 (5,976) 645,455
BEEISHMA 7,773 - - 7,773
fEHER - (3,183) 166 (3,017)
ARERD/ () FE
- (25,772) 4,410 (21,362)
7200712311 555,708 74,541 (1,400) 628,849

The fair value of the liability component of the Senior
Note is not materially different from its carrying value
as at 31 December 2007.

M2007F12 A31H » BEZEMNEEER
PHARERERAETEEAESR -
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26 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26  $RAT R R A B
The group
REE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARKETTT

Bank loans (note (a)) RITEF (5 (@)
- secured —BHEA 584,697 140,000
— unsecured — A 35,000 160,000
619,697 300,000
Convertible Note (note (b)) AR E I (T3 () - 56,944
Loan Note (note (c)) BERERE () - 113,314
619,697 470,258
(a) Bank loans (a) $RITER
At 31 December 2007, the bank loans were repayable as R2007F12 A31 H » EEEKNIER
follows: TERWAT :
The group
REE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBTT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRKNEREEE 0 219,019 300,000
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREREA 32,528 =
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFA 112,491 =
After 5 years hER 255,659 -
I 400678 - <.
619,697 300,000
Included in bank loans and other borrowings due within 1 year N—ERIBAFIRERESEHNRTER
or on demand is the current portion of a long-term bank loan HiE EBERERITE R BNHE 30
of RMB30,321,000. 2> AR ¥ 30,321,000 7T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

26 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

26 SRAT B S A A B (A)

(a)

(b)

Bank loans (Cont’'d)

At 31 December 2007, assets of the group secured against
bank loans are analysed as follows:

Buildings held for own use
Investment properties
Pledged deposits

Convertible Note

Principal amount
Transaction costs

Net proceeds

Value of derivative component
at issuance date

Transaction costs and discount
amortised

Change in fair value
of derivative component

Exchange differences

Carrying amount at
31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007
Transaction costs and
discount amortised
Change in fair value of
derivative component
Exchange differences

Converted into 66,000,000
ordinary shares:
— share capital (note 32)
— share premium (note 32)

Carrying amount at
31 December 2007

(a) SRITE ()

MN2007%12 A31 0 - "EERE
EIFBTERNEEDTAT

The group
AEE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFT
FEE RrEF - 2,732
WA - 69,500
HEARTF 174,460 8,000
174,460 80,232
(b) TRBRZERE
The group
REE
Loan Derivative
component component Total
BRED PTHEE D st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Wi 63,260 - 63,260
RS (15,340) = (15,340)
FriS 58 F58 47,920 = 47,920
RETBHESTE
A EE (6,710) 6,710 =
B#HR HA
KAriE 16,538 = 16,538
PTERBDARE
2H) - (432) (432)
MEN =5 (804) (280) (1,084)
M2006F12 A31H &
20071 A1BH
BREE 56,944 5,998 62,942
BEHZ ZKAR
W&k 5,512 - 5,512
PTESBDARE
2 - 49,544 49,544
ME N =58 (374) - (374)
62,082 55,542 117,624
4 7566,000,000/%
TR
—f&A (M93E32) (653)
— B (FizEs2) (116,971)

72007412 A31H
RIRREE

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 ER A 7
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

26 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

26 SRAT Bk LI At £ (A7)

(b)

Convertible Note (Cont’d)

On 5 October 2006, Access Achievement Limited a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, issued
a zero coupon convertible note (the “Convertible Note")
for a principal amount of US$8,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB63,260,000 at the issuance date) to an independent
party. The aggregate upfront fee and arrangement fee of the
Convertible Note amounted to US$1,940,000 (equivalent
to RMB15,340,000 at the issuance date). The Convertible
Note together with the Loan Note as set out in note 26(c)
were secured by the entire issued share capital of Access
Achievement Limited and the entire paid-up capital of Hong
Long Properties (Shenzhen) Company Limited.

The value of the derivative component of the Convertible
Note was determined by an independent valuer, RHL
International Group, based on the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model at the issuance date of the Convertible Note.
The assumptions of the valuation of the conversion option
embedded in the Convertible Note are set out as follows:

Share price RRADEHE
Exercise price T1EE
Expected volatility SEL Y
Expected option life T8 BRI A HARR
Expected dividends TEHARR B

Risk-free interest rate

Except for the change of risk-free rate from 3.71% at the
issuance date to 3.48% at 31 December 2006, the fair value
of the derivative component of the Convertible Note was
valued based on the same assumptions as set out above.

Upon the listing of the company's shares on the Stock
Exchange on 22 February 2007, the entire Convertible
Note was converted into 66,000,000 ordinary shares of
the company in accordance with the terms of issue of the
Convertible Note.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1= R ER A A
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(b)

AR ERE (&)

R2006F10A5RH » AR FIMEE
2 &M B A E] Access Achievement
Limited [[—®&BE =7 8ITAR
% /%8,000,000 3% 7T (48 & R R 2
1TEHI AR 63,260,0007T) &
TR RS ([ RERE D) -
ARREENEREARLTHER
#a%E 4 1,940,000 T (HER
M2 4T B B A R ¥ 15,340,000
JL) e ATMREE - ER R
FE26(c)ME R EE TIAAccess
Achievement Limited 2282 31T
IR ROk s EE ORI BR A AlH)
2 IBE R R AP -

AR ERE 2 fTE S D WEETYH
38 37 fik 18 A ) 1 17 B B 42 B 1A AT 42
RREEEITABBRE (AR —4F
BT HETEEXFET - 25
A PT HR AR S HR A S HA AR A (B A 1R
RYIFH AT -

HK$0.81

0.81787T

HK$0.72

0.72/87C

0.1%

4 months
AfEA

3.71%

KRERBRANEXARETAEN
3.71% & &K 2006 F 12 A 31 HEY
3.48% 5h + AR IR MSTEEL D
RAETIIRIE & XFTH 88 R R
HITHE -

RRARRRIAH2007 62 A 22 H 8
P LR - 2ERAMREERRE
ETARRRENER LR
7] 66,000,000 A% EE@AR D °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

26 SRAT B S A A B (A)

26 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

(¢) Loan Note (c) EXREE

The group
REE
RMB’000
ARETT
Principal amount PN 134,427
Transaction costs R P (25,877)
Net proceeds FiS 5O08F 58 108,550
Transaction costs amortised B ER A 6,472
Exchange differences X =5 (1,708)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2006 7200612 318 &%20074F1A1H
and 1 January 2007 HIRRE(E 113,314
Transaction costs amortised E#HEZ FKA 16,553
Exchange differences ] (3,194)
Repayment during the year FAEE (126,673)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2007 72007412 A31 HHBREE =

On 5 October 2006, Access Achievement Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, issued a zero
coupon loan note (the “Loan Note") for a principal amount
of US$17,000,000 (equivalent to RMB134,427,000 at the
issuance date) to an independent party (the “Holder”). The
aggregate upfront fee and arrangement fee of the Loan Note
amounted to US$3,273,000 (equivalent to RMB25,877,000)
at the issuance date. The Loan Note together with the
Convertible Note as set out in note 26(b) were secured
by the entire issued share capital of Access Achievement
Limited and the entire paid-up capital of Hong Long Properties
(Shenzhen) Company Limited.

The principal amount of the Loan Note is repayable by
two instalments, being US$1,700,000 (equivalent to
RMB13,275,000) on 5 April 2007 and US$15,300,000
(equivalent to RMB119,473,000) on 5 October 2007 in
accordance with the underlying terms of the Loan Note. In
March 2007, US$8,000,000 was repaid to the Holder and
71% of issued share capital of Access Achievement Limited
and 71.78% of paid-up capital of Hong Long Properties
(Shenzhen) Company Limited were released from the
charges accordingly. The remaining balance of US$9,000,000
was repaid to the Holder in October 2007 and all the pledges
were released from the charges accordingly.

MR2006F10A5H @ AR RN EE
2 &M B A T Access Achievement
Limitedml — & B E =5 ([#F
B A EITARSL A17,000,0003%
T(HERRBITABEMNAR
134,427,00070) M ZE B E R EE
([BEFERE])  -BEXEENERE
B8RS4 £3,273,000
Zn(HERRBITRHNHARE
25,877,00070) - EREE - HE[F
HAMI FE26(b) B AT AR AR Ty
Access Achievement Limited &
HEBITRARBEE ORI A
RN EIH 2 SDAR AR AT -

BEEXREENHEBER  BEX
ZENAE S MBAEE  F—H
#2007 %4 A5 H (& 141,700,000
Ex(#EE R ARMKI13,275,000
JT) ¢ BB HIR 2007410 A5 BHE
415,300,000 =T (FHER AR
119,473,0007T ) ° 200743 A -
# B A % (2 148,000,000 % Jt -
M Access Achievement Limited
BB 31T RN EY 71 % LA o B [ 3
EORY) B A A KSR R AR
71.78% YK 10 4F FE th BR BR - £RFE
9,000,000 E 142007410 AE
ETHRHAA  MAEEERELH®
ZEWHR R o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

27 'TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND ACCRUALS 27 FEATHERZK ~ AR AT K R TH IR
#H
The group The company
rEE /NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

Bills payable ARESE - 4,500 - =
Trade payables FETBRTR 16,959 35,868 - =
Amount due to a director ER—2EEHIA 899 - - =
Amount due to a related company FEIBEE A RFIA 18,000 - - =
Derivative financial TESRmIA
instruments (note 22) (P 22) 74,541 - 74,541 -
Other creditors and HAERRK
accrued charges RIERER 204,179 142,635 24,248 11,944
314,578 183,003 98,789 11,944
The amounts due to a director and a related company are unsecured, EBN—R2EERk —HBEEARRELSE
interest-free and repayable on demand. T LS RBREKER -
126 Included in trade and other payables, and accruals are trade payables JERERH HhENRLERERBE
with the following ageing analysis as at the balance sheet date: JEFER - ERFAEEHMREDTAOT ¢
The group
AEEH
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BFT ARBTT

Due within 90 days or on demand 90 H NFE iR Esk 16,959 35,868
28 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 28  FHMURK

Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds received from HREREREASEBEEMEREES

buyers in connection with the group’s pre-sales of properties and WEHEHEMSRREBRNEEIREYE

prepaid rental income from tenants of the group’s investment WP WEETEMNES KA - A TER

properties. All of the receipts in advance are expected to be settled BRRTEHR —FRNEE -

within one year.

29 RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS 29 FHE KH %4
Included in rental and other deposits were RMB8,634,000 (2006: HEREMESPRE—SFHEHNL —
RMB?7,237,000) which are expected to be settled after more than F15 B8 B AR 8,634,000 T K X IB
one year. All other rental and other deposits are expected to be (20064 : AR#7,237,0007T) - FTBEE
settled within one year. MR E R EAMIRS TR —FREE -

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1= R ER A A
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

30

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

30 AR A AR AR P Bl

(a)

(b)

Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a)

represents:

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Provision for the year

Provisional tax paid

Balance of tax provision relating
to prior years

Taxation payable

Land Appreciation Tax

Provision for the year

Provisional tax paid

Balance of tax provision relating
to prior years

Taxation payable

Total taxation payable

Deferred taxation

The group

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

EAERIRRE -

At 1 January 2006
Charged to profit or loss

At 31 December 2006

At 1 January 2007
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss
At 31 December 2007

FREERERNAYBIER

The group
AEE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
FREI TSR
IREEAEME 41,822 43,468
B HTIE (1,080) =
BRBTFENTIE
A 26,540 14,889
N 67,282 ‘! 58,357 __
T i IBER
INEEHEME 98,291 78,360
BEREHTIE - (1,047)
BRBTFENTIE
S . 77313 . _.: ~ .
s 175,604 ____ 77,313 __
FERI B TR 42 5E 242,886 135,670
(b) EFERIE
rEE
RiEE BEBBRRANERRELER
B(EE)/ BEFDRENEEH
T~
Temporary
differences
arising from
Revaluation Land
of investment Appreciation Tax
properties JRE L i EF Total
BMAREYE HEREE #ct
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARKETTT ARETT ARETT
7200651 A1 H 1,861 = 1,861
B8z P kR 84,951 - 84,951
7200612 A31H 86,812 = 86,812
7200761 A1H 86,812 - 86,812
kg (GEA) B#: 27,052 (14,744) 12,308
1R2007F12A31H 113,864 (14,744) 99,120
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

30 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT’D) 30 HEBEEABENNMNER
(%)

(¢)  The group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect () AEBITABEBHEEBEARE
of tax losses of RMB3,246,000 (2006: RMB1,047,000) as 3,246,0007C (2006 4F : A R ¥
it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available 1,047,000 7o) HERIEERI TH B E -
against which the losses can be utilised. The tax losses will [l A3 % 2R AT RE 42 L FE ER B v ) A
be expired in 2012 under current tax legislation. HETE - RIBBBEBRIERITH

FRIBEBIR 2012 FHIE -
31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 31 RABAR F i %%EE OER] K

The company adopted a share option scheme on 31 January RARM 2007 F 1 A 31 BEM—ERR

2007 whereby the directors of the company are authorised, at AR BUARRESERENRE

their discretion, to invite employees and consultants of the group, BHEAEENEEMER(BEASEEHE

including directors of any company in the group, to subscribe for TREMARNES) RBAQBRG © %
shares of the company. These options generally vest after six ERRE—REREBAHERSEAZE
months to one year from the date of grant and are exercisable within —FRER RAURAEZE+FHBATT

a period of five to ten years. Each option gives the holder the right to Fo FMNARER THBEARETR - 7l

subscribe for one ordinary share of the company at a pre-determined EETEEMSNRREI10BTRE—

exercise price plus a consideration of HK$10 per option holder. AR E E @R

128 (a)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during (a) FARFIROGERREERT
the year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by BRI A RIREDARDETEY
physical delivery of shares: A
Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions life of options price
RREHE BEAE RARESHEER OFE
Options granted to directors: RTEE0AMRE
- on 31 January 2007 — 200751 A318 7,000,000 Six months from the Listing Date byears  HK$0.60
Bt BstR A EA 56 06047
- on 15 May 2007 —1R200745715H 10,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
ik ad=k iy 106 18487
Options granted to employees: &P {E B H)AME
- on 31 January 2007 — 200751 A318 16,000,000 Six months from the Listing Date byears  HK$0.60
B BstR/ A EA 5% 06047
- on 15 May 2007 —1R200745715H 13,929,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
X B ERsHR7 AR 106 18487
-on 10 October 2007 ~ 1200741074108 1,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years  HK$2.99
Hy R it B Ee T (E A 106 29987
Options granted to third parties: &5 = /7 FIRAARHE :
- on 15 May 2007 —1R200745715H 18,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
M B ERsHR7 AR 106 18487
-on 10 October 2007 ~ 120074103108 5,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$2.99
dyiR it B Ee st (E A 106 29987
- on 10 October 2007 — 120074104108 20,000,000 One year from the date of grant 10 years  HK$2.99
B BSR4 106 29987
Total share options AR 90,929,000
Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1= R ER A A
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31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT’D) 31 DLy A s B i A ok (58)
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) RRESE REMNETFHTEER
options are as follows: I @
2007
Weighted average Number
exercise price of options
IREF 91715 E RIRERE
‘000
T
Outstanding at the beginning of the year S AKTT{E = =
Granted during the year FARE HK$1.86 90,929
Exercised during the year FERTTE HK$0.64 (4,150)
Forfeited during the year F AR HK$1.84 (470)
Outstanding at the end of the year FIREARITHE HK$1.91 86,309
Exercisable at the end of the year FERA]TTE HK$1.45 60,309
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for HEANSITERBRERTTE B B Ik
share options exercised during the year was HK$2.80 (2006: FR%ER2.808 7T (20064 « NEM) ° 129

not applicable).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had an R 2007F 12 A31 HMARTTERBRERNIT
exercise price of HK$0.60, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99 (2006: not B 0.608 T~ 1.848Tk2.998 T
applicable) and a weighted average remaining contractual life (20064 : @A) - MMNEFHHRTAE
of 8.1 years (2006: not applicable). HFH /8.1 (2006 F : TiEA) °

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 ER A 7
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31

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT’D)

31 P

s 55 S B R A5k (480)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on both the Black-Scholes
pricing model and the binomial lattice model. The contractual
life and expectations of early exercise of the share option

were used as inputs into relevant models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

(c)

RBREN A REREBRR

VAR T 38 s i 4 B P AR EUAR A5 9 22
REDZRARTRARENAAE
FHE o TR T RBREN AR AL
TR N 7 — AT R AT E BER &
“IEAREENAE - RRENA
HEHRIERIRBITRIVIEREIE
BARAER -

BB A B R R

Grant date
R AH
31 January 15 May 10 October
2007 2007 2007
2007F1H31H 20075H515H 2007910810H

Fair value at measurement date REr2AHNALE HK$0.78 HK$0.47 HK$0.64

130 0.78/87C 0.4787T 0.64/87T

Share price KB N/A HK$1.84 HK$2.93

TiE 1.84787T 2.93%7T

Exercise price 118 HK$0.60 HK$1.84 HK$2.99

0.60/87C 1.8478 7T 2.99/87T

Expected volatility (expressed as AR IR (A 47.9% 48.9% 51.05%
weighted average volatility TE 2R B A O 0
used in the models) T RIBRT)

Option life (expressed as RAREFE (AZE 3 years 3.25 years 10 years
weighted average life used R opiliy 3F 3.25% 104
in the models) TIHFHERT)

Expected dividends TRHIRR S 4.4% 3.4% 1.21%

Risk-free interest rate (based on ERRF)E (LAINE 4.0% 4.2% 4.28%
Exchange Fund Notes) EeZEAHE)

Valuation model used FRAMEERED Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Binomial

Bhx—&mET ANz — &R —IER

T8 HR 8 70 AR 45 R SR iR (AR 5 RR AR B
IEEF R T FHRE) - URRERFH
A B BT R B ) R AOR R ©

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.

RIRER T RIS AR R B o AR I A
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date R FTRE RIS R R B B R A B &
fair value measurement of the services received. There were 2 o WA EZREIE AR TISGRE -
no market conditions associated with the share option grants.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1= R ER A A
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32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 32 B Kk
(a)  The group (a) Z&&EE
Statutory Minority
Share Share  Merger  reserve  Capital  Retained interests Total

capital  premium  reserve fund  reserve  profits Total  HERE  equity
Rx  RORE AHEE iThEe EMRE  RER 5t B BEEE
Note RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2006 R06E1A18 25,000 - - 14,611 - 82793 122404 2,69 147,098
Prft for the yeer RERHH - - - - O GR%9 6% (G 698266
Nominal value of share capitalof ~ FAEEHITHEAA

new subsidiary acquired fRAERE (24,979 - 491 - - - - - -
Shares issued upon incorporation ISR UEETHR( 5 - - - - - 5 - 5
Transfer to statutory resenve fund ~ EAEERffES - - - 1951 - (19511 - - -
Acquisition of additionalinterest  WE BRI

in a subsidiary BhEs - - - - - (100) (100) (900) (1,000
At 31 December 2006 and 20065124318

1 January 2007 R2007£1 418 (elf) 80 - 2,979 34122 - 762151 821332 23001 844423
Profit for the year RERET - - - - - 250685 250,685 (183) 250502 131
Transfer to statutory resenve fund ~ EAEERFES - - - 8,366 - (8366 - - -
Arsing from reorganisation REMEE (c)i) 75 - (752) = = = = = =
Capitaisation issue BA&h i) 5% [5%) - - - = = = =
Shares issued pursuant to the REREER

global offering and upon L G

the exercise of the overalotment  ZTAVRA (1%

option, net of share issuing costs ~ FRAZ{IRE) v 282 462,767 = = - - 46559 - 46559
Conversion of Convertible Note BT ARESR (el 663 116971 = = - - 1764 - 176K
Equity-settled share-based R BEEERRAH

payments note 31) (K1) - - - - W - W - W
Shares issued under share option  BIEAREEIE T

scheme #RH (e 38 5,669 - - 376 - 2531 -8
Share options forfeited BReARE - - - - (220) 20 - - -
Acquisiton of additionalinterests ~ WERHBAAATESN

in subsidiaries I - - - - - (B0 (5040 (106400 (85.680)
At 31 December 2007 R2007%12A318 1029 579,466 24,221 42488 4331 929,650 1,627,458 12,068 1,639,726

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 AR A 7
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32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D) 32 B KfEf (5)
(b) The company (b) ZA&2DF
Share Share Merger Capital Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve losses Total

BE  RiEE  ofEBE  EARE  ZiER &t
Nofe  RMBOOD ~ RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBIOOD  RMB'00D
Wi ARBTL ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR

At 1 January 2006 1200651518 - - - - - -
Loss for the year TEEFR - - - - 29 (29
At 31 December 2006 and R2006512A318

1 January 2007 R2007£1518 - - - - (29) (29)
Loss for the year TEEFR - - - - 621100 (62110
Avising from reorganisation REfEE (c)i 832 - (752) - = 80
Capitalisation issue EAEET (el 5,91 (5,941) - - - -
Shares issued pursuant to the REZEERRRERR

global offering and upon REGEMETRA

the exercise of the over-allotment (MBRAEHRA)

option, net of share issuing costs (clliv) 2,832 462,767 - - - 465,599

132 Conversion of Convertiole Note ERTARTE (cliv 653 116971 = = - e

Equity-ssttled share-based IR BEE ERAIRE

payments (note 31) (HizE31) = = = 44721 - 4727
Shares issued under share option RERREERTORG

scheme (c)ivi) 3 5,669 - (3,176) = 2,531
Share options forfeited BRI E - - - (220) 20 =
At 31 December 2007 2007128318 10,296 579,466 (752) 41,331 61,919 568,422

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

32 A KAHM (A

(c) Share capital

(i)

(ii)

The share capital presented in the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2006 represents the share
capital of Access Achievement Limited.

On 20 July 2006, the company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with authorised share capital of
10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. One nil-paid share
of HK$0.01 was issued and allotted to Codan Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited, which was transferred to
Grand Prosperity Limited on the same day. In addition,
the company issued 99 nil-paid shares of HK$0.01 each
and allotted to Grand Prosperity Limited on the same
day.

On 31 January 2007, by an ordinary resolution passed
at the meeting of Board of directors, the company's
authorised ordinary share capital was increased to
HK$300,000,000 by the creation of an additional
29,990,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each,
ranking pari passu with the existing shares of the
company in all respects. On the same day, the
company issued and allotted, credited as fully paid at
par of HK$0.01, 83,999,900 shares to Grand Prosperity
Limited, and credited as fully paid at par the 100 nil
paid shares already held by Grand Prosperity Limited,
in consideration for an aggregate of 100,000 shares
of US$0.1 each representing the entire issued share
capital of Access Achievement Limited transferred to
the company as to 80,000 shares by Mr Sheng ZENG
and 20,000 shares by Mr Yunshu ZENG pursuant to an
agreement for sale and purchase entered into between
the company as purchaser, and Mr Sheng ZENG and
Mr Yunshu ZENG as vendors on the same day.

(e) MR

(i)

(ii)

2006 F 12 A31H W 4
AEERBEREIHNRA
A Access Achievement

Limited BIBEAR o

M2006F7 A20H & A
AIRFAERE MK - &
FEREZN A 10,000,000 A% & A%
EE0.01 B THIRM - 11K
BARMEE 0.01 7T K R SR
FRHEEFTRECE T Codan
Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited - WHRR B &R T
Grand Prosperity Limited °
BESN - ANA FEEAT 99 IR E AR
T 0.01 75 7T B AR SR 5K AR
- WHRE BB T Grand
Prosperity Limited °

MW2007%F1A318 @ BAR
EEEER LBANES
RBR ANRAIMETE
RN N I
29,990,000,000 % & f& i &
0.01 B cH) F @R Mg in =
300,000,000 Jt » I £ &
FHEHEARNFKRERDE
EREHA - A AAF
@ Grand Prosperity Limited
BT RELE (REE0.01 %
JT A BR#12 ) 83,999,900 fi%
Bfp - WIRAEEARS R H
Grand Prosperity Limited
BT+ B 89100 % K 48 3 A%
7 REAMARRQREER
E 1 Access Achievement
LimitedZ B 21T AR
4 #£100,000 B EREEO.1
KRG BEBEARA
(ERER)HEBEEERE
ERELE(MUIERER) R
AT EERE - £
80,000 A& A% 17 Fo & B 5T £ 825
% % 20,000 fEAZ 19 B & E4E
B o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

32

B R g i (A1)

(c)

Share capital (Cont’d)

(iii)

On 22 February 2007, an amount of RMB5,941,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account
was applied in paying up in full 600,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each which were allotted and
distributed as fully paid to the then shareholders.

(c)

IRAs (&)

(i)

MW2007F2A228 @ B
BEREHNERBEBARE
5,941,000 7T J5 2B B A 1E X
NZBREHERDIET B
B 28 #9 600,000,000 A% & B%
E{E0.01 BT E &R -

(ivi  On 22 February 2007, an aggregate of 250,000,000 (iv) 20079 2H228 '+ X7
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued and DB EhE - 8E
offered for subscription at a price of HK$1.8 per A& 1.8 B THEREITRIER
share upon the listing of the company's share 4 ££250,000,000 i A FEIE
on the Stock Exchange. On 13 March 2007, an 0.01 BT L MAT - LAHR
aggregate of 36,100,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 i o 20073 H13H -
each were issued and offered for subscription FEFER AR TR - AD
at a price of HK$1.8 per share upon the exercise AIARAR 1.8 TR BHR 21T
of the over-allotment option. The group raised K12 2 4 ££36,100,000 f% &
approximately HK$472,345,000 in total (equivalent to R EEO0.01 BT EiEA -

134 RMB465,599,000), net of related expenses from the DAL REE - AEEEELH
share offer. 472,345,000 7t (FE K A
R 465,599,0007T ) (1B B%
MEENHEER) -
(v On 22 February 2007, an aggregate of US$8,000,000 (v}  72007F2H228 ' & #

Convertible Note was converted into 66,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

8,000,000 3 T &) 7] 2 % 2=
BB 466,000,000 f% &
BEE{E 0.01 78 TT R X3 o

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
Annual Report 2007 —Z &+ FF3R




Notes to the Financial Statements B} #&# 3= i

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

32 A KAHM (A

(c) Share capital (Cont'd)

(vi)

On 12 December 2007, options were exercised
to subscribe for 4,000,000 ordinary shares in the
company at a consideration of HK$2,400,000
(equivalent to RMB2,267,000) of which HK$40,000
(equivalent to RMB37,000) was credited to share
capital and the balance of HK$2,360,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,230,000) was credited to the share premium
account. HK$3,116,000 (equivalent to RMB3,106,000)
has been transferred from the capital reserve to the
share premium account in accordance with policy set
out in note 2(q)(iii).

On 13 December 2007, options were exercised to
subscribe for 100,000 ordinary shares in the company
at a consideration of HK$184,000 (equivalent to
RMB174,000) of which RMB700 was credited to share
capital and the balance of HK$183,100 (equivalent
to RMB173,000) was credited to the share premium
account. HK$48,000 (equivalent to RMB47,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in
note 2(q)(iii).

On 24 December 2007, options were exercised to
subscribe for 50,000 ordinary shares in the company
at a consideration of HK$92,000 (equivalent to
RMB90,000) of which RMB500 was credited to share
capital and the balance of HK$91,500 (equivalent
to RMB90,000) was credited to the share premium
account. HK$24,000 (equivalent to RMB23,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in
note 2(q)(iii).

(c) RA (&)

(vi)

1K 2007F 128128 » AT R
#% 4,000,000 & AN A 7] & &
BRI EETE - REA
2,400,000 T (48 & B A
R #2,267,0007T ) © H &
40,0008 T (FBER AR
37,0007 ) 5t AR AN K 84 58
2,360,000 %7t (FHE R AR
¥ 2,230,000 7T) 5T A B 1935
ERR  ARIBMIFE 2(q)(iii) FTaEk
RIS + 3,116,000 7T (48
Z R® A R #3,106,0007T )
ERENEERERGHEE
EE °

1200712 A13H * AT R
8% 100,000 0% A& 2 7 & 8
RO RREETHE - KE
184,000 7T (48 & R A
R #174,0007T) - H& A
R¥ 700 Lt ARRZAS & 8458
183,100 T (HHER AR
173,000 7T ) 5t A B 15 & (8
R o ARIBHIEE 2(q) (iii) FrEkAY
B - 48,000/ T (HER
AER#47,00070) ERE R
EEBEERMEER

R 2007F 12 A 2418 » Al R
8% 50,000 f% A8 A =) & & %
MRBRERETE REAR
92,0007 T (HHE R AR
90,0007t) + ER AR 500
TLET ABRAS K #4288 91,500 74
7T (48 & M AR 90,0007T)
FTARGHER o RIBH =
2(q)(iii) FTELEVERSE - 24,000
7 7T (& M A R 23,000
T EREAEERZRD
S (ERR o
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32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D) 32 BARKGEM (5)
(¢)  Share capital (Cont’d) (c) MR (%)
(vii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at (vil REEBEARERMERITER
balance sheet date PR A 9 163X
2007 2006
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
1THEHA THEE 28 #H
22 August 2007 to 21 February 2012 HK$0.60 19,000,000 -
20078 A22HE 201242 A21H 0.60757T
15 November 2007 to 14 May 2016 HK$1.84 41,309,000 -
2007411 H158B% 201645 H 14 H 1.84%87T
10 April 2008 to 9 October 2017 HK$2.99 6,000,000 -
2008F4 A10HE 201710 A9H 2.997% 7T
10 October 2008 to 9 October 2017 HK$2.99 20,000,000 -
200810 H10BZE 20174610 H9H 2.99787T
86,309,000 —
136 Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one BHRBRER TRHHE ARER
ordinary share of the company. Further details of A RE—IRANT TR -
these options are set out in note 31 to the financial ERAZERRENE — T+
statements. BH RIS HREMIEEST ©
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32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

32 A KAHM (A

(c) Share capital (Cont'd)

(ix)

(x)

The share capital as at 31 December 2007 is as follows:

(c) RA (&)

(ix) 72007412 A31 B8R

T
2007
No. of
shares Amount
ik =] a0
HK$'000
FExT
Authorised: SEIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HRXE{E0.01 FBTH L@ 30,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEREITRHLE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HRXE{E0.01 FBTH L@ 1,040,250,000 10,403
RMB’000
ARBT T
RMB equivalent ARKEBER 10,296

On 3 October 2007, 81,000,000 Warrants were
issued to the initial purchasers of the Senior Note.
At the balance sheet date, there were 81,000,000
outstanding Warrants. Each of the Warrant holders
is entitled to subscribe in cash at an exercise price,
subject to certain conditions of reset and adjustment,
of HK$3.36 each for one ordinary share of HK$0.01
each of the company at any time from 3 October 2007
to 2 October 2012. The Warrants when exercised in
full would, with the present capital structure of the
company, result in the issue of 81,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and aggregate
subscription monies of HK$272,160,000 before the
related expenses.

(x)  M2007F10HA3BH ' XA
F]%£1781,000,000 17 R HE
TFRERBHNLEF - 1
#EH - [#A81,000,000%
RITHERARAE o FALABIRKE
¥ A A" H200741083
H# 22012910828 1k
EAERE RITEE(ZE
FEERABRIGEHRR)
FRE3.3678TC © UIESRE
— SR E(E0.01 B LRI
AEIERR - EARQFIAHER
EEREET @ ERRED
BT R S B AR N
781,000,000 % & f% @ &
0.01 BT EBR - KR
IR BRI A & B Al
#%272,160,000 8 TT °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

32

A 2 gk e ()

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserve

(i)

(ii)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiary acquired
over the nominal value of the shares used by the
company exchange thereafter.

Statutory reserve fund include the following items:

Statutory surplus reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the group are required to transfer
10% of its profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC Accounting Regulations, to statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good
previous years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into share capital by the issue of new shares
to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholdings or by increasing the par value of the
shares currently held by them, provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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(d)

RENEER B
()  EUHE

(i)

& GF (7 18 T 45 P UK B 1O BT 8
AR WEEEAR R
SRR mEZ R E
B e

ETEREEEENTER :

R ES

RBEPERARE  AEED
mh BB 8 1 B R R o B
B R AR AR i A
10% BEEEEFES  &H
ERHBHEBEDZEMER
HI50% ° ¥ FRIA = I IR
BMBAR D KRS T AR A
fEH

EERES T AAEEEAE
FENEBR(WE): EB
ERRAEARREMARE
TR A0 AL I % F AR IR 5
BEROEESEE#HESE
BABRA - HERZETER
HEBRDELONEMERD
25% °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

32

AR 2 gtk i ()

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserve (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Statutory reserve fund include the following items:
(Cont’d)

Statutory public welfare fund

Prior to 1 January 2006, according to the then PRC
Company Law, the PRC subsidiaries of the group
were required to transfer 5% to 10% of its profit
after taxation, as determined under PRC Accounting
Regulations, to the statutory public welfare fund. This
fund could only be utilised on capital items for the
collective benefits of the company’s employees such
as the construction of dormitories, canteen and other
staff welfare facilities. This fund was non-distributable
other than in liquidation. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
shareholders. The directors had resolved to transfer
5% of the current year's profit after taxation to the fund
in previous years.

From 1 January 2006, according to the revised PRC
Company Law, the PRC subsidiaries of the group are
not required to make such transfers. The directors
resolved to transfer the statutory public welfare fund of
RMB4,871,000 as at 1 January 2006 to retained profits
which is in compliance with the PRC Company Law.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the company
are distributable to the shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed the company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

(d)

RENEER B (&)
(i) EEBEHEEEEUATER:

(iif)

(%)
VEE Rt

R 2006F1 A1HZA 1R
BEROPEATE - NE
] ) B B /B A ) ZB IR R B
2EHIE - BEBRBEEF
H15% 2 10% B =X TF QN
me o WEESAARAR
AIB THEEMNMEARIEE
(MEEES BEREM
ETREMBEM) - BRIIER
B WEES TR DI ©
ERFIAELEREBUER
DR B FRRERIEL - ©
AEE  EEEZAERR
TIEBFRAAE% E L E
A& -

H2006%1 A1 REE
BETHHRBERARNE - ANEH
7 BB B A Bl B A &
LER o EEDFHIAN 2006
F1H1BEEEATEAR
¥ 4,871,000 70 8 # = R &
wmA AR B A DA
HIFRE °

RERSHSREE AR
AR 10 )4 8 B P B & & AT i
DIRTARRBIIRE - HEZBE
BRREREZBHEAR
B RESE A B XK BRESR
185 H B HERS -
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32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

32

A 2 gk e ()

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Cont’d)
(iv)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted by the company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 2(q)(iii).

(v)  Distributability of reserve

For dividend purposes, the amount which the company
and its subsidiaries can legally distribute by way of a
dividend is by reference to the profits as reflected in
their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with PRC GAAP. These profits differ from
those reflected in these financial statements, which
1 40 are prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Upon listing of the company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, dividends will be distributed out of the
group’s net distributable earnings, which represent the
lower of the net profit as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP and HKFRS, less allocations to the
statutory reserve fund.

As at 31 December 2007, the reserve available
for distribution was RMB312,167,000 (2006:
RMB294,765,000).

(e) Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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fRERNEER B (&)
iv) EXEFE

EAREBRIERRRFRE
BT (2 R A B IR R A 5t
ZEWRRE DHRENZE
2(q) (iii) B FE AR AS 5 B DA B A7)
FRER N SRR AR & 5
HERER °

v)  EAHRGIRE R

SRR E - AR EREM
ERERAEREDIRES
R - D2REERTH
AREFHEA R A
TE B 75 3R 3% P IR R B9 345 V) T
BERE 7% % A S AR B 7 5
RN RE - BARE S
R M D IRIBEFE RSB
WELAPTRE

AR B R R PF £
% RS HEASR E A AT
DIKRBFFENIK  5H AR
BREAR G ERREE
B 765 ¥R 5 48 I BT 7 T O ik A
FRENREERSREETE
EHENES -

®2007 %12 A31H -
AR ERHNEERARE
312,167,000 7T (2006 F :
AR 294,765,000 7T) °
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32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

32 A KAHM (A

(e)

Capital management (Cont’d)

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-equity ratio. For
this purpose the group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables, and accruals), less pledged deposits and,
cash and cash equivalents.

During 2007, the group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2006, was to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio in
line with market expectations. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

(e)

EAREE (E)

AER BB N E B B AR
TR RER - AERSRE @R
B0 T A RE BB R B = i B /K T 22
RIF B AR 5 2R A0 47 B2 S AR I
ZEERGTE - 3FF ERERIR R
B EARBEHTE

MEMRAZE & AEBEVFAE
HERL R REEEREEAR
B Rt AKE/FEBERTRR
EE(EEEFRERRERNLAR
IR EENRRIARE
B)REERERERERRESE

2007 F A+ 7 & B /Y 5K R 6
2006 FRIFTE - HFABEHE
S RFETIBTER - BT #EFR
ARZLE - AEERSHEE
TREARESSE - BITHRD
REBEATRR  BEMOESH
BERHEEENARLAME -
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32  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D) 32 BARKGER (5
(e) Capital management (Cont’d) (e) BXERE(E)
The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2007 and 2006 R2007F K 200612 A31H © %
was as follows: BEHERLENT
The group The company
AEE V\UNG|
2007 2006 2007 2006

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Fitsx ARETT ARETT AR®TR AR%Txn
Current liabilities: mEEE

Trade and other payables, FERBRST - HthERZK

and accruals BIREA 27 314,578 183,003 98,789 11,944
Bank loans and other BITERREMEE
borrowings 26 219,019 476,256 - =

533,597 659,259 98,789 11,944

Non-current liabilities: FREasE:

142 Interest-bearing borrowings ~ FTEEE 25 956,386 - 555,708 -
Total debt Baf 1,489,983 659,259 654,497 11,944
Less: pledged deposits B BRER 23 (176,433) (27,0900 (164,406) -
Less: cash and cash B ReRREEEY

equivalents 24 (397,101) (31,540) (122,935) =
Net debt FAfE 916,449 600,629 367,156 11,944
Total equity BiEs 32 1,639,726 844,423 568422 29)
Net debt-to-equity FA B R

capital ratio 56% 71% 65% >(100%)
Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to RATKEFEAMHBRATLAZINBE
externally imposed capital requirements. TEREANRER S o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

33 ZmiTH

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and
concentration risks arises in the normal course of the group’s
business. These risks are limited by the group’s financial
management policies and practices described below:

(a) Credit risk

The extent of the group’s credit exposure is represented
by the aggregate balance of cash at bank, trade and other
receivables. Except for those disclosed in note 33(e), the
group has no other concentrations on credit risk. Cash
transactions are limited to high-credit-quality institutions.

The group has a defined credit policy. The group reviews the
ageing of loans and advances on a regular basis and closely
monitor the recoverability of the balances. The group has also
arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of properties
and provided guarantees to secure repayment obligations of
such purchasers. Details of these guarantees are set out in
note 36.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the group are responsible for
their own cash management based on the group’s internal
guidelines on liquidity requirements, including raising loans to
cover the expected cash demand, and obtaining credit lines,
subject to approval by the company's Board of directors. The
group’s objective is to strike a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facility
and other borrowings. The group financed its operations and
investment activities with internally generated cash flows,
balanced with proceeds from the issue of the Convertible
Note; Loan Note, Senior Note and the line of credit obtain
from banks. The group’s exposure to liquidity risk is
considered within manageable range.

Following the success of the company’s initial offering and
issuance of Senior Note, the group continued to enjoy a
strong financial position throughout 2007, with cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB397.1 million as at
31 December 2007, an increase of RMB365.6 million as
compared to that as at 31 December 2006.

(EL
SE-REBBEPHE  ZFARR
BATAA AR EENMEEREBRL T
MBI -

(a)

(b)
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ERARER

REB AR ERRBRIIRITR
B 8 YRR R R E A AR A
FEERAE TR - BRI E33(e) AR ER A
S - 7SS [ 30 A H 4t & 5 R
B ReXHRBRNERERDN
g -

AEEHEREMAEABER - N&E
EEHRTERRBERARRER, I
BRERZEHEBREARE - K
SENAE TYHEERIRHRITH
BEREEERMRBZSEERET
BEST - AEZSERNFET 143
FAIFESG ©

TRED M R B

REBER KB R RBREAEEE
MRS ESRENNES - BT
BEEAGNELER  BEE%
ERUNENEHANESFRRES
MERE  HARBARAESRSH
e o REEN B RRBNNEBE
RRITEEREMEEERE ST
BIEEBEEE 2 M09 - REE
UAMEENRSRERELLEE
BRFREEDRIEES - FRAZ
TR RE ERERRELER
BEFTS BRI R AL SRITER AV
BREAHT - ARERREEEN
mEERRDEREIREEA -

EARRNBIRIETERRNHEE R
BEEERIEITE  REEMK2007
FRFERBRFEBRENMBEHR
R2007%F 128310 Be kIR
ZLEY A AR 397,100,0007T -
B1R2006F 12 A31 BB S KR
& B WI% i A K ¥ 365,600,000
=
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

33  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 33 & T H ()
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIZERR
The group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest- AEBEMFEREREZRERE
bearing assets and liabilities. It is the group’s intention to keep BERBE ASEBEHEERR
its borrowings at floating interest rate with an aim to reflect FEMEE  BURBESHTISK
market costs of funding. It is this reason that cost of specific A RARAAEEMEEERE
borrowings financing the group’s development projects & ¢ MEFE B B R A K IE R TS
would be capitalised at a rate reflecting market conditions. BRZAEFAERE - XEBER
The group's effect on changes in interest rate is considered AR R E AL E R T B
immaterial to the group’s profit or loss. FERRIR o
(i) Interest rate profile (i)  FIEAEE
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRAMKERRARA TR
the group’s and the company's assets and liabilities at HEAMNEERBENFE
the balance sheet date. HhaE -
The group The company
158 |
2007 2006 2007 2006
1 44 Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
v vk Rz B
%  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT NG S ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents: ~ BERESEEY
Pledged deposits ivleEs 072461 176433 558 27000 225461 164406 - -
Saving deposits AR 015081 252,695 01 182 015081 6288 - -
Loans: &
Loans and advances EVER 6.84-747 103562 - - 684741 2035 - -
Fixed rate borrowings: EfEE:
Bank loans RITEH - - 558 40000 - - - -
- 40,000 - -

Variable rate borrowings: ~ FEEE:

Bank loans HITER 5587.05 619,697 558693 260,000 - - - -
Senior Note BrRE 917 555,708 - - 9.17 555708 - -
L MmAs 20000 SSI8 . T
Total borrowings [EEEE 1,175,405 300,000 555,708 -
Fixed rate borrowings TEfEE
as a percentage of total EEEGEN
borrowings Bkt % 13% % N/A
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

33  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

33 ST H(#)

(c) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the group's profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB 155,000 (2006: increase/
decrease by RMB7,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents management'’s assessment of a
representative pattern of possible change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2006.

(c) FI=E (&)

(ir)

® 200712 A31 8 » AT
EHMEERBTTEZER
T mFEREE LR TH
100 @ E %2 - AlAE @A
R T 1% 05 1) R AR B 3 I R
/4 A B # 155,000
7L (2006 : A R % 7,000
TT) °

A BURE 5 AT T RER A
BHPERGEERBAME
E - WEARZ B FENIT
£ RIEVTE S BT BT A
EOF =R o EFETH
100 EEEHRREEEY
BRI AT RE R K EFH W
FF{h © 2006 4 9 D HTIRABE R
EAEEAT -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

33  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD)

33 4T H(4)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

All the group’s revenue-generating activities were transacted
in Renminbi. Exposure to foreign currency risks is mainly
attributable to bank deposits, Convertible Note and Loan Note
that are denominated in currencies other than Renminbi. Foreign
currency risk is measured by employing sensitivity analysis,
taking into account current and anticipated exposures.

At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that had the United
States Dollars and Sterling Pounds exchange rates (versus
Renminbi) respectively increased by 50 basis points, with all
other variables remaining constant, the group's profit after
tax for the year would have decreased by approximately
RMB5,835,000 (2006: increased by RMB9,120,000) and
RMB8,438,000 (2006: not applicable) respectively.

At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that had the United
States Dollars and Sterling Pound exchange rates (versus
Renminbi) respectively decreased by 50 basis points, with
all other variables remaining constant, the group’s profit
after tax for the year would have increased by approximately
RMB5,835,000 (2006: decreased by RMB9,120,000) and
RMB8,438,000 respectively (2006: not applicable).

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to each of the group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at the date,
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. Results of
the analysis as presented above represent an aggregation
of the effects on each of the group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective foreign currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2006.
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(d)

SNER S

REBRAEEERANEBITIAA
REETRS - FREHHINERR
IEBARTER TRREREE
RRBEAARE AN E B EHE
SNE R TR BB EE ST E
Wit & A7 RIRHH AR -

MR2007F12A318 A H
MEERFTTEZERLT - EE
TRBRELARBEERS R L
FBOEERES - AIREERAE
ERBRT R ETED B4
A R ¥ 5,835,000 7T (2006 £ : 12
A R¥9,120,0007T) B AR
8,438,000 7T (2006 & : &) °

MR2007F12A318 A H
MEERFTTEZERLT - EE
TRBREXLARBEERS T
O EEAES - AIREERAE
ERBRT & EF G182 RIS n4
A R # 5,835,000 7t (2006 £ : J&
b AR¥9,120,0007T) B AR
8,438,000 7T (2006 & : &) °

it BRI R 5 AT T AR BR SN BE T o
PENEFBBEEMETE @ Wit A
BEEEMEENZ A FENITERE
MESRITAMASHEERR
B 7 L B 8 0 H R F RARFE A

# -

EREBHREEREHR T —EF
45 B A HIRI O E S T )
BORHE o W EFFIRM I ERR
RUAEBERET 5 R BEEEINE
HEEEE A NEEREAAR
5 DA 251 2 B BB B e it R A
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

33  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)

33 4mhTH(4)

(e)

(f)

Concentration risk

The operation of the group significantly relied on a single third
party which was both the second largest customer and the
largest supplier of the group for the year ended 31 December
2007. The party was also the largest debtor and creditor of the
group as at 31 December 2007.

Should the operation of the party be in doubt, the operation
of the group may be significantly affected. The group has
requested that party to arrange a guarantee for the sale
proceeds not yet repaid upon the sales of properties. The
group also monitors the financial position of the party closely
in order to mitigate the concentration risks exposed.

Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 December 2007 and
2006.

34 COMMITMENTS

(e)

(f)

34 HAYE

S EkE

AEBENEBKRAEE LKBEE—
WE=ZH  ZE=ZHALEEEE
2007512 A31 BIEEENE K
BEERGAHER - ZANABASE
BEZE 2007412 A31 BHRAE
BARBREA °

7z 77 T W EE - REE R
B XAEATE - AEEE
FREZ T B B M SR R R (B R
B TS R L BEIER © REETR
S RETIR LT WO T AR IA B P
AR R o

DRE
20074 % 20065412 A318 - FT

BERTANSRERL QAR EME
BRER

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Authorised but not contracted for EREERETH
Contracted but not provided for ERESIEE R

(a)

R12B831 B e REFMBHRRAE
BHEAREENT
The group
rEE

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT
2,543,313 2,113,060
137,796 179,000
2,681,109 2,292,060
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &A#55) » AN ERHETSR)

34  CoMMITMENTS (CONT D) 34 RIS ()
(b) Commitments for operating leases (b) HERERIE
The group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties AEEACERE T ZHEYEAF
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial A ZERHOTI—RABEME
period of two to fifteen years, with an option to renew the E+HF  RZBRMEEER -
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. i 8 B BT (G2 R TR © BT
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. FHEHTEHAER °
During the year, RMB9,915,000 (2006: RMB10,690,000) was FR - EEEANEERAEHEYE
recognised in profit or loss as rental expenses in respect of M e H A AR 9,915,000
sub-leased properties. (20064 : AR#10,690,0007T) °
As at 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments K12 A31 8 @ RIBETAIBERAL
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leased EHE  HEREHEYETHERE
and sub-leased properties are payable as follows: NOREBRENRBTENT
The group
AEE
2007 2006
1 48 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARKETTT

Within 1 year —FR 11,376 10,379
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 25,876 35,220
After 5 years hER 30,201 52,161

67,453 97,760
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) + AN EETIR)

35

SIGNIFICANT LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

35

HEME L

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of investment
properties held under operating leases are described in note 18(c).

Apart from these leases, the group also sub-leases out a number
of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to twenty years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. All of
these leases have no contingent element.

During the year, RMB15,347,000 (2006: RMB17,487,000) was
recognised in profit or loss as rental income in respect of sub-leased
properties.

As at 31 December 2007, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of sub-leased
properties are receivable as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA
After 5 years AFEE

REKEHEMBHNRENESIRNE
ZRELHFIFNHIEE 18(c) °

BzEMEN  AEETRELEHEE
HEETYWE - 2L BE—RAM—=
THF - RZBEAERER - mER
PIBGR R EX s - AELMEE

RAFEERN EEZACEREEMR
MENASRABARE 15,347,000
(2006 £ : AR¥17,487,0007T) °

200712318 - IREBEFAATRERAL
EHE - HHEMEEARERNREE
SR T

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
14,570 13,927
22,993 30,807
21,458 22,639
59,021 67,373
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36 BRAME
The group
REE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARKETTT

Guarantees given to banks for: MERTTE H AR ¢
— mortgage facilities granted to purchasers —REFAEEVEER
of the group’s properties (note) IR\ EEEE (M) 370,000 370,000

Note: The group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities Mz AEEHRE TRITRLNIRBMEER

granted by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans HER ZERERESRBAAEES
THEERILOIRIBER - REFE
REVER + Wz FE R RIZIBHRIA

entered into by purchasers of the group's properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage payments

by these purchasers, the group is responsible to repay the outstanding AEEBEAERRTEEERERNE
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed FEEERTRRF S RER - MAKE

ERAEREERNENEENBE -
AEENERBRBZIBERE L AH
Bt YR ERRSEREEFR IR
AEENEERINEBIRBENK R

property ownership certificate or up to a maximum of two years after ZRFERLER -

by the defaulted purchasers to banks. The group is then entitled

to take over the legal title of the related properties. The group’s
guarantee period commences from the dates of grant of the relevant
1 50 mortgage loans and ends after the purchaser obtained the individual

the full repayment of mortgage loan by the purchaser of the group’s

properties.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment of
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest
and penalty and therefore no provision has been made in connection
with the guarantees.

EERAMRERIER - BEMENT
B FE R AEER N R ERVEBER
SARAE I TRAR A B R S50+ B b 3F £k
R R -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 GA#55) + AN EHETIIR)

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37 BIEALMERRZS

Other than those disclosed in notes 10 and 27, the group had the
following significant transactions and balances with related parties
during the year:

(a)

(b)

Transactions and balances with the group’s directors,
senior management and their close family members

SHEE (BIRE )
P83z H (BTRE (i)

Sale of properties (note (i)
Interest expense (note (ii))

In addition, as at 31 December 2006, directors, senior
management and their close family members have
provided guarantees for the group’s bank borrowings of
RMB200,000,000. The guarantees were released during the
year.

Transactions and balances with the group’s affiliated
companies and their directors

Loans and advances (note (iii))
Prepayments (note (iv))

Trade payables (note (v))
Receipts in advance (note (vi))

FERF R (HTRE (iv)
FEARFRRAR (FIRE (V)

Interest income (note (vii))
Rental expense (note (viii))

Notes:

(i) These transactions were carried out on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary course of the group's businesses.

(ii) Interest expense on loan from a non-executive director was
charged at similar terms as other bank borrowings. The loan
was fully repaid by the group during the year.

(iii) Loans and advances represented interest-free and unsecured
amounts advanced to these related parties for short-term
purposes. At 31 December 2006, RMB5,490,000 was
advanced to a related party in which a director has interest,
whereas RMB200,000 was advanced to the director of a then
minority shareholder. These amounts were repayable within
three to six months and made on the same terms with other
independent third parties.

SRR (HIRE (i)

TEU AR (BTRE (vi)

FLEUA (BFE (vii)
e (M (viii)

BRAEMEI10R27THARENZZIN - K&
ERHEEATNRFRAERR S KEHN

T

(a)

(b)

HAKHES  SREEAESRA
ERHBREMNRZ S REEER

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETIT
- 496

226 =

AN > 72006912 A31H » £% -
BREBABREERBBEKED
Bl A 75 £ @ 59 A R #5 200,000,000 7T
RITERREER - BEERER
FREERR ©

HEAEENHEARAREESHN
R5 K EEER

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETIT
- 5,690

17,057 —
8,724 8,724

= 200

- 319

= 716

(i) WER 5 iR —REE R RR
AREIEREBHE LT -

(i)  —AFRTERREZERZF
BX TR R A M IRITEEIREL
ZIERZNT - ZRERRENFR
HAREZHAT

(il ERRBRIRARBMNFZEHE
ATH) % B R K S B 5K0E o
MR2006%F12A31H - & F #
BHAEGNEEALTRRRR
AR #5,490,000 7T © Lt 5NE B
LHBREANESEIRARE
200,0007C ° ZEHRBAER=E
ANEAREE - WIRREH
B = MERIERTEIL ©
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D) 37 BABMALHEKRARZS ()
(b) Transactions and balances with the group’s affiliated (b) HEAEENHKBATIREZEE[M
companies and their directors (Cont’d) RE Rk (&)

Notes: (Cont'd) BisE - (&)

(iv) Prepayments represented prepayments of construction (iv) FENFTRE N THEEATEE
materials paid to a related party for use of the group’s METERFR - LA AN &= E R 2508
development projects. The terms of such transactions were B2 EXFIR—REE
carried out on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary BERERAEBEEEEHEA
course of the group’s businesses. T o

(v) Trade payables represented interest-free and unsecured (v) FERBRRARREMULEAEA L
amount due to a related party for short-term purposes. This @8 REE S ERIE o R 0E
amount was repayable within three to six months and made on BR=ZZEARNEE  WiRE
the same terms with other independent third parties. BEHMBTE = AMERERM

513 ©

(vi) Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds received in (vi) TBUREERARRATBR —FARNE
respect of the pre-sale of a property under development which IHERPYEmMS KEANHEE
is expected to be completed within one year. The terms of P85 « ZEHETIIRRB—R
such sales were carried out on normal commercial terms and BEGRENAEE EE XK
in the ordinary course of the group’s businesses. NETT ©

(vii) Interest income on loan to a related party was charged at (i) A TEEATHEROFEIA
similar terms as other bank borrowings. = AR E A RTTE EHUA EK

FTE -

(vii)  Rental expense was charged by a then affiliated company in (viii) FH& X H HIRBE B EE IR

accordance with the terms of the underlying agreement. HERNBMEATTE -
38 NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 38 JEiHEAEE HEEIA

On 28 March 2008, the group entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to acquire 100% equity
interest in Shenzhen City Zirui Real Estate Development Company
Limited ( Shenzhen Zirui”). Shenzhen Zirui was engaged in the
development of residential and commercial properties nearby
Buji County, Longgang District. The aggregate consideration
under the share transfer agreement is RMB209,397,000,
including cash consideration of RMB154,100,000 and property
consideration (which represents ownership of these properties)
of RMB55,296,000. Shenzhen Zirui will become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the group after the completion of the share transfer.
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39  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

39 W P ) A )

The net assets acquired in the acquisition of subsidiaries during the

year were as follows:

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables, and
accruals

Receipts in advance

Taxation payable

Net identifiable assets and
liabilities

Total purchase prices paid,
satisfied in cash

Less: cash of subsidiaries acquired

Net cash outflow in respect of
the acquisition of subsidiaries

BEWEEEFE -

LIESN &

&

R MR 5 B L At R KR
AR

Re MRS EEY

FERTRRAR - BRI
HEREM

FEURRR

R IR

ABRIEER
BEFE

EfNEEERRE -
VARR & 32 A5

B EREHBARRSE

HEUEBHT 2 R
BREMmEFE

RAFE - RKBHERRKABANE

EFENT :
Carrying
amount
before Fair value
consolidation adjustments Fair value
REHAREE  AREHRE NRE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETET
880 - 880
195,797 68,468 264,265
38,536 - 38,536
481 = 481
2,513 - 2,513
(17,223) = (17,223)
(198,152) = (198,152)
(300) = (300)
22,5632 68,468 91,000
91,000
(2,513)
88,487
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40 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40 LIS
As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, REMEB B REERNE TS [T
and the amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial A #EIRBASTENE 1R HHR
statements: Capital disclosures, comparative amounts in respect of KHEH  BEXFE] % FTHE®L
certain items have been disclosed for the first time in 2007. Further REEE R 2007 FAEAHE - EEZ
details of these developments are disclosed in note 3. LRENE—DHBRERMES -

41 IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 41 g REL E) P A B A A
The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate holding EERAAEENF ERQ R REKZIE
company of the group to be Grand Prosperity Limited, which is BRARAREBEZHESFMK LN
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not Grand Prosperity Limited ° |th7A &]3F #&
produce financial statements available for public use. B TEMREAREE -

42  ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 42  EEHE T XA B

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(i) Provision for completed properties held for sale
and properties for future development and under
development for sale

As explained in note 2(j), the group’s completed properties
held for sale and properties for future development and under
development for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the group’s recent experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion
in case for properties for future development and under
development for sale, and the costs to be incurred in selling
the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBfE1= R ER A A
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42  ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

42 Fat et oA E (B0

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Provision for completed properties held for sale
and properties for future development and under
development for sale (Cont’d)

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and
this may result in provision for completed properties held
for sale and properties for future development and under
development for sale. Such provision requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value and provision for
properties in the periods in which such estimate is changed
will be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher or
lower than estimated at the balance sheet date. Any increase
or decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in
future years.

Impairment losses on prepaid project costs

The group prepaid land and construction costs for certain
projects located on the lands which the group has not
obtained land use rights. The group is in the process of
obtaining these land use rights. Should the land use rights
cannot be obtained subsequently, certain prepared costs may
not be recoverable. The group provides impairment losses for
the unrecoverable costs based on its estimation. The group's
estimates may be inaccurate and any change in the estimates
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Provision for bad debts of loans and advances

The group reviews the recoverability and ageing of loans and
advances and provides impairment losses if the balances are
not fully recoverable. The assessments involve estimation on
the recoverability of these balances. The group’s estimates
may be inaccurate and any change in estimates would affect
profit or loss in future years.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HEHENERIMERBHESR
HpAS N B R IR AV ()

fisf 3% T AR AN T4 AN 2k 36 5 (B EDS
BERMRYD  IREREEFESS
WA EmMRERFEHENER
THH  RARBEOERFHED
ERMEIRE R X EBAT
VA R A5t = fisd 78 B B2 R 2R ik =t
BRATRE - RZEE HERS A
BV AR E K A R R

B, o
=

AN - AR5 R B ) 2 5 DR B e
ERMENEENEE - KA RS
MERASRESNHERNESEE
BA SRS o 2 HIERTE N
X A 1 5 R 2R B i ) S S 1R A

=75
& o

AN E B AR ER R

ANER B g7 70 EL R JEER - (50 P
B EIEE TIHE - AN LR E
HERAR o REBRIEERZE L
L FARE o fri A SR B R B 12 R AL JEER
ZELMERRE - B TRMNKAK
BNEEIE - REERFEEGER
S B] Ui [E] B AR S ) DR (L S 48 1
o AEEMBE S TERE -
FZE M EMES BT ERFH
A REE

ERRBRNRRER

AR B2 1 B R N B R AT R ] 1
ROREe - MERFREARERE - BY
HEOREE R ERE - BREF G
RE AR A W@ IR 5 - REE
B AT AT BE N AERE - M fh AT IR AT AR
AN BIRFEEITHE o
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42  ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

42

Akl ak LA B (1)

(iv)

(v)

Land Appreciation Tax

As explained on note 9(a), Land Appreciation Tax is levied on
properties developed by the group for sale, at progressive
rate ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, which under the applicable regulations is calculated
based on the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use rights,
borrowing cost and all property development expenditures.
Given that the uncertainties of the calculation basis of Land
Appreciation Tax adopted by local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than estimated at the
balance sheet date. Any increase or decrease in estimates
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values calculated on the basis of well-established
valuation techniques using current market parameters are
theoretical values applicable at a given reporting date, and
hence can only be used as an indicator of value realisable
in a future sale. These techniques involve uncertainties
and are significantly affected by the assumptions used and
judgements made regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, discounted rates, estimates of future
cash flows, future expected loss experiences and other
factors. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
these estimates and the resulting fair values. Derived fair
value estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated by
comparison to independent markets and, in many cases,
could not be realised in an immediate sale of the instruments.
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43

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

43 CUFEARH A E 200744 12 A

31 H 14 B i A 2R BB ET
i e BN R o R A ) R

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2007 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the company’s results of operations and
financial position.

In addition, HKFRS 8, Operating segments, which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, may result in
new or amended disclosures in the financial statements.
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Group Financial Summary & B 8 i1 &

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT A HEER

For the year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLLFE
2007 2006 2005 2004
RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTFT ARKETT ARBTE

Turnover X 411,677 521,040 148,541 197,745
Net increase in fair value of BEMER R ER

investment properties HANFEE 180,352 566,343 7,250 760
Profit from operations 1 g A 486,196 927,783 79,471 55,254
Net change in fair value of derivative ~ $T4 SR T AR

financial instruments ARENEE)FEE (28,182) 432 = =
Finance costs BB (55,091) (23,170) (361) (2,197)
Profit before taxation R AR 402,923 905,045 79,110 53,057
Income tax FRr St (152,421) (206,779) (14,814) (12,858)
Profit for the year REEHF 250,502 698,266 64,296 40,199
Profit attributable to equity PiN/NEIE s E il

shareholders of the company FEMRRF 250,685 698,969 63,531 40,160
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HOEEAMER

At 31 December
M12A318
2007 2006 2005 2004

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTRIE ARBTT AREBTT AREBTET

Non-current assets IERBNEE 1,282,002 1,010,645 231,540 107,223
Current assets MENE E 2,250,053 738,829 594,312 299,780
Current liabilities mEAE (822,079) (818,239) (576,893) (334,911)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (1,070,250) (86,812) (101,861) (2,062)
Minority interests DB R M A (12,268) (23,091) (24,694) (11,157)
Total equity attributable to equity AR AR

shareholders of the company FEEEREER 1,627,458 821,332 122,404 58,873

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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LI1ST OF PROPERTIES
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
COMPLETED PROJECTS
Interest
Site area Actual GFA (square meters) Soldarea  Commencement/ attributable
Project name Place square meters  Residential Shop Office Others' Total  square meters  completion date to the Group
Harbor City Shenzhen 19,822 61,252 14,959 - 19,366 95,571 75901 2002/Q2-2003/Q3 100%
Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen 19,832 72,035 64,397 - 36,198 172,630 136250  2005/Q1-2006/Q4 100%
Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park ~ Shenzhen 119,326 - - - 237,939 237,939 237939 2005/02-2006/Q4 100%
158,980 133,287 79,356 - 293,503 506,146 450,090
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/TO BE DEVELOPED
Planned Interest
Site area Planned GFA (square meters) Saleablearea  commencement/  attributable
Project name Place square meters  Residential Shop Office Others' Total  square meters  completion date to the Group
Yifeng Plaza (phase 1) Shenzhen N/A 4127 8,859 46,857 10,512 70,355 59,843 2008/Q2-2008/Q4 100%
Yifeng Plaza (phase 2) 2 Shenzhen N/A 2013 3,022 684 - 5719 5719 2008/Q2-2008/Q4 100%
Yinghua Shenzhen 9,237 48,180 6,980 - 2,790 57,950 55,160 2008/Q4-2009/Q4 85.71%
Urban Upstream Landscape Villa (Phase 1) Huizhou 120,580 145,405 7,844 - 33243 186,492 153,249 2007/Q2-2008/Q4 100%
Urban Upstream Landscape Villa (Phase 2)  Huizhou 301,843 303,397 28,000 - 55,323 386,720 331,397 2008/Q3-2009/Q4 100%
Urban Upstream Landscape Villa (Phase 3] Huizhou 71519 240,870 14,406 - 59,757 315,033 205276 2009/02-2010/Q4 100%
Bauhinia Garden Xingning 28,526 75,500 8,500 - 1,000 85,000 84,000  2009/Q1-2010/Q2 100%
Grace Garden Meizhou 5,570 30,433 1,118 - 4,098 35,649 31,851 2007/Q4-2008/Q4 100%
Ningjiang City Phase 1 Xingning 38,827 90,673 10,075 - 100,748 100,748 2007/Q3-2009/Q1 100%
Xiang Jiang City Zhangjiakou 152,603 166,450 9,661 40,000 4,780 220,891 216,111 2007/03-2009/Q4 100%
Zirui Garden ¥ Shenzhen 43538 90,199 5,934 - 57,827 153,960 96,133 2008/Q1-2009/Q2 100% 1 59
778,243 1,197,247 104,399 87,541 229,330 1,618,517 1,389,187
PROJECTS UNDER NEGOTIATION
Planned Interest
Site area Planned GFA (square meters) Saleablearea  commencement/  attributable
Project name Place square meters  Residential Shop Office Others' Total  square meters  completion date to the Group
Old city renovation on
Guangchang North Street Shenzhen 10,636 29759 20,000 - 20,000 69,759 49,759 2009/Q2-2011/Q2 100%
Ningjiang City Phase 2 Xingning 243,455 538,542 63,173 - 30,000 631,715 601,715 2009/Q3-2012/Q3 100%
Danshui old city redevelopment Danshui 53,128 340,019 85,005 - - 425,024 425,024 2009/Q1-2012/Q1 100%
Dongguan Qigotou ¥ Dongguan 47,952 95,904 23,976 - - 119,880 119,880 2009/Q1-2011/Q1 90%
385171 1,004,224 192,154 - 50,000 1,246,378 1,196,378
PROPERTY LEASING BUSINESS
100% owned Leased from
by the Group external parties
Leaseable area Leaseable area
Project name Place square meters square meter
Harbor City Shenzhen 3,136 11,281
Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen 58,513 N/A
Baorun Ornament Materials Mall Shenzhen 7,653 6,035
69,302 17,316
PROPERTY FOR OWN USE
Interest
Useable attributable
Project name Place square meters to the Group
8/F, Hong Long Building Shenzhen 748 100%
(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces.
(2) Acquired from external parties.
(3) In February 2008, approval was obtained to purchase additional areas.
(4) Acquisition agreement has been entered into in March 2008.
(5)  New subsidiary was established in March 2008. Hong Long Holdings Limited JSiE3EAZ AR A &
Annual Report 2007 —EZ+FF3f
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Eméﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BEXERIER
1HEE BREEEE(TAR) BHEER BT/ 3
BE%H e Tk frz [k 7R iy At Tk BIKE Fifs s
REED 3] 19,822 61,252 14,959 - 19,366 95,577 75901 2002/02-2003/Q3 100%
BEES el 19,832 72,035 64,397 - 36,198 172,630 136,250 2005/Q1-2006/Q4 100%
BESHRIEE A 119,326 - = - 237,939 237,939 237,939 2005/Q2-2006/Q4 100%
158,980 133,287 79,356 - 293,503 506,146 450,090
1ERI% SR ERE
THER REUBEER (TAX) THERR REBT/ 3L
BEER ity IHR 2 it B7E Higo fit ik KIHE Fis
BYRS(58)0 el il 4127 8,859 46,857 10,612 70,355 59,843 2008/Q2-2008/Q4 100%
SRS ()0 i TER 2,013 3,022 684 - 5719 5719 2008/Q2-2008/04 100%
HEER I 9,237 48,180 6,980 - 2,790 57,950 55,160 2008/Q4-2009/Q4 85.71%
PRITEZ AR = 120,580 145,405 7,844 - 33,243 186,492 163,249 2007/02-2008/Q4 100%
TUE528 =M 301,843 303,397 28,000 - 56,323 386,720 331,397 2008/Q3-2009/04 100%
STILE 3 M 77,519 240,870 14,406 - 59,757 315,083 256,276 2009/02-2010/Q4 100%
ZH7EE B2 28,526 75,500 8,500 - 1,000 85,000 84,000  2009/Q1-2010/Q2 100%
BELE i 5,570 30,433 1118 - 4,098 35,649 31,651 2007/Q4-2008/Q4 100%
ETHH1 S = 38,827 90,673 10,075 - - 100,748 100,748 2007/03-2009/Q1 100%
BIEHR FF0 162,603 166,450 9,661 40,000 4,780 220,891 216,111 2007/Q3-2009/Q4 100%
LI E Y I 43,538 90,199 5,934 - 57,827 163,960 96,133 2008/01-2009/Q2 100%
1 60 778243 1,197,047 104,399 87,541 229330 1618517 1,389,187
1EaHKEE
1HEE REUBEER (TAK) THERE REHT/ 3]
BREH it ik 2 [k B7E it &it ik HKIER Fifs %
[B5itE | BasE F 10,636 29,759 20,000 - 20,000 69,759 49759 2009/02-2011/Q2 100%
ETHH LS e 243,455 538,542 63,173 - 30,000 631,71 601,715 2009/03-2012/Q3 100%
HokEHYE ok 53,128 340,019 85,005 - - 425,024 425,004 2009/01-2012/Q1 100%
REfEsEER O R 47,952 95,904 23,976 - - 119,880 119,880  2009/Q1-2011/Q1 0%
365,171 1,004,224 192,154 - 50,000 1246378 1,196,378
BEMERE
AEEG
100% xS BE=HEA
A EE w HEEE
BEEHE 1th 24 F K TR
EEBE w 3,136 11,281
TRE ES sl 58,513 TEA
B AR sl 7,653 6,035
69,302 17,316
SPEEYES
A AEE REE
==t ih 25 FHk  pifkHEs
WBERNESE w 748 100%
(1)  EBERSHASEM -
(2)  mINKEERImEE o
(3) 1200842 A ' BINESH BRI UIEREE -
(4) 200843 BEaI W HE -
(5) 20084 3 AR FHHIHIEAR °
Hong Long Holdings Limited JBFE1= R GR A A
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